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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMEERS OF THE COMPANY
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their Thirteenth Annual Report together with the Audited
Stand alone and consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31* March 2023.

PERFORMANCE:
The highlights of the financials of your company are as under:
Rs. in Crores

Partuas ko

1 Revenue from Operations 597.64 361.59
Il Other Income 17.70 10.37
[ | Total Income (I+1T) 615.34 371.96
IV | Expenses

Purchases of Stock-in-trade 64.70 45.89

Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade @.51) (2.93)

Employee benefit expense 90.85 59.18

Finance costs 61.86 36.57

Depreciation and amortisation expense 91.76 59.29

Other expenses 285.32 174.91

Total expenses (IV) 591.98 37291
K% Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (III-IV) 23.36 (0.95)
VI | Exceptional Items 29.20 -
VI | Profit/{Loss) before tax (V-VI) (5.84) (0.95)
VI | Tax expense

(a) Current tax (including prior years) 1.57 -

(b) Deferred tax (39.00) 0.52
IX | Profit/(Loss) for the Year (VII-VIII) 31.59 (1.47)
X Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

ggslzte)measurements of the defined benefit liabilities / (0.68) (0.80)

(b) Income tax relating to items that will not be . )

reclassified to profit or loss

Total other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year (0.68) (0.80)
X1 Total comprehensive (loss)/ income for the year 30.91 (2.27)

(VII+VIHD




Note:
Changes in Accounting Policies

During the vear 2022-2023, the Company has changed its method of depreciation from its existing
method of writien down value for certain categories of assels to straight line method taking into account
its reassessment of the expected pattern of economic benefits from those assets and the details of the same
are firnished under notes on accounts forming part of the Financial Statements.

Deferred Tax Asset

The Company has taxable profits during the year and based on the projections and performance of
the Company, there is reasonable certainty of utilizing all the brought forward losses/depreciation
in the next two years. Considering this, which is supported by convincing evidence, the Company
had recognized Deferred Tax Asset during the year amounting to Rs. 39.00 crores (net), which has
resulted in the post tax profif of Rs.31.59 crores.

STATE OF THE AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY:

Course of Business and Outlook / Business Performance:
During the year under review, the Company achieved a turnover of Rs. 597.64 Crores as compared to Rs.
361.59 Crores in the previous financial year 2021-22. On account of efficient operations, the Company
has achieved a Standalone after tax net profit of Rs. 31.59 crore (Previous Year —Loss Rs. 1.47 crore).

During the year under review, your Company has opened Twenty-Four (24} branches viz., Seven (7)
branches in Maharashtra, located at Pune (Four), Satara (One) and Mumbai (Two); Five (5) branches in
Punjab, located at Haryana (Two), Mohali (Two) and Chandigarh (One); Five (5) branches in Gujarat,
located at Surat (Three), Vapi (One) and Bhavnagar (One); Two (2) branches in Karnataka, located at
Davangere and Tumakuru; Two (2) branches in Andhra Pradesh, located at Madanapalle and Vijayawada;
Two (2) Branches in Tamil Nadu, located at Chennai and Madurai and One (1) Branch in Jammu.

A new centre normally takes a couple of years to turn around and the Management is hopeful that the
operations of these Branches would ramp up the revenue resulting in a positive turnaround in the coming

years

Conversion of the CCDs and CCPS:

During the vear, 124,301 Series C 0.001% Fully and Compulsorily Convertible Non-Cumulative
Participating Preference Shares (CCPS) of face value of INR 100 (Indian Rupees One Hundred) held by
M/s, Arvon Investments Pte. Lid and 1,67,366 Series C 0.001% fully and compulsorily convertible
Debentures (CCDs) of the face value of INR 1200 (Indian Rupees One Thousand Two Hundred) each
held by M/s. Value Growth Investment Holdings Pte. Ltd. were converted into 53,024 and 71,394 Equity
Shares of Rs. 10/- each, respectively, at a premium of Rs. 3,175.67 per Share at the Board Meeting held
on April 26, 2022.

Non-Convertible Debentures

The Board, after obtaining the approval of the Shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on
the 25™ October 2019, decided to raise funds to a tune of Rs.215 Crores by issuing 2150 (Two Thousand
one hundred and fifty) senior, collateralized, unlisted, redeemable, Non-convertible Debentures (NCDs)
of the face value of Rs.10,00,000 (Rupees Ten lakh) each and had issued and allotted on a_pFiyate-

¥/
S/

{f =
o



placement basis 1600 NCDs of the face value of Rs.10,00,000 (Rupees Ten lakh) British International
Investment PLC each and the said amount of NCDs were outstanding as on 01/04/2022.

Out of the abovementioned outstanding Debentures, the Company, on the 30" June 2022, voluntarily
redeemed 450 senior, collateralised, unlisted, redeemable, non-convertible debentures (“NCDs”) issued
to CDC Group (name changed as British International Investment PLC) at par, after obtaining the
refinancing from the HDFC Bank Ltd.

Further, during the year, after obtaining the approval of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held
on the 30" September 2022, allotted a further 550 NCDs to British International [nvestment PLC, over
and above the outstanding 1150 senior, collateralised, unlisted, redeemable non-convertible debentures
(NCDs), already issued to them, thus bringing up the total outstanding NCDs to 1700 as on the 31*
Mare, 2023

Issue and Allotment of Shares

Equity Shares through Preferential Allotment/Private Placement

During the financial year, the Board, in its meeting held on the 5™ May, 2022, allotted of 3,45,296
Equity Shares of Rs.10 each on preferential/private placement basis to Hyperion Investments Pte, Lid.,
Singapore and 5,96,420 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each to M/s.Arvon Investments Pte. Ltd., Singapore,
both at a premium of Rs. 3,175.67 per share, based on the Valuation Report dated 28th March 2022.

Exit of the investor M/s. Value Growth Investment Holdings Pte. Ltd

Subsequent to the above allotment of 71,394 Equity Shares in the aggregate, M/s.Value Growth
Investment Holdings Pte. Ltd, Singapore transferred its entire holdings in favour of M/s.Hyperion
Investments Pte Ltd., Singapore and ceased to be a shareholder of the Company.

Transfer of Shares from the Promoters to the non-resident shareholders

During the vear under review, an aggregate of 1.04.766 Equity Shares held by two of the Promoters of the
Company were transferred to Arvon Investments Pte. Ltd., one of the non-resident shareholders.

Employee Stock Option Scheme:

The Company has formulated an Employee Stock Option Plan for the key employees of the Company
and its subsidiaries, subject to the approval of the Shareholders. All the options issued by the Company
are equity share based options which have to be settled in equity shares only. The shares are to be
allotted to employees under the ‘Dr. Agarwal’s Health Care Limited- Employee Stock Option
Scheme- 2022 (the ‘ESOP Scheme’). The sharcholders, at their meeting held on the 21st November,
2022, approved the grant of 1,58,522 employee stock options to eligible employees under the ESOP
Scheme and authorized the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to implement the Scheme.
Subsequently, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, at its meeting held on the 28" November,
2022, accorded its consent to the proposal and also fixed the Option Exercise price and framed other
applicable conditions governing the vesting of the options.



The details of Employee stock options as on March 31, 2023 under the ESOP Scheme are given below.

SLNo. | Particulars Details
1. Options Granted; 66,008
2% Options Vested Nil
8|, Options Exercised Nil
4, Total No. of Shares arising because of exercise of | Nil
option.
5. Options Lapsed 1,496
6. Exereise price; 2,548 per Option
ik Variation of terms of options; Nil
3. Money realized by exercise of options Nil, since all the options are in vesting
period
. Total number of options in force 64,512
10. Employee wise details of options granted to;
(i) key managerial personnel; 8204 options were issued to the Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary
of the Company.
(ii)any other employee who receives a grant of options | Nil
in any one year of option amounting to five percent or
more of options granted during that year.
(iii} identified employees who were granted option, | Nil
during any one year, equal to or exceeding one percent
of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants
and conversions) of the company at the time of grant;

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE
DATE OF THE REPORT

Rights Issue of Series D1 and Series D2, 0.001% Fully and Compulsorily Convertible Nen-Cumulative
Participative Preference Shares

After the closure of the Financial Year,, the Board of Directors, at their meeting held on the 20% June,
2023 and the shareholders, at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on the 27% July, 2023, approved
the issue of 10,65,948 (Ten Lakh Sixty Five Thousand Nine Hundred and Forty Eight) Series DI
0.001% Fully and Compulsorily Convertible Non-Cumulative Participating Preference Shares (“Series
D1 CCPS™) of the face values of Rs.100 each and 21,31,898 (Twenty One Lakh Thirty One Thousand
Eight Hundred and Ninety Eight) Series D2 0.001% Fully and Compulsorily Convertible Non-
Cumulative Participating Preference Shares (“Series D2 CCPS”) of the face values of Rs.100 each, both
on Rights Basis, at a premium of Rs.4018.94, with an initial paid up amount of Re.l per SERIES D1
CCPS and SERIES D2 CCPS. The Board, after scrutinising the offer acceptance letters and complying
with the applicable provisions, allotted 3,07,401 SERIES D1 CCPS and 6,14,804 SERIES D2 CCPS to
those shareholders who accepted the Rights offer, at the meeting held on the 2" August, 2023.

Rights Issue of Equity Shares

After the closure of the Financial Year, the Board of Directors, at their meeting held on the 2™ August,
2023, approved the issue of 55,11,057 (Fifty Five Lakh Eleven Thousand Fifty Seven) Equity Shares of
Rs.10 each, at a premium of Rs.4,566.60 per share, on Rights Basis. The Board, after complying with the



applicable provisions, allotted 13,98,417 Equity Shares to those shareholders who accepted the Rights
offer, at the meeting held on 10" August 2023,

Redemption of Non-Convertible Debentures

The Company, on the 31% May 2023, has fully redeemed the outstanding 1700 Non-Convertible
Debentures at par after obtaining the refinancing from the ICICI Bank Ltd.

DIVIDEND

In order to conserve the funds for the future expansion of the Company, your Directors have decided not
to recommend any dividend for the year 2022-23

MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year 2022-23, six meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company were held on 26th
April, 2022, 5th May, 2022, 12th August, 2022, st December, 2022, 14th December, 2022 and 27th
February, 2023.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

During the year 2022-23, three meetings of the Audit Committee of the Company were held on 12"

August, 2022, 14" December, 2022 and 27" February, 2023. The present composition of the Audit
Committee is as follows.

S. No | Name of the Director Category Designation
1 Mr. V Balakrishnan Independent Director | Chairman

2 Mr. Sanjay Anand Independent Director | Member

3 Mpr. Shiv Agrawal Independent Director | Member

4 Mr. Ved Prakash Kalanoria Nominee Director Member

5 Mr. Ankur Nand Thadani Nominee Director Member

The Composition of Audit Committee of the Board is in conformity with the requirements of Section 177
of the Companies Act 2013. Consequent upon the resignation of Mr. R. Venkatesh and Mr. Suresh
Prabhala on 4" May, 2022 and 5" May, 2022, respectively, the Committee was reconstituted and Mr. Ved
Prakash Kalanoria and Mr. Ankur Nand Thadani were inducted as Members on 5% May, 2022.

AUDITORS

Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, at the Annual General Meeting held on 23
September 2021, M/s., Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No:
0080725), Chennai, were re-appointed for a period of 5 (Five) years as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company, to hold office till the conclusion of the Sixteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company.



DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

INVESTMENTS

The Company has made fresh investments during the year under review in the Equity Shares of its
subsidiary, M/s. Aditya Jyot Eye Hospital Private Limited as disclosed in the financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF LOAN & GUARANTEES

The particulars of loans & guarantees given as per Section 186 of the Act by the Company, have been
disclosed in the financial statements.

During the period under review, the Corporate Guarantee originally given to HDFC Bank for the loan
availed by M/s. Dr. Agarwal’s Eve Hospital Limited for an amount of Rs. 73.98 crore was cancelled and
instead, provided to Axis Banlk.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an adequate system of internal control in place which has been designed to provide a
reasonable assurance with regard to maintaining of proper accounting controls, monitoring of operations,
protecting assets from unauthorized use or losses, compliance with regulations and for ensuring reliability
of financial reporting.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

At the Board Meeting held on the 26" April, 2022, following the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, both Dr. Dr. Adil Agarwal and Dr. Dr. Anosh Agarwal, Wholetime Directors
of the Company, were reappointed for a further period of 3 years, with effect from the 1* May, 2022.
Subsequently, at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on the 5% May, 2022, the approval of the
sharcholders was obtained for these reappointments and the payment of remuneration to them.

During the year under review, Mr. R. Venkatesh and Mr. Suresh Prabhala resigned as Directors vide their
letters dated 5™ May, 2022 and ,4"™ May, 2022, respectively. The Board, on 5% May, 2022, based on the
recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and pursuant to the Shareholders’
Agreement entered into between the Company, M/s. Hyperion Investments Pte Ltd., M/s. Claymore
Investments (Mauritius) Pte. Ltd., M/s.Arvon Invesiments Pte Ltd and the Promoters of the Company,
had appointed Mr. Ved Prakash Kalanoria (DIN: 08950500) and Mr. Ankur Nand Thadani (DIN:
03566737) as the Additional Directors of the Company and the shareholders, at the Extra Ordinary
General Meeting held on 5® May, 2022, regularized their appointment as the Nominee Directors of the
Company.

BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board had carried out a formal evaluation of
its own performance, as well as the evaluation of the working of its Committees and also of the individual



Directors. A structured analysis was done after taking into consideration the inputs received from
Directors, covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the
Board and its Committees, Board culture, Execution and Performance of specific duties, obligations and
governance. A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors
including the Chairman of the Board, who were evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and
contribution, independence of judgment, safeguarding the interests of the Company and of its minority
shareholders, etc.

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received necessary declarations from each Independent Director of the Company under
Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that the Independent Directors of the Company meet the
criteria of their Independence laid down in Section 149(6).

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Consequent upon the resignation of Mr. R. Venkatesh and Mr. Suresh Prabhala on 4% May, 2022 and 5"
May, 2022, respectively, the Committee was reconstituted and Mr. Ved Prakash Kalanoria and Mr. Ankur
Nand Thadani were inducted as Members on 5% May, 2022.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises four Directors. Mr. Shiv Agarwal, Independent
Director, is the Chairman of the Committee and the other members of the Committee are, Mr. Sanjay
Anand, Independent Director, Mr. Ved Praksh Kalanoria and Mr. Ankur Nand Thadani, both Nominee
Directors.

Meeting and Attendance:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met four times during the year on 26th April, 2022, 5th
May, 2022, 12th August, 2022, and 28th November, 2023. The requisite quorum was present at the
Meeting.

Terms of Reference

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee has been constituted to formulate, review and recommend a
policy relating to remuneration of directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. The
Committee also formulates the criteria for evaluation of Independent Diirectors and the Board

Remuneration Policy:

The Nomination and Remuneration committee has adopted a Charter which, inter alia deals with the
manner and criteria for determining qualifications and positive attributes of [ndependent Directors and a
remuneration policy for Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. This Policy is
accordingly derived from the said Charter

(i) Criteria for Determining Qualifications, Positive Attributes & Independence of Director:

(a) Qualifications of Independent Director:

An Independent director shall possess appropriate skills, experience and knowledge in one or more fields
of finance, law, management, sales, marketing, administration, research, corporate governance, operations
or other disciplines related to the company’s business.



(b) Positive attributes of Independent Directors: An independent director shall be a person of integrity,
who possesses relevant expertise and experience and who shall upheld ethical standards of integrity and
probity; act objectively and constructively; exercise his responsibilities in a bona-fide manner in the
interest of the company; devote sufficient time and attention to his professional obligations for informed
and balanced decision making; and assist the company in implementing the best corporate governance
practices.

(c) Independence of Independent Directors: An Independent director should meet the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013 concerning independence of directors.

(IT) Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees:

(a) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (NEDs): The Non-Executive / Independent Director may receive
remuneration by way of fees for attending meetings of Board or Commitiee thereof. Provided that the
amount of such fees shall not exceed the maximum amount as provided in the Companies Act, 2013, per
meeting of the Board or Committee or such amount as may be prescribed by the Central Government
from time to time.

(b) MANAGING DIRECTOR (MD) & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL & OTHER EMPLOYEES:
The objective of the policy is directed towards having a compensation philosophy and structure that will
reward and retain talent. The Remuneration to Executive Directors shall take into account the Company’s
overall performance, Director’s contribution for the same and trends in the industry in general, in a
manner which will ensure and support a high performance culture. The Remuneration to others will be
such as to ensure that the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks. Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
will involve a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance
objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals. The above criteria and policy are
subject to review by the Nomination & Remuneration committee & the Board of Directors of the
Company.

AUDITORS’ REPORTS

Statutory Auditors’ Reports, both Stand Alone and Consolidated

The Auditors’ Reports have no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers.
SECRETARIAL AUDIT

The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed to this Report. There has been no qualification, reservation or
adverse remark or disclaimer in the Report.

COST AUDITOR(S)

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the relevant Rules and based on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, M/s. BY & Associates., Cost Accountant in Practice (Firm
Registration No: 003498), has been appointed as the Cost Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year
2022-23. Accordingly, a Resolution seeking the ratification of the remuneration payable to M/s. BY &
Associates., Cost Accountants in Practice, by the Members of the Company, is being included on the
Agenda of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.



MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section
148 of the Companics Act, 2013 is applicable to the Company and accordingly, such accounts and
records are made and maintained.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has a vigil mechanism to deal with instances of fraud and mismanagement, if any. The
Audit Committee oversees the function of the vigil mechanism.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

A copy of the Annual Return in Form MGT-7 will be uploaded to the Website of the Company at
www.dragarwal.com.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS OF THE COMPANY AND THE
COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which would
impact the going concern status of the Company.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Considering gender equality, the Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace. The
Company has an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment
of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, An Internal Complaints
Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All
employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed of during the
reporting period:

. No. of complaints received: Nil
. No. of complaints disposed of: Nil
. No. number of complaints pending as on the end of the financial year: Nil

SUBSIDIARY/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Your Company has four direct subsidiaries, namely, Dr. Agarwal’s Eye Hospital Limited, Elisar Life
Sciences Private Limited, Aditya Jyot Eye Hospital Private Limited and Orbit Health Care Services
(Mauritius) Limited (wholly owned subsidiary). The Orbit Health Care Services (Mauritius) Limited had
Eight stepdown subsidiaries, as on 31.03.2023. The names of these stepdown subsidiaries are given
below:

I Orbit Healthcare Services Ghana Limited
2 Orbit Health Care Services SARL, Madagascar
3 Orbit Health Care Services Mozambique Limited




Orbit Health Care Services Limited, Rwanda
QOrbit Health Care Services Zambia Limited
Orbit Health Care Services Uganda Limited
QOrbit Health Care Services Kenya Limited
Orbit Health Care Services (Tanzania) Limited

SO |~1|O (W | &

There has been no material change in the nature of business of the Subsidiaries.

The Registrar of Companies, Republic of Mauritius, vide its order dated 26™ April 2022 has approved the
amalgamation of Orbit Health Care Services (Mauritius) Limited with M/s. Orbit Healthcare Services
International Operations Ltd. with effect from 01 April 2022.

The Company has disinvested its stake in Orbit Thelish Health Care Services (Nigeria) Limited with
effect from July 19, 2022 and that Company has ceased to be a step-down subsidiary of the Company.

Idearx Services Private Limited continues to be an Associate Company.

In terms of the proviso to sub section (3) of Section 129 of the Act, the salient features of the financial
statements of the Subsidiaries and the Associate Company are set out in the prescribed Form AOC-]
(ANNEXURE-I), which forms part of this Report.

PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

The details of the performance and financial position of the subsidiaries/Associate of the Company are
furnished under the Form AOC-1 enclosed as Annexure-1 to this report.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As required by the Companies Act, 2013, the consolidated Financial Statements, prepared in accordance
with the relevant Accounting Standard, are also presented along with the stand-alone Statements.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Companies {(Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of the employees of the Company are annexed as
ANNEXURE — II to this report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION ETC.

The Company continues to do everything possible towards conserving energy. The Company is yet to
take any steps for utilizing alternative sources of energy. In the opinion of the Directors, the matters
relating to Research and Development, Technology Absorption etc. are not applicable to the Company, as
vet.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Earnings: 14.41 Crores (Previous year 8.30 Crores)

Outgo: Rs. 1.01 Crores (Previous year 64.18 Lakhs)



DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by
them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c¢) of the Companies Act,
2013:

i) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been followed.

ii) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
the affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the Profit after Tax of the Company for
the year under review.

iii) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

iv) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

v} The Directors have devised a proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws, including the applicable Secretarial Standards and that this system is adequate and operating
effectively.

vi) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The relevant provisions are not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. However, by
virtue of the Net Worth of the Company as on the 31% March, 2023 amounting to Rs.561.57 Crores, the
provisions of Section 135 of the Act would become applicable from the cwrent year onwards.
Accordingly, a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is being constituted and the Board would take
further steps upon receiving the recommendations of that Committee.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board has formulated the Company’s Risk Management Policy, identifying the elements of risk that
the Company may face, such as strategic, financial, credit, market, liquidity, security, property, legal,
regulatory and other risks, pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 (3) (n) of the Act.

The management continuously reviews the risk management process including identification, impact
assessment and draws up mitigation plans.

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS:

Employee relations were cordial through the year at the Registered Office and across all the centres of the
Company. The Board wishes to place on record its sincere appreciation of the devoted efforts of all
employees in advancing the Company’s vision and strategy. Their support has helped the Company to
significantly improve its performance during the year.



TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the year under review, the Company has entered into contracts / arrangements with related parties
{wholly owned subsidiaries excluded) in the ordinary course of its business and on arm’s length basis.
Thus, the provisions of Section 188(1) of the Act are not applicable.

The particulars of the arm’s length transactions have been provided in the prescribed Form AOC-2
(ANNEXURE-III), which forms part of this Report. Since the number and nature of such arm’s length
transactions are voluminous and that they have already been detailed under the Notes to Accounts, the
attached Form AOC 2 refers to the relevant Note to avoid the repetition.

APPRECIATION

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the continuous support received from the
members, customers, suppliers, various statutory bodies of the Government of India and the Company’s
employees at all levels.

By Order of the Board
For Dr. Agarwal’s Health Care Limited
Sd/- Sd/-
Dr. Adil Agarwal Dr. Anosh Agarwal
Whole-time Director Whole-time Director
DIN: 01074272 DIN: 02636035

Place: Chennai
Date: 10/08/2023



ANNEXURE -1
Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiaries/ Associate
Companies / Joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

NS:)-. Particulars Details Details Details Details
Dr Orbit Health Elisar Life Aditya Jyot
2 A I’s Care Servi iences Eye Hospi
: Narieio, the SUbRTIAY Eyeg z;-Ir(‘::ll)ital (1\'Iauritil:§)eS SPfll'fv:te;e Priffate (fil:!lltia:tlad
Limited Limited @ Limited
The date since when
2 subsidiary was acquired ISR 10.01.2017 31.10.2019 08.10.2021
Reporting period for the
Sl:IbSidiaI'y concerned,. if 15t April to
3 different from the holdplg 31% March 1% April to 31% | 1 April to 31° | 1* April to 31%
Corppany's reporting 2023 March 2023 March 2023 March 2023
period
Reporting currency and
Exchange rate as on on
the las;gt date of the INR MUR INR INR
4 relevant Financial Year in | (In Crores) | MUR = {In Crores) (In Crores)
the case of foreign LAIENRETINE:
subsidiaries
5 Share capital 4.70 75.37 2.38 3.40
6 | Reserves & surplus 108.64 5.57 (30.87) 1.55
7 | Total assets 389.94 136.25 7.49 13.99
8 | Total Liabilities 276.60 55.31 35.98 9.04
9 Investments - - = =
10 | Turnover 267.89 144.61 4.86 11.98
11 | Profit before taxation 49.40 290.72 (8.52) 1.85
12 | Provision for taxation (12.48) (5.25) 0.53 (0.59)
13 | Profit after taxation 36.92 15.47 (7.99) 1.26
14 | Proposed Dividend 30% NIL. NIL NIL
15 | FExtent of sharcholding 71.75% 100% 76% 63.25%
(in percentage)

@ All the figures except the Share Capital, are after the consolidation of the financials of all the step
down subsidiaries.

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - None
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year




Orbit Thelish Health Care Services (Nigeria) Limited, ceased to be one of the step
down subsidiaries.

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies
and Joint Ventures

Name of associates/Joint Ventures IDEARX SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31/03/2023

2. Shares of Associate held
by the company on the year end

Nos. 49,254 shares of Re.1/- each

Amount of Investment in Associates/ 201 Lakhs

Joint Venture

Extent of Holding 14.71%

3. Description of how there is significant Control of more than 15% of the voting
influence Power

4. Reason why the Associate/Joint venture | NA
is not consolidated

5. Net worth attributable to sharcholding | (117.05 Lakhs)
Audited Balance Sheet

6.Profit/(Loss) for the year (515.26 Lakhs)
Considered in Consolidation 0
Not Considered in Consolidation (515.26 Lakhs)
By Order of the Board

For Dr. Agarwal’s Health Care Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Dr. Adil Agarwal Dr. Anosh Agarwal
Whole-time Director Whole-time Director
DIN: 01074272 DIN: 02636035

Place: Chennai
Date: 10/08/2023



Annexure to the Directors” Report for the vear ended 31st March, 2023,

Annexure-I1

Statement pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 forming

part of the Directors’ Report.

Name and Age Designation/ | Gross Qualification Date of Previons
Nature of Dutie] Remuneration & commencement | employment
Paid Experience of employment
{Rs. in Crores) (in Years)
Dr. Adil Agarwal, Whole-time 3.70 MBBS 19.04.2010 -
39 years Director & CEO M.S. Ophthalmology
MBA (Stanford)
13 Years of
Experience
Dr.Anosh Agarwal, | Whole-Time 3.67 MBBS, M.S., | 30.01.2014 =
38 years Director Opthamology, MBA

(Harvard) 11 Years
of Experience

a. The above employments are contractual.

b. As per the disclosures available with the Company, Dr. Adil Agarwal who is related to Dr. Amar
Agarwal and Dr. Anosh Agarwal and holds 418743 shares (5.28%) in the Company and Dr.Anosh
Agarwal who is related to Dr. Amar Agarwal and Dr. Adil Agarwal, holds 524263 shares (6.61%) in

the Company.

The details of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn during the financial year 2022-2023
as per Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 duly amended by the Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Amendment Rules 2016, are as follow: Nil

Place: Chennai
Date: 10/08/2023

By Order of the Board

For Dr. Agarwal’s ITealth Care Limited

Sd/-

") @) Dr. Adil Agarwal
Whole-time Director

DIN: 01074272

Sd/-

Dr. Anosh Agarwal
Whole-time Direcior
DIN: 02636035




ANNEXURE -IIT
FORM NO. AOC.2

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s
length transactions under third proviso thereto

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section(3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis
None
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

Please refer to Note No.38 of the Notes on Accounts forming part of the standalone Financial
Statements

By Order of the Board
For Dr.Agarwal’s Health Care Limited

. 83\ Sd/- Sd/-

/ ')’J\ Dr. Adil Agarwal Dr. Anosh Agarwal

| & Chennai | 2 || Whole-time Director ‘Whole-time Director
?)/  DIN: 01074272 DIN: 02636035

Place: Chennai
Date: 10/08/2023
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Chartered Accountants
ASY N Ramana Tower

52, Venkatnarayana Road
T. Nagar, Chennai- 600017

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT India

Tel: +91 {044) 6688 5000
Fax: +91 (G44) 6688 5050

To The Members of Dr. Agarwal’s Health Care Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of
Dr. Agarwal’s Health Care Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet
as at 31 March 2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015, as amended,
(*Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and its profit, total comprehensive profit,
its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical respansibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

s The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board Report, but does not
include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’'s report thereon.

e Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

« In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.
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« If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board
of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors are aiso responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control,
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« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legai and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. The Company’s
daily backup of it accounting records are maintained in servers physically located
outside India (Refer Note 39.A to the standalone financial statements).
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c)

d)

f)

g)

h)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31 March 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters
connected therewith, are as stated in paragraph (b) above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A". Our report
expresses an unmaodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 36 to the
standalone financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any
‘guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes o the financial statements,
no funds have been received by the Company from any person{(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“"Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

v.  The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has
not proposed final dividend for the year.

vi.  Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining
books of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company w.e.f. 01 April 2023,
and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended
31 March 2023.

2. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in
“Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 0080725)

( {P("C‘A.E pn A
T ) W Jea ’f‘f/’{i ’

R. Prasanna Venkatesh
Partner

(Membership No. 214045)
UDIN: 23214045BGWIZX2169

Place: Chennai
Date: 10 August 2023
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ANNEXURE "A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
Dr. Agarwal’s Health Care Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction
with our audit of the Ind AS standalone financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements based on the internal control with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial
statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial
control with reference to standalone financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone
financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us with, the Company has, in all material respects, an adeguate internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at
31 March 2023, based on the criteria for internal financial control with reference to
standalone financial statements established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
{Firm’s Registration No. 008072S)

Ao o 12
0 Pt

R. Prasanna Venkatesh
Partner

(Membership No. 214045)
UDIN: 23214045BGWIZX2169

Place: Chennai
Date: 10 August 2023
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

(i) In respect of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

(a) (i) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars )
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment,
Capital work-in-progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets except in the
case of Property, Plant and Equipment, where the Company is in the process of
updating the records for quantitative details and situation of certain assets.

(ii) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work-in-progress, and right-of-use assets
were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance with a regular
programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification at
reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanation given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties, which are reported under
Property, Plant and Equipment and, hence, reporting under clause(i)(c) of the CARO 2020
is not applicable.

In respect of immovable properties that have been taken on lease and disclosed as Right
of use assets as at the Balance sheet date, the lease agreements are duly executed in
favour of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including
right of use assets)} and intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at 31 March 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the
Management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories when compared with
books of account.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at any point of
time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets. Hence, reporting on the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with
such banks or financial institutions is not applicable.
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(iii) (@) The Company has provided loans and stood guarantee during the year and details
of which are given below:
{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars Loans Guarantees
A. Aggregate amount granted/provided during

the year :

- Subsidiaries 3.05 -
- Associates . 5

B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date
in respect of above cases:*
- Subsidiaries 27.19 90.04

- Associates = -

*The amounts reported are at gross amounts, without considering provisions made. The
above amounts include Rs. 34.19 crores of loan outstanding (including interest of
Rs. 7.29 crores) from one of the subsidiaries in respect of which the Company has created
a provision for impairment considering the operational and financial performance of the
subsidiary. Refer Notes 9a and 16 of the standalone financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2023.

The Company has not granted any advances in nature of loans or provided security to any
other entity during the year.

(b) The investments made, guarantees provided, and the terms and conditions of the grant
of all the above-mentioned loans and guarantees provided, during the year are, in our
opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. Refer Note to clause (iii){(a)
above.

(c) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal is
stipulated as to be repaid over a period of 5 years, though specific instalments for each
period has not been specified. However, the payment of interest has not been stipulated.
The repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest are regular as per stipulation
except for the following:

Name of the | Nature Amount in | Due Date Extent of
entity INR Crores delay

Elisar Life | Payment of 7.29 | Not Available Not

Sciences Pvt | Interest determinable
Limited

(d) In respect of following loans granted by the Company, which have been overdue for
more than 90 days at the balance sheet date, as explained to us, the Management has
taken reasonable steps for recovery of the principal amounts and interest. Refer Note to
clause (iii){a) above in respect of the loan provided to the subsidiary.

(e) No loan or advance in the nature of loan granted by the Company which has fallen
due during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

(f) According to information and explanation given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed, the Company has not granted any loans either repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Refer Note to clause (iii)(a)
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(iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and
securities provided, as applicable.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits during the year.
Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has maintained the cost records which has been specified by the Central
Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed
the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records
and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended and prescribed by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have,
however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory
dues:

(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Income-tax, duty of
Custom, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company have generally
been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authorities except for few delays in
respect of dues towards provident fund due fo delay in KYC verification, labour welfare
fund and professional tax.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, duty of Custom,
Professional Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31 March 2023
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable except for
provident fund professional tax and labour welfare fund aggregating Rs. 0.01 crores.

(c) There are no statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a) above which have not been
deposited on account of disputes as on 31 March 2023.

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there
were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or
disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {43 of 1961)
during the year.

(ix) (@) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the
Company were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the
loans were obtained, other than temporary deployment pending application.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, funds
sed on short-term hasis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term
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(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or persons on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries or associate.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries or joint ventures or associate companies.

(x) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and, hence, reporting under clause (x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has made private placement of new equity shares during the year. For
such allotment of shares, the Company has complied with the requirements of Section 42
and 62 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the funds raised have been, prima facie, applied
by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the funds were raised, other
than temporary deployment pending application.

(xi) {(a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers
or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

(c) As represented by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year and up to the date of this report.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and, hence, reporting under clause (xii) of the
CARQ 2020 Order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the
nature of its business.

{b) We have considered the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year
and covering the period up to 31 March 2023, in determining the nature, timings and
extent of our audit procedures.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
directors of its holding, subsidiary or associate company or persons connected with them
and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvi) (@) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of
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(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is
no core investment company within the Group {as defined in the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and, accordingly, reporting under clause
(xvi}{d) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and
the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the
year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as
on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or
turnover of rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five crore or more
during the immediately preceding financial year and hence, provisions of section 135 of
the Act are not applicable to the Company during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm‘s Registration No. 008072S)
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R. Prasanna Venkatesh
Partner
(Membership No. 214045)
UDIN: 23214045BGWI1ZX2169
Place: Chennai
Date: 10 August 2023




Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023

{Amount in Rs. Crores}

Particulars Note No. Ag at 31stMarch 2023 |  As at 31st March 2022
I. ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 5(a) 215.71 114.47
(b) Capital work-in-progress 5(B) 35.08 1.85
() Right of use asset 6 260.52 130.25
fd} Goodwill 7 216.21 80.23
{z} Othar Intangibla assets 7 214.50 32.20
{f Financial assets
{i) Investments 1 153.66 147.41
{ii} Loans g{A} 1.89 21.08
(i) Other Financial assets aiB) 17.59 12.36
{g} Income tax assets [nat} 12 28.39 17.43
{h} Deferred tax assats {ne?) 13.1 39.00 -
{1) Other nan-current assets 10 4.36 221
Total Non - current Assets 1,186.91 569.55
(2} Current assets
{a) Inventaries 11 20.33 17.51
{b) Financial assets
{f) Investrments 8(B) 33.66 -
{ii} Trade receivables 14 30.72 30.53
(1) Cash and cash equivalents 15{a) 76.81 43,74
{iv) Other Bank balances 15 (B) 20.67 16.26
{v] Other Financial Assets 16 2.35 £.96
{c} Other current assets 10 7.13 7.80
Total current assets 200.67 122.50
TOTAL ASSETS 1,387.58 692.45
Il. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{1} Equity
{a] Equity Share capital 17 7.93 6.86
[b} Other equity 18 553.63 192.05
Total Equity 561.56 198.91
{2) Nan-current liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 19 266.09 228.14
(i1} Lease Liability 40 254.45 140,15
(iif) Other finarcial liabilities 20 88,59 7.32
ny Py < a8 acn 1€
Total Hon - Coirent Liabilities 612.72 | 377.23
(3) Current liahilities
(2} Financial Liakilities
{i) Borrowings 23 41,16 23711
(fi) Lease Liahillty 40 28.80 15.97
{ili) Trade payables
- Tatal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 24 14.16 6.76
- Tatz| outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 24 46,14 46.91
enterprises and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 20 77.71 17.73
{b) Cther current [iabilities 22 4.16 4.56
{c) Provisions 21 1.27 0.67
Total Current Liabilities 213.30 i16.31
TOTAL LIABIEITIES 826.02 493.54
TOTAL EQUITY AND LEABILITIES 1,387.58 692.45

See accompanying notes forming part of tha standalone financia] statements

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number: 0080728
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R. Prasanna Venkatesh Dr, Anosh Agarwal
Partner Whaolatime Director
Membership No.: 224045 DIN: 0i674%72 DIN: 02635035 l
TNy
.
Mr. B.Udhay Shankar Mr. Thanikainathan Arumugam
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Placa : Chennai Place ; Chennai

Date : 10th August 2023 Date : 10th August 2023




Dr. Agarwal's Health Care limited
Standalong Statement of Profit and Loss as at 31st March 2023

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars Note No. For the Year ended For the Year ended
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
|  Revenue from Operations 25 597.64 361.59
Il Other Income 26 17.70 10.37
It Total Income {1-HI1} 515.34 371.96
IV Expenses
Purchase of Stock-in-trade 27 64.70 45.89
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 28 (2.51) {2.93)
Empioyee benefits expense 29 a0.85 59.18
Finance costs 30 61.86 36.57
Depreciation and amortisation expense 31 9L.76 59.29
Other expenses 32 285.32 174.91
Total expenses (v} 591.98 372.91
V  Profit/{loss) before exceptional items and 23.36 {0.95)
tax [II- 1V}
VI Exceptional ltems 9(A) & 16 29.20 -
Vil Loss before tax (V-V1) {5.84) {0.95)
VI Tax expense
{a) Current tax 12.2 157 &
{b) Deferred tax 13.2 {39.00) 0.52
(37.43) 0.52
X Profitf{Loss) for the Year (VIi-ViI) 31.59 (L.47}
X Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities / (asset) (0.68) (0.80}
[b) Income tax relating to itemns that will not be raclassified to 13.1 = ]
prafit ar loss
Total other comprehensive loss for the year (.68 {0.80}
‘ X Total comprchensive Profitfloss for the yeai (IX+X) 30.91 2.27;
Earnings per equity share {Face value of Rs.10/- each) 41
{a) Basic (in Rs.] 40.35 (2.15)
{b) Diluted (in Rs.) 40.20 {2.15)

See accompanying notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For Deloltte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number: 0080725
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R. Prasanna Venkatesh
Partner
Membership No.: 214045

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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or. Al Aghrwal
Wholetifhe Director
DIN: 01074272

\(EG_Q—E/&V

Place : Chennai
Date : 10th August 2023

Mr. B.Udhay Shankar
Chief Financial Officer

Place ; Chennai
Date : 10th August 2023
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Dr. Anosh Agarwal
Whaletime Director
DIN; 02636035

AN

|-

Mr. Thanikainathan Arumugam

Company Secretary




Dr, Agarwal's Health Care Limited
Standalone Cash Flow $tatement as on 31st March 2023

{Amaount in Bs. Crores)

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
315t March 2023 31st Marsch 2022
A, Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(Loss} after tax for the year 31.59 {147}
Adjustments for:
Drepreciation and Amortization Expenses 91.76 59.29
Income taxes {current and deferred taxas) {37.43) 0.52
Finance Costs / Interest Expense on financial [fabilities at amortized cost 61.86 36.57
interest Income - Bank & other investmants [5.66) {3.54)
interest Income - Qther Financial Assets at amortized cost (1.29} {0.14)
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back (0.44} {2.29]
Net gain on termination of right-of-use assets B [2.43)
Loss / (Profit] on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment {Net} (0.05} -
Allowance for Expected Cradit Losses 6.71 530
Loss on property, plant and equipment discarded > 0.48
intergst on income Tax refund {0.19) (1.43)
tnrealised Foreign Exchange Loss / {Gain) 0.28 017
Pravislon for doubtful loans ard advances / impairment |oss {refer Note 9 A) 2520 3.09
Dividend Income {3.00) =
profit on Redemption of Current Investments 14.66) =
Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 168.68 94.12
Movements in working capital:
Decrease / {Increase} in Inventories {2.81} {5.14)
Decrease / {Increase) in Trade Receivables (17.24}) (11.25)
{Increase) / Decrease in Loans and Other Financial assets {Current and Nan Current) 22.50 {6.99)
{Increase) / Decrease in Other Assets {Current) 0.77 [4.29)
Increass / [Becrease) in Trade Payables 6.39 1.62
{Decrease) / ncrease 1n Gther Financial Liabilities (Current and Non Current) {11.2%) 10.64
{Decrease) / increase in Provisions {Current arrd Non Current) 2.53 {0.36)
[Decrease) / Increase in Other Liabilities {Current) {0.40) 174
Changes in Warking Capital changes 0.48 {13.03}
169.17 a1.08
Income taxes {paid) - net of refunds (12.28) {2.7%)
Net cash generated by operating activities 156.29 78.30
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Capital Expenditure on Praperty, Plant and Equipment {89.58) {23.40)
Amaount spent on account of Business acquisitions (307.85) (50.88)
Deferred consideration paid towards acquisition liabilities (8.72) (4.00)
Praceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 0.05 11.96
Salef{Purchase) of Investments (Net) (35.26) (26.00)
Increase in Bank balances not considered as Cash and cash equivalents {4.40} 17.20)
Interest Received from Bank & other investments 277 1.09
Dividend income 300 -
Net cash flows used In investing activities (439.99) 193.43)
€. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds/{Repayment] of borrowings 24.00 5513
Finance costs paid an borrowings {23.26) {21.63)
Proceeds from issue of equity shares of the company 300.00 14.76
Proceeds from issuef{conversion| of Debentures of the company = 20.08
Payment of lease liabilities (54.57) (28.17}
Nat cash flows from financing activities 316.17 40.17




Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited
Standalone Cash Flow Statement as on 31st March 2023

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

P EIE | 315t March 2023 31st March 2022
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C] 33.07 20.03
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 43.74 23.71
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 76.81 43.74
In terms of cur repart attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Mumber: 0080725
\ @‘a o N rN\'S/Q
P Newdeh
R. Prasanna Venkatesh Dr? Agarwal Dr. Anosh Agarwal

Partner
Membership No.: 214045

Whgletime Directer
DiN: 01074272

Wholetime Director
DIN: 02636035
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Mr. B8.Udhay Shankar  Mr. Thanikainathan Arumugam
Chief Financial Officer Carnpany Secretary

Place : Chennai Place : Chennai

Date : 10th August 2023 Date : 10th August 2023
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Dr. Agarwal’s Health Care Limited

Notes to the dalone Financial for the Year Ended 315t March 2023

1

21

32

33

EX

Corporate Information

Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited ('the Company') was Incorperated on 19 Apnl 2010 and Ts primarily engaged in running, owning and managing eye care
hospitals, opticals, pharmacias, ete. and related services. As at 21 March 2023, the Campany is operating in 98 locations in India.
Application of New and Revised lnd AS

n Accounting Standards) Rules,
nts. There 15 no other Indian

Al} the Indizn Accounting Standards lssued and notified hy the MinTstry of Corporate Affairs under the Companies {Indi
2015 (a5 amended) till the financal statements are authorised have been considered in preparing these financial state
Accounting Standard that has been ssued as of that date but was not mandatorily effective.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amengments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards}
Rules as issued from fime ta time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by 'ssuing the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards] Amendments Rules, 2623, applicable from April 1, 2023, a5 below:

Ind A5 1-P ion of Financial 51 -

This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policles rather than thelr significant accounting policles. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual geriods begnnfng on or after 01 April 2022,

Ind AS & - Accouriting PoFies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors -

This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimetas’ and Included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entittes distinguish changes in
accounting poiicies from changes In aczounting estimates. The effective date for adeption of this amendment 75 annual periads beginning ost ar after 01
April 2023

tnd AS 12 - Income Taxes -

This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption sa that it daes not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting
temporary differences. The effective date far adoption of this amendment is annual perinds beginning on or after 01 April 2025.

The Company is in tha process of evaluating the impact of the above an the financial statements.

Significant Accounting Pelicies

Statement of Compliance

The Finanelal Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indlan Accounting Standards notifled under the Companies {Indiart Accaunting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and relevant ammandment rules issued thereafter.

The financial statements were autherised for the issue by the Company's Board of Direciors on August 10, 2023

andPF of Financlal

Basis of Prep
These firancial siatemants have been prepared on the historlca] cost basis, except for certain financial instroments which are measured 3t fair values at the
and of each reporting period, as explained in accounting policles below. Historical cost s generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange far goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell am ssset or pald to transfer a fizbility in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardiess of whether that price is directly ohservable or estimated using anather valuation technigue. In estimating the fafr value of en
asset ar a hability, the Company takes inte account the characteristics af the asset or lability if market participants would take those characteristics inte
accaunt when pricing the asset ar liability at the measurement date.

In additicn, for financial reporting purpases, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs fo the
fair value measL s are ob and the signifi e of the inpurs ta the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

= Level 1 inputs are quoted prices [unadjusted) in active markets far identical assets or fiabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;
» Leval 2 inputs are inputs, other than quated pricas included within Level 1, that zre observeble for the asset or Hability, either directly or indirectly; and
= Level 3 Inputs are unabservable inputs for the asset or Rabillty.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires the Management to make estimates and assumations considered in the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities [i ing contingent liabilities) as of the date of the financial statements and the reported income and expenses during the reporting peried.
Examples of such estimates include provisian for doubtful debts/advances, provision for employee benefits, useful lives of fixed assets, lease term,
provision for contingencies etc. Management believes that the estimates used In the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonahle.
Future results may vary from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized prospectively in the year in which the estimate is revised andfor [n future years, as applicable.

€ash and Cash Equivalents (for the purpuse of Cash Flow Statement)

Cash comprises cash en hand, cheques and demand drafts on hand, halances with banks in currant 2ecounts f demand deposits, Cash equivalents are short-
terrm balances fwith an original maturity of three manths or fess from the date of isition), fighly liquid i that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank balances other than the bzlance included in cash and cash
equivalents represents balance on account of margin moeney deposit with banks and balances in earmarked Escrow accounts.

Lash Flaw Statement

Cash llows sre reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / {luss) before extrardinary items and tax is adjusted for Ihe effects of transactions of
non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past ar future cash receipts or payments. The cash flaws from operating, investing and financing activities
aof the Company are segregated based an the available information




Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited
Notes 1o the Standatane Financial Statements for the Year Ended 315t March 2023

EX

3.7

3.8

ER-:]

Functlonal and Presentation Currency

Iterns included tn the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the prirmary economic environment in which the Company
operates [i.2. the “functisnal currepcy”™). The financial statements are presented in Indlan Rupees [Rs.}, the natienal currency of India, which is the
functional currency of the Company. All the financlal information have been prasented in Indian Rupees except for share data and as etherwise stated,

Dperating Cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of tha Company and the rormal Bme between acquisition of assets and their reakization [n cash er cash
equivalents, the Company has determined Its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and labilities as current and non-
turrent.

Business Cambinations

Business cambinations in which control is acquired are accounted for using the acquisition method, othar than those between entitfes subject to common
cantrol. The consideration trensferred in 2 business combination i measured at falr value, which 1s caleutated as the surm of the acquisition date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Company, lizbilities incurred by the Company te the farmer owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Company in exchange of contral of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally recognised in Statement of Profit and toss as incurred. Contingent
cansideration, if any, s measured at Its scquisition date fair value. Subseguent changes ta the fair values are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
uniess such adj qualify as nent period adfustrments in which such it is adjusted ta the cost of acquisition.

if the Initial accounting for 2 business cambination is intomplete by the ead of the regorting periad in which the cambination oceurs, the Company reporis
provisienal amounts for the flems for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisianal amounts are adjusted during the measurement perfod, or
additional assets ar iabilities are recognized, to reflect new information abtained sbout facts and creumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounis recagrized as of that date. The measurement period is the period from the date of acquisition to the date the
Campany obtains camplete Information about facts and circumstances that exlsted as of the acguisition date. The measurement period is subject to a
maximum of one year subsequent to the acquisition date.

At the acquisition date, the identiflzble assets scquired and the liabilities assumed are recagnised at theTr fair value, except that deferred tax assets or
{iabilities related to ! benefits arrang; are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 lncome taxes and Ind AS 19 Employes
benefits respectively. Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognized separately from goodwill are initially recognized at their falr
value at the acquisition date. Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of Lhe consideration transferred, the amount of any non-cantrelling interests in
the acquiree {if any) over the net of the asquisition date amcunts of the identifiabie assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. Contracts acquired in a
husiness cambination are assessed for whather favorahie or unfavarable relative to current market terms and if such favorable or unfavorable terms exist,
the Compeny adjusts the effects of such terms in the measurement of the related assets or liabilities,

Mor-coniralling interests that are present ownarship interasts ant entitle their holdars to a propertionate share of the entity's net assets Tn the event of
{iquidation may ke initlally measurad either at fair value or at the non-centrolling interests’ propartionate share of the recognised amounts of the
auquires's identifiable net assets. Contingent lizbilities acauired in a business combinatisn are initially measurad at fair value at the date af acquisition.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Company's previously heid equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to (ts acquisition-date fair
value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recegnised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the scquires prior to the acquisition date that
hava previously been recognised in other corr hensive income are reclassified to profit or lass where such treatment would be approprigte if that
nterest were disposed of.

Froperty, Plant & Equipmenk

Property, Plant and Fquipment are stated at cost less accumulated depretiation and accumulated impairment foss {if any). The cost of Property, Piant and
Equipment comgrises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates and Indudes taxes, duties, freight, incidental expenses related to the
acquisitian and Tnstallation of the assets concernad and is net Gopds and Service Tax {GST}, wherever the credit is availed. Borrawing costs pzid during the
period of construction in respect of borrewed funds pertaining te construction / acquisition of qualifying property, slant and equipment is adjusted to the
carrying cost of the underlying property, ptant and equipment.

Any part or components of property, plant and equiprment which are separately identifiable and expected ta have a useful tife which is different from that
of the main assets are capitallzed separately, based on the technical assessment of the Management,

Advances paid towards the acquisition of Property, Plant and Eguipmeant autstanding at each halance sheet date are disclosed as "Capital Advances” under
Other Non Current Assets and cost of Property, Plant and Equipment notready te use before such date are disclosed under "Capital Work- in- Progress”.

Depredation

Deprecizble amount for assets is the cost of an asset less its estimated residual value.

Degpreciation en tangible property, plant and equipment has baen provided on the straight line method {refer Note 5.1{a] for change in methud of
depreciation effective 1st April 2022) as per the useful Tife prescribed in Schedule It te the Companies Act, 2013 except in cases af certain assets where the
management’s estimate of the useful life based on technical assessment is less than the life prescribed in Schedule 1 in which case depreciation is provided
on the useful life as assessed by the management.

Category Useful fife
Leasehold Improvements Over lease term
Mediczl Equipments 1-13 years
Office Equipments 5-8years
Vehicles B-10 years
Comipuiers A-6years
Electrical Fittings 10 years
Furniture and Fixtures 8-10 years
Lsbh Equipments 10 years

Depreciation is accelerated on property, plant and equipment, hased on their condition, usabillty ete., as per the tachnical estimates of the Management,
where necessary.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upan disposal or when no future ecanomic beneflts are expected to arise from the continued use
of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an itern of preperty, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Prafit and Loss.




Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited
Notes to the Standalone Finanzial for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

210 Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amaunt of any nos-contralling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer's praviousty held equity interest in the acquire (if any] over the net of the acquisition-date ampunts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabifizies assumed

For the purpose of fmpairment tesiing, goadwill acquired in 2 business combination i, from the sequisilion date, alfocated to each of the Company’s cash-
generating units that are expacted to banefit from the combination, Irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those
units, Cash genersting unlt to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annwally, or mere frequently when there is an indicatian that the
unit may be Impaired, If the recaverable amount of the cash generating unit is ess than its carrying smount, the impairment loss Is 2ilotated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any gaodwill allccated o the unlt and then to the other 2ssets of the unit pre rats based en the carrying amaunt of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment lass for goodwill is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. An impairment loss recognized for gaodwill is nat reversed in
subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been atlocated to 3 cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill assaciates with the
dispesed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or foss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative vaktes of the disposed operation and the pertion of the cash-generating unit retained.

3.11  Intangible Assets

intangible assets with Anite useful lives that are acquired separately are carrled at cost less accurnulated 2mortization and accumalated impairment lossas
(if any). The Intanglble assets are amortized over their respective indlvidual estimated useful lives en a straight-line basis, commencing from the date of
asset available to Company for its use. The useful life considered for the intanglble assets are as under:

Particulars Useful Lives

Software 5 years

Trademarks 10 years

Custemer Relationship 3 years

Mon-Compete Agreement Agraed term or 5 years whichever is lower

The estimated useful lIfe and amaitization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting pariod, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on prospective basis. Intanglble assets with indefinite useful Hves that are acquired separstely are carded at cost less accumutated
impalment fosses.

An Imangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future econamic benefits are expected from use of disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset measured as the difference between the net disposat proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset as recognized in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

312 h and

Expenditure on research actlvities are recognized as expense in the period [nwhich ItTs incuorred.

£n internally penerated intangible asset arising from {or fram devel phase of an internal project] is recagnized if, and cnly if, all the
following have bean demonstrated:

) the technical feasibility of completing the intangikle assets sa that it will be available for use or sale;

bj the inteation to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

] the ability to use or sell the intangible assat;

d) how the intangible asset will gererate probable future econemic benefits;

=) the availability af adequate technical, financial and ather resources to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset; and

1) the sbility to reliably measure the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

“The amount initially recopnized for internally-generated Intanglble assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible asset
first meets the recognTtion criteria fisted abova. Where no internaily-generated asset can be recognized, P i s ized in the
statement of prafit and |oss in the period in which it i incurred.

Subsequent te initial recopnition, 1 -8 ed i ihte assets are rep at cost less aca ization and
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

3.13 Impairment of Tangible and Entangihle Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible asseis to determine whether there is any
indleation that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in arder to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if anyl. Where It s not possible to estimate the recovarable amount of an ndividual asset, the Campany
estimates the recaverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a rezsonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are atso allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otheswise they are aflosated to the srrallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and t ion basis can ke ified

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangiole assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annwally, and whenever there
is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount |z the higher of fair value |ess costs to seli and vaiue Tn use, In assessing value In use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tak discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of maney and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows hzve not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an zsset {or cash-generating unit] is estimated to be lass than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset {or cash
generating unit} is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of Prafit and Loss, unless the
relevent assel is carrfed at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment |nss is treated as a revaluation decrzase.

When an impairmant |oss subsequently reverses, the carrying ameunt of the asset {or a cash generating urit] is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but 5o that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that woutd have been determined had no impairment
igss been recugnized for the asset (or cash generating unit) in pricr years, A reversat of an impairment loss is recagnized Tmmediately in profit or Joss.

The Company's policy for impairment of Goodwill ks gliven in Note 3.10 abave.
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Equity n faries and A: {§

Investment in Subsidiaries and Associates are carried at cost in the Standalone Financial Starements 3s permitted under Ind A5 27.
Inventories

lnventory of Traded Goods comprislng Opticals, Pharmaceutical Products, Contact Lenses and Accessaries and Consurmables are valued at lower of cast
ascertained using the Firstin-First-out method and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase, freight, taxes, duties and other charges incurred for
bringing the goods to the present lacation and candition and are net of GST credit, wherever credit has been availed.

Net realizable velue represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated rosts of comaletion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Due allowance is estimated and made for unusable/ non-saleable/ expired items of Inventary wherever necessary, based on the past experience of the
Company and such allowances are adjusted against the inventory carrying value.

Revenue Recognition

{i} Reverue from Operations

Revenue is maasured at the falr value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognized upon transter of cantrol of promised products of
services La custamers in an amount that reflects the consideration we exgect Lo receive in exchange for those preducts or services. Sales and Service
Income exclude Goods and Service Tax [GST) and are net of trade / volume discounts, where applicable.

Sale of products comprising Sale of Opticaf Frames ang Lens, Pharmaceutical Products, Contact Lens and related accessories and foad items is recognised on
delivery of Rems to the custamers and when contro! on goods is passed on ta the customers.

Sale of services comprising Income from Consultation, Surgeries, Treatments and Investigations performed are recognised when performance obligation is
satisfied ara point in time, on rendering the related services.

Other Operating Incomz comprises medical support services provided by the Company and is recognised on rendering the refated services.

[il) Other lacome

Interast income fram a financial asset is recognized when itis protable that the economic benefits will flow ta the Company and the amaunt of fncome can
be measured reliably, Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference in the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected |ife of the financial asset ta that asset's net carying amaunt an
initial recognition. Oividend Income is accounted for when right to receive it is established.

(fii) Cross Charges

The Company and Dr Agarwal's' Health care Limied {DAHCL) its Holding company, incor expenses such as salaries, software development and depreciation
oncommon assets etc on behalf of the group company and share the commert resaurces for the group functions. Such expenses, which are incurred for the
group, are identified, and cross-charged between the companies.

Foreign Currency Transactians

Initial Recopnition:
On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are rerorded by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Subseguent Recognition:
As at the reporting date, non monetary items which are carried [n terms of histerical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Treatment of Exchange Differences;
All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are restated at the end of accounting period at the closing exchange rate and exchange diffserences on
restaternent of all monetary items are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.




Dr. Agarwal's Health Lare Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financlal Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023
e ———— e

3.18 Employee Benedits

319

3.20

Retirement benefit cests and termination benefits:

i) Definad Benefit Plans:
Employee defined benefit plans include gratuity.

Payments to dafined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when empioyaes have renderad service entltling them ta the
contributions.

for defined benefit retiremant berefit plans, the cost of providing benefits Is determined using the projected unit credit mathed, with actuarial valuations
fieing cartied out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset
ceiling {if applicable) and the return on plan assels (exciuding net interest), is reflected immediately Tn the balance shest with a charge os credit recognired
in other comprehensive incame Tn the periad in which they gcour. Remeasurement ¢ ized in other ¢ F income is reflected immediately in
retained earnings and is not reclassified ta profit or less. Past service cost is recognized in the Statemant of profit or loss in the perfud of a plan amendment.
Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the pericd to the net defined benefit Hability or asset.

Defned benefit costs are categorized as follows:

- Service cost fincluding current service cost, past service cast, as well 3s gains and |osses on curtaliments and settlements);
- Net interest expense or Income; and

-Remeasurement

The Campany presents the first twe cemponents of defined benefit costs in prafit or loss in the line item ‘Employee benefits awpense’. Curtailment gains
and losses are accountad for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit abligation recognized in the balance sheat represents the actual deficit or surplus fn the Company's defined benefit plans. Any
surplus resulting from this calcufation is fmited to the present value of any ecenomic benefits available [n the form of refunds from the plans or reductions
in future contributions to the plans.

ion benefit and when the

A ilability for a termination benefit is recognized at the earlier of when the entity can no fonger withdraw the offer of the termin
entity recopnizes any refated restructuring costs.

The Company makes contribution to a scheme administered by the insurer to discharge gratulty liabilities to the employzes.
Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the pericd the related service is
rendered at the undiscounted amount of the Benefits expected to be paid in exchanga for that service.

iizbilities recognized in respect of short term employee henefits are measured at the undistounted amount of the benefits expected to he paid in exchange
for the related service.

Liahilities recagnized in respect of cther long term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash cutflows expected In
be made by the Company in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

i) Definad Contribution Plans
Employes defined contribution pians include provident fund and Employee state insurance.

Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance:

All emgployeas of the Company receive benefils fram Pravident Fund and Employee’s State lnsurance, which are defined contribution plans. Bath, the
employes and the Company make manthly contributions te the plan, each equaiing to 3 specified percentage of employee’s i ts. The
Company fas no further obligations under the plan beyond its monthly contributions. The Company contributes 1o the Empicyee Provident Fund and
Employee’s State Insurance scheme maintained by the Central Government of India and tha contribution thereof is charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the year in which the services are rendered by the employees.

Borrowing Costs

Barrowing costs include interest, amaortizatian of andllary costs incurred and exchange differances arising fram foreign currency borrowings to the extent
they are regarded a5 an adjustment to the interest cost. Casts in connection with the borrowing of funds to the extent not directly related to the acquisition
of qualifying assets ara charged ta the Statement of Profit and Less over the tenure of the loan. Bormowing costs, allocated to and wiilized for qualifying
assets, pertaining to the period from commenrcement of activities relating to construction / devefopment of the qualifying asset upto the date of
capitalization of such asset sre added ta the cost of the assets. Capitalization of borrowing easts 1s suspended and charged to the Staternent of Profit and
Loss during extended periods when active development activity on the qualifying assets s Interrupted.

Interest income eamed on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the barrowing.
costs eligible for capitalization.

Al other borrowing cests are recognized in profit or lass in the period in which they are incurrad.

Government Grants, Subsidies and Export Incentives

Government grants and subsidies are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the Company will camply with the conditfons attached to them
and the grants } subsidies will be received. Government grants whose primary cendition is that the Company should purchase, construct or atherwise
acquire capital assets are presented by deducting them from tha carrying value of the assets. The grant [s recognized as incame over the life of a
depreciable asset by way of a reduced deprecfation charge.

Expart benefits, [fany, are accounted for in the year of exparts based o eligibility and when there is ng uncertainty in receiving the same.
Gevernment grants in the nature of promoters' contribution like investment subsidy, where no repaymant is ardinarily expected in respect thereof, are
accounted in Reserves and Surpius in Other Equity. Government grants in the form of non-manetary assets, given at a concessional ratg, are racorded on

the hasis of thelr acquisition cost. In case the non-monetary esset is given free of cost, the grant is recorded at 3 nominal value

Other gevernment grants and subsidies are recognized as Income over the perlods necessary to match them with the casts for which they are intended to
compensate, on a systematic basis.
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Segment Repeorting

Operating segments reflect the Company's management structure and the way the financial infarmation is regularly reviewed by the Company's Chief
operating decision maker (CODM). The £ODM considers the business from both business and product perspective based on the dominant saurce, nature of
risks and returns and the internal arganization and management structure. The operating segments are the segments for which separate financial
informatien is available and for which operating profit / {loss] amounts are evaluated regolasly by the executive Management in decidlng how to allocate
resources and in assessing parformance.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are Tn Jine with the accountng policies of the Company. Segment revenue, segment expensas,
segment assels and segment llabilities have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activitles of the segment.

Inter-segment revenue, where applicatite, is accaunted on the basis of trensactions which are primarily determined based on market / fair value factors

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabfiities which relate to the Company as a whole and are not zllocable to segmants on reasanable basis are included under
"unallacated revenue [ expenses / assets / lizbilities”.

Leases

Tha Company's fease asset classes consists of |eases for buildings and medital equipments. The Campany, 3t the inception of a cantract, assesses whether
the contract is 2 lease or nat lease. A contract is, o cantains, a tease if the contract conveys the right to contral the use of an identified asset for a time in
exchange for a consideratian. This policy has been applied to contracts existing and entered into an or after 1 April 2019.

The Campany recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease Iizhility at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cest,
which camprises the initial amount of the Jease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement dafe, plus any initial diract
casts Incurred and an estimate of costs to dismante and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the slte on which [t is located,
less 2ny lease incentives received.

The right-af-use assel is subsequently depreciated using the stralght-line method frem the commencement date La the end of the lease term.

The |ease liability is initially measured at the present value af the lease paymenis that are not pafd at the commencement date, discounted using the
Cormpany's incramental barrawing rate. It is remeasured when there is a change in future jease payments arising from a thange in an index or rate, if there
is a change in the Company's estimaie of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, ar if the Company changes its assessment of
whether it will exertise a purchase, extension or termination optian. When the lease Ifability is rermeasured in this way, & corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recerded in profit or less if the carrying amaount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The Campany has elected not to recognise right-of-use zssets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or fess and
leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense pver the lease term.

Earnings Par Skare
Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the periad.

Diluied EPS is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average nember of equity shares considered for deriving basic EPS and also
welghted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon canversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion ta equity shares would decrease earmings per share from continuing operations.
Dilutive potential aquity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares
are adjusted far the praceads receivatle had the shares been actually Issued at fair value (i.e. sverage market vaiue of the outstanding shares), Dilutive
patential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive eguity shares are
adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and benus shares, as approgriate.

Taxes an lnepme

Incame tax expense represents the surn of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax expanse for the year is ascertained an the basis of ble profits tad in d: with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid as current tax expense in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of adjustment
te future Income tax liability, is considerad as tax credit and recognized as deferred tex asset when there is reasonable certainty that the Company wilt pay
narmal income tax in the future years and future ecenomic henefit associated with it wilt flow to the Company. The carrying amount is reviewed at the end
of each reparting perlod and reduced to the extent that it is na longer probakle that sufficient taxable profits will be available to aliow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is i on y diff between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Financial Statements and the
carrespording tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally i} for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are gencrally recognized for )l deductible temporary differences to the axtent that it is probakle that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temparary differences can be utifized. Such deferred tax assets and liahillties are nat recognized if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition [other than in & business combination) of assets and liabilities Tn 2 transzclion that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the aceaunting prafit.

The carrying amaunt of deferred tax assets /s reviewed at the end of sach reporting perfod and reduced to the extent that it Is no longer prabable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset ta be recovered.

Deferred tax liabifities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the fiability is settled or the asset reafized,
based on tax rates [and tax Jaws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurament of deferred tax liabitities and assets reflacts the tex consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expecis, at
the end of the reporting period, to recover or sebile the carrying amaunt of |ts assets and liabilities
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Pr C Liabilities and G Assets

A provisian is recognized when the Company has a present obi|gation {legal or constnictive) as a result of past events and It is prababla that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a refiable estimate can be made. Provisions are determined based on the best
estimate required to settle the chligation at the batance sheet date and measured using the present value of cash flews estimated to settle the present
obligatlans {when the effect of time vaiue of money is materlal). These are revlewed at each batance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
astimates.

Contingent liabiity Is disclased for

{1 Possible chligations which will be confirmed anly by future events not wholly within the cantral of the Company or

{fi) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an cutflow of resources will be required to settle 1he chiigation or a reliabte
estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made,

The Campany does nok recognize a cantingent liahility but discloses s existence in the Financfal Statements, Contingent assets are only disclosed whan itis
probable that the aconomic benefits will flow to the entity.

insurance clalms

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basls of claims admitted / expected 10 be admitted and 1o the extent that the amount recoverahle can be
measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect ultimate ccllection.

financial instruments

Initial Recugnition

Financial assets and financizl liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes & party i the contractual provisions of the instrument. Finantial assets
and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition or issue of financial asszts and financial
liabilities {ather than financial assets snd financial liabilities at fair value through profit ar loss [FYTPL)] are added 1o or deducted from the fair value

measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financlal assets and
finznelal Habhlities at fair value through profit and lass are iImmediately recognfzed In the statement of profit and loss.

Financial Assets
[a) ition and initial

[i} The Company initizlly recognizes loans and advances, deposits and subordinated lizbilities on the Zate on which they originate, All other financial
instruments {ncluding regular way purchases and sales of financial assets) are recognized on the trade date, which is the date on which the Campany
becomes a party ta the cantractual provisions of the instrument. A financial asset or izhility is initially measured at falr value plus, for an item nat at F¥TPL,
transaction costs that are directly atiributable to its acquisitan or issue.

b} Classification of firandal assets

On initiat recognition, a financial asset is cfassified to be measured at amertized cost, fair value through other comprehensive ineame [FYTOCI) or FYTPL
Afinancial asset is measured at amortized costifit meets hoth of the following conditions and is not designated at FUTPL:

= The asset Is hetd within a business mode| whose ohjectivi i3 to hold assets to collect eantractual cash flows; and

+ The centractual terms of the financial asset give rise on spetified dates ta cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount autstanding.

Far the impairment palley in finandal assets measured at amortized cost, refer Note 3.27.1 (2)

A debt instrument is classified as FYTOC! only H it meets both of the following cond|tions and is not recognized at FVTPL:

= The asset is held within a business mode| whose objective is achieved by both collecting cantractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

» The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates ta cash Tiows that are solely payments of principal and interest an the principal

ameount outstanding.

All ather financiai assets are subsequenily rmeasured at fair value,
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[c] Effestive interest method

The effective interest method is a methed of calculating the amortized cost of 2 debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exacdy discounts estimated future cash receipts {including all fees and points paid or received that form an
Integral part of the effactive [nterest rate, transaction costs and other preriums or discaunts) through the axpected fe of the debt instrument, or where
apgropriate, a shorter period, to the gross earrying amount on initial recognition.

Jncorme is recognized an an effective Interest hasis for debt Instruments other than those fnancial assets classifiad a5 at FVTEL Interest income is
recognized in profit or lass and is included in the "Other Income” line itern.

[d] FInanclal assets az falr value through profit or joss [FVTPL)

Deht ipstruments that do not meet the amaortized cost criteria or FYTOC criteria [see abave) are measured at FYTPL. In additian, debt instruments that
meet the amortized cost criteria or the FYTOCI eriteria but are designated as at FYTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortized cost criterla or debt instruments that meer the FVTOC! criteria may be designated as at FYTPL upen initial
recognition |f swch designatian eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise rom measuring assets or
liabilities or recognizing the gains and lasses on them on different bases. The Company has not designated any debt instrumant as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FUTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized in
profit or |oss. The net gain or loss rerognized in profit or Joss incorporates any dividend or nterest earned on the financlal assetand Is Included in the ‘Other
income’ fine Ttem. Dividend on financial assets at FYTPL is recognized when the Company's right te raceive the dividends is established, it fs prabable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and
the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

(&) Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit lass madel for recognizing impairment foss on financial assets measured at amortized cost, debt Instruments at
FVTOC!, trade receivables and other contractual rights to receive cash or other financis] asset.

Expected credit |nsses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due te the Campany [n accordance with the contractand all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive
fi.e. all cash shortfalis), discounted at the original effective interest rate {or credit-adjusied effactiva interest rate for purchased ar originated credit-
impaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment,
extenslen, call and similar opticns) threugh the expected life of that finandal instrument.

The Campany measures the lass allowance for a financial instrument at an amount aqual to the lifatime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that
financlal instrument has increased slgnificantly since inltial recagnition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since inftial
recognition, the Campany measures the joss allowance for that financial instrumant at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month
expected credit losses are portion of the [ife-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shartfalls that will result iFdefault ocours within the
12 manths after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted aver the next 12 months.

For trade receivables, the Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal 1o lifetime expected credit losses. Further, far the purpose of
measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade recelvables, the Company has Lsed a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109, This
expected cradit loss alowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes inte accaunt historical credit loss experdence and adjusted for forward-
Iocking informatian.

(f) eracognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights ta the cash flows from the asset expire, or when It transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset 10 ancther party. If the Company nefther transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rawards of ownership and continues to control the transterred asset, the Company recognizes ks retained interest in the asset and an assaciated Iabiity for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retams substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of & transferred financial asset, the Company
continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collzteralized barrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecopaition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference betwees the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration recelved and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recagnized in other comprehensive income and ace lated in equity is 7 ized in profit or
loss if such galn o toss would have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss on disposal of that financhal asset.

On derecognition of 2 financial asset other than in its entirety {e.g. when the Company retains an option to repurchase past of a transferred asset), the
Company allacates the previous camrylng @maunt of the financlal asset between the part it continues to recognlze under continuing Involvement, and the
part it no lenger recognizes on the basis of the refative fair values of those parts on the dete of the transfer. The difference between the camrying amaunt
allocated ta the part that is no longer recognized and the surm of the consideration recelved for the part no fenger recognized and any cumulative gain or
loss allotated to it that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in profit of |oss if such gain or loss woufd have atherwise been
recagnized in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulativa gain or loss that had been recognized in ather comprehensive income s
allocated between the part that continues to be recognized and the part that is no longer recognized on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.




Or. Agarwal's Health Care Limited
Mates to the Standalone Financlal for the Year Ended 315t March 2023

327.2

{E) Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of rach
reporting period.

~ For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortized cost and FYTPL, the exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss.

« Changes in carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FYTOCI relating ta changes in foreign currency rates are recognized in other
womprehensive income.

+ For the purposes of recognizing foreign exchange gains or losses, FVTOC! debt instrumants are treated as financial assets measured at amortized cost.
Thus, the exchange differences on the amortized cost are racognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI

financial assets are ized in other comp ive incame.

FINANCIAL LIABILUITIES AND EQUITY INSTRUUMENTS

[a) Classtcation as debt ar equity:

Financtal liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according 1o the substance of the contractual arrangements entered inte
and the definittens of a finandal Habillty and an equity instrumaent.

b} Equity Instruments:

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its Babillties. Equily instruments
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs, Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments Is recognized and deducted directly
in equity. No gain or |oss is recegnized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity Instruments.

{c) Finantial Liabilities at FVTPL:
Financial liabiktes are classified as at FYTPL when the financial liatility is either held For trading or it is designated as at FVTAL.

A financial liability is classified as held far trading if:

= it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

« on initial recognition it is part of a pertfalio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking;

A financial liabifity othar than a financial lizbility hetd for trading may he designated as at FYTPL upon inikizl recognitien ift

« such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would atherwise arise;ar

= the financial liability farms part of  group of financial assets of financial izbiMies or both, which is managed and Tts performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with the Company's documented risk manzgemant or knvestment strategy, and infarmation ahout the grouping is provided
Tnternally on that basls;

[d] Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortized cost:

Financial llahilittes that are not held-for-trading and are nat designated as at FVTPL are measured at amertized cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. The carrying amounts of firancial liabilitles that are subseguently measured at amortized cost are determined based on the effective mterest
method. [nterest expense that is not capitalized a5 part of casts of an asset is included in the finance costs’ nz item.

The effertiva interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cast of 2 financial Rahllity and of alincating interest expensa over the relevant
period. The effective Inierest rale is the rate that exactly discounts estimated futire cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discaunts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or
(where zpproprizte] & shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

(e] Foreign exchange gains and losses:
for financral lisbillties that are denominated in a foreipn currency and measured at smortized cast at the end of each reporting period, the foreign
exchange gains and |osses are determined based on amortized cost of the instruments and are recagnized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The fair vzlue of the financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end
of the reparting perfod. For financial llabilities that are measured at FYTPL, the foreign exchange component farms part of the fair value gains or |osses
recognized in the Statement of profit and Loss.

[f) Derecognition of financial liabifities:

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's chligations are discharged, mancelled or they expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liakility derecagnized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.
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3.28 Goods & Serivce Tax Input Credit
Goods & Serivce Tax Input Credit is accounted for in the baoks durlag the period in which the underlying senvice received [s accounted and where there is
no uncertainty in avaifng/utilizing the same.

3.29 Exceptional ltems

Fxceptional [tems are items of income and expenses which are of such size, nature or incidence that their separate disclosure is relevant Lo explain the
performance of the Company.

3.3

-

Share Based Payments :

During the year the Company had introduced the employee stock option scheme. Under the plan, the empioyees and dottors of the Company and its
subsidairies are granted shares and other stock awards of the Company, in accardance with the terms and cenditions as speciffed in the plan. The plan is
assessed, managed end administered by the Company, whose shares and share based benefits have been granted to the employaes and doctars of the
Company, The Company currently operates the plan / schema of employee stack optian ["ESOP") and a share apprediation rights {"SAR"). The Company has
accounted for the amount of expense under Ind AS 102 considering the invoice recaived from the holding company taking into account the valuatian
carvigt! out in respect of the same and has made the related disclosures required under INDAS 102 based on information obtained [rom the holding
company {Refer Note 43)

ESOPs:
Equity settled share Based payments to the employees of the company are measured at the fair valug of the equity instruments at the grant date.

Compensation expense far the Employee Stock Opticn Plan {"ESOPT) is measured at the option value as or grant date and the cost of the optian will be
amortised on a systematic basis which reflects pattern of the vesting of the aptions over the pericd of 4 years.

SARs;

Lash settied share based payments to the dactors of the company s remeasured at the value of opticn at the end of every reporting periad. Compensation
exgense for the Share Appreciation Rights ("SARY) will be accounted at every reporting date till the date of exerclse of the SARs based on the informatian
provided by the holding company {Refer Note 42.4).

4 Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The preparation of Financial Statements in canformity with Ind AS requires r te make j s and il that affect the
applicatian of accounting palicies and the reported amounts of assets, [abllities, income and expenses and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty
about the assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a materiat adjustment 1o the carrying value of assets or liabilities alfected in
future periods.

Estimates and underlying assumptians are reviawed on an ongeing basis. R ons 1o accounting estimates ere recagnized in the geriod in which the

estimates are revised and future periods arae affected.

In particular, information abeut significant aress of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting polices that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are included in the following notes:

(i} Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment {Refer Note 3.9}

(i1} Useful lives of Intangible assets {Refer Note 3.11)

(iii) Assets and obligations relating to emplayee benefits {Refer Note 3.18)

{iv} Valuatien and measurement of incorna taxes and deferred taxes (Refer Note 3.24}

{v} Provisigns for disputed statutery and other mattess {Refer Note 3.15)

{vi) Valuatien of Geadwill and intangible asstes an business combinations {Refer Note 3.8}
{vii) Imgairment of Goodwill [Refer Nate 3.10)

{viii} Allawance for expected credit losses (Refer Note 3.27. 1(e])

{ix} Fair value of Financlal Assets and Liabilittes {Refer Note 3.27.1 and 3.22.2)

{x) Lease Term of Leases entered by the Company (Refer Note 3.22}

Determination of functional currency;
Currency of the primary economic epviranment tn which the Company operates [“the functional currency®) is Indian Rupee (INR) in which the campany
primarily enerstes and expends cash. Accordingly, the Management has assessed its functional currency to be Indian Rupea {INR).
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Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited
Nates forming part of the Standafone Financial Staternents for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

6

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

{Amaunt in Rs. Crores)

Particulars

As at 31st March

As at 31st March

6.1

2023 W22
Carrying amounts of:
Right-of-use assets 260.52 130.25
Total 260.52 130.25
Detaills of movement in the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets
{Amount in Rs. Crores}
Dascription of Assets Aedical Equi it Leasehold lard Total

1- Grass careying value
As at 1 April 2021 3.92 145,51 71.50 226.92
Additions 39.58 = 39.98
Disposals / Adjustments during the year 2 {1.89) [77.50) (79.39)
As at 315t March 2022 3892 183.60 - 187.52
As at 1 April 2022 3.52 183.60 - 187.52
Additions 2.25 162.38 164.63
Acquisitions through business combinations {Refer - =
Note 7.3.1)
Disposals / Adjustments during the year i {1.22} {122}
As at 31st March 2023 6.17 344.76 - 350.92

Il. Accumulated depreciation and impairment
As at 1 April 2021 196 34.23 2467 38.86
Lharge for the year 0.40 21.25 124 22.89
Disposals / Adjustments during the year - {0.57) (3.91) {4.48)
As at 31st March 2022 2.36 54.91 - 57.27
As at 1 April 2022 236 54.91 - 5727
Charge for the year 0.45 3236 - 32481
Disposals / Adjustments during the year . 0.33 - 0.33
As at 31st March 2023 2,81 B7.60 = 90.41

Net carrying value as at 31st March 2023 336 257.16 - 260.52

Net carrying value as at 315t March 2022 1.56 128,69 - 130.25




Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financlal Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

7 INTAWNGIBLE ASSETS
{Amount in Rs. Crores)

As at 31st March As at 3ist March

Particolars 2023 2022
Canrying amounts of ;
Soodwill 216.21 90.23
Subtotal - Goadwill (A} 216.21 90.23
Trademarks 0.01 0.01
Computer software 0.24 0.84
Customer Relationship 19.56 2.78
Nan Compete Agreement 154.65 28.77
Subtotal - Other Intangibles {8) 214.50 32.20
Intangibles under development {C} = -
Grand Total [A+B+C] 430.71 122.43
7.1 Details of movement in the ying amounts of goodwill and other ible assets
[Ampeunt in Rs. Crores)
Peseription of Assets Goodwill Trad L d c fon Canpete Total
Software |Relationship| Ag
I, Gross carrying value
As at 1 April 2021 68.01 0.04 533 3.43 28.26 105.07
Additions 22.22 = a.18 209 2146 45.95
Additions through business combinatign P - . = - -
Disposals / Deletions during the year - - - - - =
As at 31st March 2022 90,23 004 5.51 5.52 49.72 151.02
As at 1 April 2022 90.23 0.04 §.5% 5.52 43.72 151.02
Additions = 0.15 3 2.13 2.28
Additions through business cemkbination {Refer 17598 - 19.64 193.51 339.53
Naote 7.3.1)
Disposals / Deletions during the year - - E 3 £ =
As at 31st March 2023 21621 0.04 5.66 25.16 24576 492.83
1. Accumulated amortization and impairment
As at 1 April 2021 - Q.02 3.85 182 9.99 15.68
Amortization charge for the year - Q.01 1.02 0.76 7.42 9,21
Disgosals / Deletions during the year - - - = - =
Impairment loss far the year - - - 0.16 3.54 3.70
As at 31st March 2022 - 0.03 4.87 2.74 20.55 28,59
As at 1 Aprif 2022 - 0.03 4.87 274 20.55 2859
Aronrtization charge for the year - - 0.55 2.86 30.12 3353
Disposals / Deletions during tha year - - - - - -
As at 31st March 2023 = 003 5.42 5.60 51.07 62.12
Nat carrying value as at 31st March 2023 216.21 9,01 .24 19.56 194.69 430,11
Nai carrying value as at 31st March 2022 90.23 0.01 0.64 278 28.77 122,43

7.2 Breakup of Goodwill
{Amount in Rs. Crares]
As at 31st March Asat 31st March

Particulars of Cash Generating Unit

2023 2022
Hospital at Nellore 0.45 0.45
Hospltal at Hyderabad 0.05 095
Hospital at Guntur 0.40 0.40
Hospitat at Pune (1} 12.24 12.24
Hospitai at Bengaluru {1} 2.37 2.37
Hospital at Bengaluru {2} 16.76 16.76
Hospital at indore 9.30 9.30
Hospital at bai (1) 4.28 4.28
Hospital at Caim 0.1¢ 0.10
Hospital at Kashik 14.28 14.28
Hospital at Viiayawada 4.52 4.52
Hospital at Purte (2) 332 3.32
Hospital at Mumbai (2) 22.15 22.14
Hospital at Pure (2) 3.05 -
Hospital at Punjah 4.00 -
Hospital at Mchalf 5.81 e
Hospital at Panchkula 3.44 -
Hospital a1 Fune {4) 6.33 -
Hospital at Madanapalte 0.57 5
Hospital at Bhavnagar 3.93 .
Haosphtal at Surat 13.09 E
Hospital at Vapi 1.94 -
Hospital at Jammu 5.92 5
Hospital at Mumbai {3) 23.22 -
Hespital at Satara 0.03 o
Hospital at Davanagere R.69 -
Hospital at Mumbai {4) 71 -
Haospital at Madurai 38.79 -
Total 216.21 30.23

Nate : As on 31 March 2023, Goodwill balarices have been tested for impairment and no provision required to be recorded in accerdance with the requirements of Ind AS 36.
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Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limitad

Notes forming part of the

Financlal Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

8 INVESTMENTS
[Amount in Rs. Crores)
Particulars As at 315t March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Non-current, at cost
{a)  investmentin Equity Instruments of Subsidiary - Quoted, at Cost

DOr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited (Refer Note (i) below]

As at 31 March 2023 - 3,372,408 Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid 3392 33.92
As 2t 31 March 2022 - 3,372,408 Shares of Rs. 10 each Fully paid
{b}  Investmentin Equity Instruments of Subsidiary - Unquoted, 2t Cost
Orbit Healtheare Services {Mauritius} Limited (Refer Note (i)} below)
As at 31 March 2023 - 617,894,737 Ordinary Shares of MLUR. 0.57 each fully paid 83.67 £3.67

- - 64,226,001 Ordinary Shares of MUR. 1 each fully paid
As at 31 March 2022 - 617,894,737 Ordinary Shares of MUR, 0.57 each fully paid
- -64,426,001 Ordinary Shares of MUR. 1 each fully paid
e} Investment in Equity Instruments of Assaciate - Unguoted, at Cost
IdezRx Services Private Limited {Rafer Note {iii) below}
As at 31 March 2023 - 49,254 Equity Shares of Rs. 1 each fully paid 2.01 201
As at 31 March 2022 - 43,254 Equity Shares of Rs. 1 each fully paid
[d} Investment in Equity instruments of Subsidiary - Unquoted, at Cost
Elisar Life Stiences Private Limited { Refer Note [iv) below) 181 1.81
As at 31 March 2023 - 18,05,518 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fuily paid
As at 31 March 2021- 18,05,618 Egquity Shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid

(&)  Investment in Equity Instruments of Subs|diary - Unquoted, at Cost 32.25 26.00
Aditya lyot Eye Hosgital (P] Ltd. { Refer Note {v} below]
As at 31 March 2023 - 215,062 Equity Shares of 8s. 100 each fully paid
As at 3] March 2022 - 173,410 Equity Shares of fis. 100 each fully paid
Total 153.66 147.41
Notes:

{i} The Company had entered intp a Share Purchase Agreement dated 11 January 2011, with the promoters of Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited [DAEHL) to purchase
2,472,408 Equity Shares of DAEHL, comprising 54.5424% of the total Equity Share Capital of DAEHL, for which the Company proposed to issue Equity Shares of Rs. 10
each of the Company as consideration in the ratio of 1 Share of the Company for every 3.12 Shares of DAEHL.

Bursuant to the same, during the year ended 31 March 2012, in accordance with Securities and Exchange Baard of Indiz [Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulatians, 1997, the Company had acquired 900,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each (being 20% of the total share capital of DAEHL) at a price of Rs. 159 per Equity Share
through Open Offer to the sharehelders of DAEHL for a total consideration of Rs. 14.31 Crores.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, past completion of the open offer, the Company had acquired 2,472,408 shares from the promaters of DAEHL in the month of
April 2012 at the agreed price of Rs. 79.33 per Equity Share for a total consideration of Rs. 19.62 Crores and as a result thereof, DAERL became the subsidiary of the
Company with effect from 2 April 2012. The Company discharged the consideration by way allotting 752,089 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each (at a premium of Rs. 237.6188
per £quity Share) of the Campany to the promaters of DAEHL at its Board Meeting helet on 26 April 2012, The premium on these Equity Shares amounting to Rs. 18.82
Crores was credited to the securlties premium account.

As at 31 March 2023, the Company [s holding 71.7534%, of the total Equity Share Capital of DAEHL.

{ii) During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company has acquired 1 ordinary shares of MUR 1 each, of Orbit Healthcare Services {Mauritius) Limited, from
International Securities Limitad on 10 January 2017 for a ni consideration. The Company also subscribed to additional 100,006 Ordinary Shares of MUR 1 each for Rs.
0.02 Crares an 9 February 2017. The same has heen approved in the Shareholders meeting held on 2 lanuary 2017.

During the periad ended 31 March 2018, the Company has subscrited fa 64,326,000 ordinary shares of MUR 1 each in various tranches for Rs. 12.57 Crares and the
sarme has been aflorted.

Further, during the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company had subscribed to 617,864,737 ordinary shares of MUR 0.57 each for Rs. 70.74 Crores and the same was
aliotted on 21 March 2019.

As at 31 March 2023, the Company is halding 100% of the total equity share capital of Grbit Healtheare Services [Mauritius} Limited.

(7} Pursuant to an investment agreement dated 12 lanuary 2017 entered inte by the Company with the pramaters of Idearx Services Private Limited {'ldeanc'} and
Idears, the Company has purchased 49,254 shares of Rs. 1 each {at a premium of Rs. 407.09 each] for Rs. 2.01 Crores approved in its general meeting held on 2 lanuary
2017.

As at 31 March 2023, the Company is holding 14.71% of the total equity share capital of Idearx Services Private Limited

{iv} Pursuant to the Board Resolution dated 03 September 2019, the Board bas approved the transfer of Elisar Aesearch and Develapment undartaking of the Campany
1o Elisar Lifesciences Private Limited, for a consideration of 18,05,518 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 e2ch and Fare value af Rs.10 each amouting to Rs. 1.81 Crores.

As at 31 March 2023, the Company is holding 76% of the total equity share capital of Elisar Lifesciences Private Limited

{v} Pursuant to the Share purchase agreement dated D8 October 2021 entered into by the Company with the pramaters of Aditya Iyot Eye Hospital Frivate Limited
{'AIEHPL') and AJEHPL, the Company has entered into the share purchase agreement of 3,40,020 shares of Rs. 100 each {at a premium of Rs. 1400 each).

As at 31 March 2023, the Company is holding 63.25% of the total equity share capital of Aditya lyot Eye Hespltal Private Limited.

As at 31 March 2022, the Company was holding 51% of the tatal equity share capital of Aditya Jyot Eye Hospital Private Limited.

Particulars

As at 31stMarch 2023

As at 31st March 2022

(a)

O]

Aggragate book value of guoted investments
Aggragate market value of quoted investments
Aggregate bock value of unguoted investmants

3392
308.68
119.74

EER:F]
246.51
113.49
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(A} Leans

{Amount [n Rs. Crores}

Particulars

As a1 31st March 2023

As at 315t March 2022

Nen-current, at amortized cost
{a} Loans to related parties, Unsecured {Refer Note 38 & Note 16 and notes below)]

- Considered good and recoverable 1.89 21.08

- Considerad daubtful 2501 308

Less : Provision for doustful loans and advancas (25.01) (3.09)

Total 1.89 21.08
Notes:

{1} Pursuant ta the Board resahition dated 31 May 2021, the Company has canverted its outstanding short term loans into leng term loans granted to Elisar Life Sciences
Private Limited {Elisar}. The managsment caried out an impairment analysis of carrying value of Investments as at 31 March 2023 INR 1.21 crores (as of 31 March 2022
IR 1.81 crares) as well as foan as of 31 March 2023 INR 26.08 crores and accrued interest of INR 7.29 grores {loan as of 31 March 2022 INR 24.17 crores and accrued
interest af INR 4.11 crores) given to Elisar using the discounted cash flow methad. Based on impairment sssessment, management has recognised a provisicn as of 31
March 2023 iNA 32.30 crores {as of 31 March 2022 INR 3.0% crores) against the outstanding loan balance. The additianal provision of Rs. 29.20 crores made during the
current year has been recognised in the Statement of Profit and Lass and disclosed as an exceptional iter.

(Amount In Rs. Crores}

s5ue expenses is adjusted against security premism in the F¥ 2022-23,

11 INVENTORIES {at lower of cost and net realizable value)

Particulars As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Mon - current
Due from private company in which director of the Company is a director In the private compan 1.89 21.08
9({B} Other financial assets
{Amount in Rs, Crores)
Particutars As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Non-current, at amartized cast
{a) Rental Deposits
- Others 17.00 11.57
{b) Security deposits 0.59 0.7a
Total 17.59 12.36
10 OTHER ASSETS [Unsecured, Considered good)
{Arnount in Rs. Crores)
Particulars As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Other non-current assets
(g)  Capital Advances 436 22
Total 4.36 2.2
Other current assets
(2) Prepaid Expenses 4.37 1.40
{b)  Advances to Supplers 0.98 172
{c} Employee Advances 001 0.02
d) Balances with Gavemment Authoritias
- Input Credit Receivables 1.77 3.a0
{e)  Prepaid share issue expanses {refer note below) - 116
Total 7.13 7.80
Note;

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the company inturred an amaount of INR 1.16 crores towards fund raise which got cancluded in FY2022-23. This amount is shown as prepaid share

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particufars

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

{2}  Traded Goods

realizabfe value

- Qpticals 5.80 4.55
- Pharmaceutical Products 472 281
- Contact Lens and Accessories 138 0.7
{b}  Consumables (goods held for use in rendering services) 835 8.07
{c)  Clinical 1tems and Equipments held for trading 0.04 1.38
Total 20.33 17.51
Notes:
{Amount in Rs. Creres)
Sl No Particulars For the Yearended 31st March 2023 For the Year anded 31st
March 2022
1 |The cost of inventories recognized s an expense during the year 146.76 91.3%
2 |The cost of inventories recognized as an expense, includes write downs of inventory to net 4.12 G.37
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Notes farming part of the Standal

2 (B} INVESTMENTS - CURRENT

[Amaount in Rs. Crares]

Particulars

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Current Investments - carried at Fair Value threugh Profit & Loss

fal  Investments in Mutual Funds {quoted, fully paid-up}
{1} SBI Liquid Fund growth
As at 31 March 2023 - 29,136 units @ 3,523.30 NAV per unit
As at 31 March 2022 - Nil

[ii} Invesco tndia Ultra Short Term Fund - Direct Plan Growth {MT-D1)
As at 31 March 2023 - 1,494 units @ 2,435.78 NAV per unit
As at 31 March 2022 - Nil

{iil} Sundaram Liguid Fung
As 2t 31 March 2023 - 50,487 units @ 1,986.65 NAV per unit
As 2t 31 March 2022 - Nit

[iv) HS8C Overnight Fund - Direct grawth
As at 31 March 2023 - 110,344 units @ 1,173.46 NAV per unit
As at 31 March 2022 - Vil

10.27

0.26

10.03

13.00

Total

33466

[Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars

As at 31st March 2023

Asat 31st March 2022

(3] Ageregate book value of guoted investments
Aggregate market value of quoted investments

33.66
33.66
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12 INCOME TAX

12.1 Nan-current income tax assets

Amount in Rs. Crores;

Particulars

As at 31st March
2023

As at 31st March
2022

incame tax payments made against returns fled /demands received {including taxes deducted at source)

28.35

17.49

Tax Refund receivable (net)

28,39

17.49

12.2 Income tax expense

Amountin As, Crores

As at 31st March

As at 315t March

Particulars 2083 2023
{A.1) Income Tax recognized in statement of profit and loss
{i) Current Tax:
- in respect of current year 1.57 -
Total (A} 1.57
(¥} Deferred Tax:
- In respect of current year {39.00) 0.52
Total {B) {39.00) 0.52
Total Income tax expense r d in profit and joss account {A+B) (37.43) 0.52
{A.3) Reconciliation of income tax and the ing profit multiplied by Company's ic tax rate:
Profit / {Lass} before tax after exceptional items {5.84) [D.95)
Income Tax using the Company's domestic Tax rate {1.47) (0.24)
Tax Effect of :
- adjustment on tax impact of exceptienal items {5.44)
- Adjustment towards recognition of deferred tax asset on hrought ferward losses and depreciation 28.12 (5.41)
- Reversal of deferred taxincluding MAT credit relating to AEIPL, merged entity - 0.52
- Deferred Tax Credit not recognized till Y 22 and recognised in current year (Refer Note 13.2} (57.28} 5.65
- Effact of expenses that are non-deductible in determining taxable profit 3.03 -
- Others (4.28) 2
Tax enp ized in of profit or foss frem continuing operations {37.43) .52

taxable prafits under Indian Income Tax Laws.

The tax rate used for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 reconciliations ahove are the corparate tax rate of 25.17% payable by carporate entities in India on
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13 DEFERRED TAXES

13.1 Deferred Tax Balances

for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

Amaunt in Rs. Croves)

h As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars
2023 2022
The following is the analysis of the net deferred tax asset/ {lizbility} position as presented in the financial statements
Beferred tax assets 39.00
Deferred tax liabilities =
Net Deferred tax Labilities 39.00 =
13.2 Movemnent in Deferred Tax Balances
A. For the Year Ended 31st March 2023
(Amount in Rs. Crores|
Charge/(Credit) recognized in
o i Asat 31st March
Particulars s Sl Statement of o .| Directly in Other S
2022 Comprehensi N 2023
Profit and Loss Equity
ve Income
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets / (deferred tax liabilities}
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangfble Assets 100 5.05 P - 505
Employee Beneflts 077 0.71 b = 148
Provision for Contingancy 202 - = - 0.02
Provision for Expected Credit Loss 34 1.15 E = 4.59
Brought Forward Loss and Unabsorbed Depreciation 45.9% (2B.12) - 17.87
Valuation of Investments - - -
Other items 4.49 (1.24} 3.25
Lease assets net of lease ilabillties 1.68 4.05 5.73
Less: Vafuation Allowance {57.40) 57.40 - - -
Other items {0.25) 0.25 - -
MAT Credit D.25 {0.25) 3 ]
et Tax Asset f[Liabilities] 0.00 39.00 - - 39.00
8. For the Year Ended 31 March 2022
{Amount in Rs. Crares}
Charge/[Credit) recognized in
5 As at 1 April . As at 31st March
Particulars P statement of Other .| Directlyin Other
2021 Comprehensi N 2022
Profit and Loss Equity
ve Income
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets / [deferred tax liabilities}
Froperty, Plant and Equipment and intangible Assets 373 (2.73} - - 1.00
Employee Benefits .56 0231 T - 077
Frovision for Contingency 002 = # - 0.02
Provision for Expected Credit Loss 247 133 - 3.44
Brought Ferward Loss and Urizbsorbed Depreciation 40.04 5.96 - 45.99
Valuation of Investments - - 5 - -
Other items 161 0.88 - 4,49
Lease assets net of leass liabilities LeB o - 1568
Less: Valuation Allowance (51.75} {5.65) - b {57,960}
Other items 027 {0.52) [C.25)
MAT Credit 0.25 3 0.25
Net Tax Asset /{Llabilities} 0.52 (0.52) - - 0.00

Notes

The Company has taxable profits during the year and hasis the projections and performance of the Company there is reasonable certainty with convincing evidence af
utilizing all the brought forward lossesfdepreciation in next 2 years. Considering the same, the Company had recognized Deferred Tax Asset during the year amaunting to Rs.

39.00 crores {ret).
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14

14.1

4.2

143

TRADFE RECEIVABLES
{Amaunt in Rs. Crores}
Particulats As at 31stMarch | As at 31st March
2023 2022
Current
{a) Undisputed Trade Receivables -Considered good 57.96 44.71
'Allowanee for daubtfut debts - considered goed {18.24] {13.68)
{b) Undisputed Trade Receivables -Cansidered doubtful J =
"Aifowance for doubtful debts - considered doubtful - o
{c] Disputed Trade Receivables ~ Considered good B _
{d) Disputed Trade Receivables -Considerad doubtful = =
Total 39.72 30.53
As at 31st March 2023 {Amount in Rs, Crares)
Particulars
Less than 6| 6 ths -
e e manths=) 2years | 2-3years | More than 2 years Total
manths Iyear
() Undisputed Trade Receivables -Cansidered good 33.03 1224 8.61 225 183 57.96
‘Allowance for doubtful debts - censidered good {5.45) {3.86) {5.09) .01} (1.83) {18.22)
{h} Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk - - - = - =
(c} Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired N - - N N N
(d} Disputed Trade Receivables -Cansidered good - - - - - S
{e) Disputed Trade Receivahles -which have significant Increase in credit risk - - - . - o
{f) Disputed Trade Receivables -credit impaired - - - = - -
Total 27.58 538 3.52 Q.24 .00 359.72
As at 31st March 2022 {Amount in Rs. Crores)
Particulars Less than 6| 6 months -
1- 2-3 M Total
months 1year Ayears years ore than 2 years
{a] Undisputed Trade Recelvablas -Considered good 648 6.00 5.52 478 1.43 48321
‘Allowznce far doubtful debts - considered goaod 352 {1.71) {2.89) (3.84} {1.32} {13.68}
{b) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - = %
{c} Uindisputed Trade Recetvables - credit impaired = - i
{¢) Disputed Trade Receivables -Considered good - - - - - -
{e} Disputed Trade Receivables -which have signlficant incrasse in credit risk - - - - -
{f) Bisputed Trade Recelvables -credit impaired - - - - - -
Total 22.56 4.29 2.63 0.94 11 30.53

Credit period and risk

Significant portion of the Company's business is against receipt of advance. Credit is provided mainty to Insurance Cempanies, Corporate customers and cusiomers covered by
Gouernment accorded heaith benefits. The Insurance Companies are required to maintain minimum reserve levels and pre-approve the insurance ciaim, Government undertakings
and the Corparate Customars are enterprises with high credit ratings. Accordingly, the Company’s exposure ta credit risk in relation to trade recelvables s low.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally due immediately when the invoice is raised. OF the Trade Receiveble as at 31 March 2023, Rs. 31.78 Crores {As at 31
March 2022: Rs, 18.62 crores} are due from six of the Campany's customers T.e. having mere than 5% of the total outstanding trade retceivable balance. There are no ather
customers who represent more than 5% of the total balance of irade receivables,

Na trade receivable are due from directors ar other officers of the Company either severally or jeintly with any other person. Nor any trade receivahle are due fram firms or private
campanies respectively in which any directar Is a partner, a director or a member.

Expected credit loss allowance

The Company has used a practical expadient by computing the expected loss allowanee for trade receivables based on provision matrix, The provision matrix takes into sccount the
histarica! credit loss experience and adjustments for forward logking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due and
the rates as given in the pravision matrix, considering the amauats dize from the government undertakings and the other undertakings.

The provisian matrix at the end of the reparting perlad {31 March 2023} is as fallows:

Expected Credit
Particulars loss (%)
1-90 days past due 7% 10 24%
$1-180 days pasi due 22% to 50%
181-270 days pest due Z7% ta 59%
271-360 days past due 35% to 60%
361-450 days past due 37% to 100%
451-560 days past due A44% to 100%
541-630 days past due 515 ta 100%
630-720 days past due 61% to 100%
720-810 days past due 64% to 100%
More than 810 days past due 5 100%
1n the all for ivables {including expected credit loss alt a) {Amuount in Rs. Crores)
Particulars 202223 2021-22
Bzlance at beginning of the year 13.68 B.38
{Add) Provision Created during the year 6,71 5.30
[Less} Pravision Utilised during the year {2.15) E
Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables calculated 2t lifetime expected credit losses 4,56 5.30
Balance at end of the year 18.24 13.68

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has written-off trade receivables balances amounting to Rs. 2.15 crores which are outstanding for more than 3 years as at 31
March 2023 and have utilised the existing allowances towards expected credit loss. The company does not expect to receive future cash flows/recoveries fram trade receivables
previously written off.
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(i} Other receivables from related parties is the amaunt which is receivable fram its subsidiaried against Empiovee Stock Option.
{ii} Interest rafated to Eflsar lean impaired fully hence the mavement for current year not shown In the above note, refer note 3 {A).

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial for the Year Ended 31st March 2023
15 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
15{A} Cash and cash equivalents [Amount In Rs. Crores)
Particulars As at 31st March | As at 31stMarch
2023 2022
(a)  Cashon Hand 0.57 0.6¢
{b}  Balances with Banks
- In Current Accounts 3252 1514
- In Fixed deposits with maturity less than 3 months 43.32 28.00
Total 76.81 A3.74
15{B)] Other Bank Balances {Amount in Rs. Crores)
Particutars As at 31stMarch | Asat F1stMarch
2023 2022
fa)  InFixed Deposits - under Lien 20.37 15.76
{b)  InEarmarked Escrow Accounts ©.30 050
Tatal 20.67 £6.26
Notes:
(i) Deposit under Liert represents deposits placed for Bank Guarantees obtained by the Company
- Customers 110 337
- Outstanding tnterest Payable to Debenture Holder (COC Group PLCY 10.77 388
- F» marked under Lien - towards acquisition 8.50 .50
Total 20.37 15.76
{ii} Balance in Escrow accounts represents amount deposited [n the account specifically earmarked for payment of interest on debentures ta the debenture holders [Refer Note
18.1).
16  OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Amount in Rs. CroTes)
Particulars As at 31stMarch| Asat 31sthlarch
2023 2022
Current
{a}  Interest accrued
- an fixed deposits .46 01z
- Others
- Raceivable frorm Related Parties (Refer Note 3{A)) 7.29 4.11
Less : Provision for doubtful keans and advances {7.29) =
F 411
- Receivable fram Others 0.02 0.03
b}  Other receivables from related parties® (Refer Note 18.4 and Note 38} 1.05 -
{c) Rental Reposits
- Others 0.82 265
Total 235 6.9
MNotes:
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17 EQUATY SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Mumber of shares Rs. In Crores Number of shares Rs. In Crores

Authorised shara capital :
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 19,200,000 16.20 7,000,000 7.00
10% Cumulative Redeemable Non-Convertible Preferenca Shares of Rs. 10 each - - 10,000,000 10.00
0.001% Fully and Compulsorily Canvertible Non-Cumulative Participating 7,080,000 70.80 7,100,000 71.00
Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each

96.00 88.00
Issoed and subscribed capital comprises:
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 7,926,103 7.93 6,859,96% 6.86
Total 7,926,103.00 7.93 6,859,%69.0¢ 6.36

17.1 Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Mumber of shares Rs. bn Croves Number of shares Rs. In Crores

Equlty Shares
Shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 6,859,969 6.86 6,859,969 6.86
Add: Fresh issue of shares/adjustment during the year 941,716 0.94 - -
Add: Converslen during the year 124,412 0.12 - -
Shares autstanding as af the end of the vear 7,926,103 7.93 6,853,969 6.86
Note

1. During the year ended 31st March 2023 the company has ssued fresh issue of shares of 5,896,420 numbers (Face Value of 10 each) to Arven Investments Pte Ltd and
3,45,296 {Face Value of 10 each) numbers to Hyperion Investments Pte.Ltd aggregating to total Equity shares of 9,41,716 numbers dated 05th May 2022

2. Further during the year ended 3st March 2023,the Company has alletied 53,024 equity share to the helders of 1,24,301 Compulserily Convertible Preference shares
holders and 71,394 equity shares to holders of 1,67,366 shares to alf of its Compulsorily Convertible Debentures holders.

17.2 Terms / rights attached to Equity Shares :
The Company has oply one class of eguity shares having a par value of Rs. 10. Fach holder is entitied to ona vote per equity share. Dividends are paid in Indian rupees.
Dividend proposed by the Board of Directors, if any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the annual general meeting except in case of interim dividend.
Repaymant of capital will be in accordance with the terms of the Articles of Association and in propartion to the number of aquity shares held.

17.3 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares

As at 31st March 2023 As at 315t March 2022
{lass of Shares Number of Shares | % holding of equity Number of Shares held % holding of equity
held shares shares

Equity shares

{a) Dr. Amar Agarwal 423,350 5.34% 423,350 6.17%
{b) Dr. Athiya Agarwal 512,062 6.46% 523,586 7.63%
{c) Dr. Adil Agarwal 418,743 5.28% 511,985 7.46%
{d) Cr. Anash Agarwal : 524,263 6.61% 524,253 7.84%
{e) Dr. Ashvir Agarwal 508,514 6.43% 509,514 7.43%
{f} Value Growth Investment Heldings Pte. Limited - - 2,174,285 31.70%
{g} Dr. Anosh Agarwal on behalf of Dr Agarwal's Eye Institute 366,339 4.62% 366,339 5.34%
{h) M/s Claymore Investments {Mauritius) Pte, L1d. 1,614,815 20.37% 1,614,815 23.54%
{I} Hyperion lavestments Pte. Ltd 2,590,975 32.65% - B

{j} Arvan Investment Pte. Ltd 754,210 9.52% £ -
TOTAL 7,714,271 97.33% 6,648,137 96.91%

17.4 Share holding by promoters

As at 31st March 2023

Class of Shares Mumber of Shares % halding of equity
held shares

Equity shares

{a} Dr. Amar Agarwat 423,350 5.34%
(b) Dr. Athiya Agarwal 512,062 6.46%
{c) Dr. Adil Agarwal 418,743 5.28%
(d) Dr. Anosh Agarwal 524,263 6.61%
{2 Dr. Ashvin Agarwal 509,514 6.43%
(f} Dr. Ashar Agarwal 15,435 0.21%]
(2} Dr Agarwsls Eye Institute Private Limited 144,744 1.83%
{h] Farah Agarwal 20,500 0.26%,
(I} Urmila Agarwa! 20,500 0.26%|
(j] Dr. Anosh Agarwal on behalf of Dr Agarwal's Eye Institute 366,339 4.62%)
Total 2,956,450 37.30%

17.5 Subsequent events {Refer note 19}
As of 10th August 2023, the Company has issued Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs. 100 face value for each shares as against which Re 1/- coliected as share application
meney on 27th tuly 2023,
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18.1

18.2

183

184

OTHER EQUITY {Amount in Rs. Crores)
Particulars — As at 31st March | Asat 31st March
2023 2022
Securities premium reserve 18.1 756.07 427.23
Retained earnings 18.2 [204.31}) (235.22)
Capital redemption reserve 18.3 0.04 0.04
ESOP Reserve 18.4 1.83 o
Total 553.63 192.05
Securities premium
[Amount in Rs, Crores)
= As at 31st March | Asat 31st March
Particulars

2023 2022
Opening Balance 427.23 427.23
Add : Premium on shares issued/ converted during the year 338.55 -
Less: Application of securities premium for issue of equity shares {9.71) -
Clasing Balance 756.07 427.23

Retained earnings

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars

As at 31st March

As at 31st March

2023 2022
Opening Balance [235.22) (232.95)
Adjustments
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 31.59 {1.47}
Add/|Less}: Other Comprehensive Income for the year {0.68) {0.80)
Closing Balance {204.31) [235.22}

Note:

In accardance with Notification G.5.R 404{E}, dated 6 April 2016, remeasurement of defined benefit plans is recognized as a part of

retained earnings.

Capital redemption reserve

[Amount in Rs. Crores)

As at 31st March

Asat 31st March

Particulars
2023 2022
Cpening Balance 0.04 0.04
Adjustments during the year & &
Closing balance 0.04 0.03

Note : The Company acquired business of AEIPL through acquisitan of it's entire share capital with an appointed date of 1st April

2021, This balance is taken over from such acquisiton made.

ESOP Reserve

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

As at 31st March

As at 31st March

Particulars
2023 2022
Opening Batance = -
Employee stock option expense during the year 1.83
Closing balance 1.83 -

Note : Amount of Rs. 1.83 crores includes reserve created for the Company of Rs. 0,78 crores and for its subsidiaries of Rs. 1.05

crores. Refer Note 29 and Note 16
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19 NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars As at 31st March 2023 | Asat 31st March 2022
Borrowlings measured at amartized cost:
Secured Borrowings
n 2,150 Senior Redeematle, Non-Convartible Oebentures of Face Value Rs. 10,060,000 each (Pald Up value - Rs. 133.33 143.45
10,00,000 each) (Refer Note {19.1(a)) below)
{iif  Term teans/Others [Refer Note (19.2) below]
- From Banks 132.67 49.77
(i} vehicle loans 0.03 0.08
{ivi 0.001% Fuilly and Compuisorily Convertible Debentures of Face Value of Rs. 1200 each (Refer note (19.3) belaw) - 206.G8
{v]  D.001% Fully and Compulsarily Convertible Nen- Cumulative Participative Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each - 14.76
(Refer note {19.3) helow)
Total 266.09 228.14
19.1 Details of Red hle Ron Cor Det

[a) 2,150 Senior Redeemahle Nan tonvertible Debetures of Face Vaue Rs.10,00,000 each
The details of tenor, interest rate, repayment terms of the same are given below:

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

ia.z

No. of Instalments | No. of Instalments
S.No.| Original Tenor (in Manths) Interest Rate ling as at ling as at Terms | Asat 31st March 2023 | Asat 3ist March 2022
31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
3M MIBOR QIS +
f, | DAMEAUTGIATRIRayoul Spread iz 19 Refer Note (i) 161.89 157.85
Refer Note (i) -
Refer Nete {i}

Less : Current Maturities of long-term borrowings (Refer Note 23} N [28.56) (14.40]
Lang-term Botrowings 13333 143.45

Noies:

i
i)

The first Instalkment of principal is payable on expiry of 36 months from the data of first drawdewn i.e. 11 Becember 2015.

As par the terms of Debenture Trust Deed, tha coupon rate shall be charged st the rate of 3M MIAGR + €15 Coupon interest payments are to be made en a menthly
basis far the year ended 315t March 2023

During the period ended 31st March 2023, the company kad received approval from the CDC Group PLC for change in repayment schedule of original 36 month
repayment to 19 months quartely payaut

The details of Security provided are as follows:

-first-ranking security over the fixed assets of the Company

-firsi-ranking security over the debt sarvice reserve account

-first-ranking pledge aver the shares of the Company owned by Dr. Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athiya Agarwal, Dr. Adil Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Agarwal, Dr Ashvin Agarwal,
Ashar Agarwal, Ms. Farah Agarwal, Ms. Urmila Agarwa), Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute Private Limited and Dr. Agarwal’s Eye | nstitute.

-nen-disposal undertaking and negative pledge in respect of the shares: (a) In Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited owned by the Company; and {b) in all Orbit
subsidiaries owned directly or indirectly by Orbit [as applicable); and

-persanal guarantee of Dr. Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athiva Agarwal, Dr. Adil Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Agarwal, Dr Ashvin Agarwal and Dr Ashar Agarwal, members of the
Promoter Group and corporate guarantee from Orbit.

fiifh

br

{ivl  Batance in Escrow accounts represents ameunt deposited in the account specifically earmarked for three menths payment of { Intarest + Principal) an debentures to

the debenture holders {Refer Note 15{B]).
) Durlng the year ended 31st March, 2023 the company has repaid INR 45 Crores to British International Investmants (Formerly CDC Group £lc] on 30th fune 2022 by way of
refinancing the entire loan from HDFC Bank
vl
Detalls of Terin Loah from Banks f Others - Secured
The Company has availed Term Loan from Sanks 25 at 31 March 2023. The details of tenor, interest rate, repayrment terms of the same are given below:
[Amount in Rs. Crores)

Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2023 , the Campany refinanced entire NCDs held by CDC Groip Ble with ICICI Bank term loan.

No. of I No. of [
S.MNo.| Qriginal Tenor (in Months) Interest Rate ding as at as at | Repayment Terms | Asat 31st March 2023 | As at 31st March 2022
31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
1-Term Laan from HDFC Bank {Refer Note {i) below)
1 21 Months Quartely Payout | 3M T Bill + Spread 18 21 Refer Note (i} 48.71 54.68)
2 21 Manths Quartely Payowt | 3M T BIll + Spread 18 - Refer Note (i) 40.96 -
3 72 Months EMI 3IM T Blll + Spread 72 - Rafer Note [} 55.04 -
i44.67| 54.68
Il - Vehicle L oans fram HDEC Bank (Refer Note (i] below)
Principal Monthly, 0.03 0.25]
2 20 grisk g - Interest Monthly
Sub-Tatal 0.0% 0.26
Total of borrowlngs fram Banks 144.76 54.94
Less : Current Maturities of long-term borrowings (Refer Note 23] [12.00) (5.08]
kong-term Sarrgwings fram Banks 132,76 49.84
Notes:

{i} The loans are secured by hypothecation of respective Vehicles financed by the Bank.

{il) The detalls of security provided against the HDFC Term leans are as follows:

-First charge by way of hypethecation on all Borrower's tangible movable zssets, inciuding movable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accesseries, furniture,
fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets, nresent and future;

- Exclusive charge on ali Barrower's currant assets and receivables, inciuding book debts, cperating cash flows, receivables, commissions, revenues of whatsoever nature and
wheraver arising, present and future;

-First charge by way of hypothecation on all bank accounts and reserves of Borrower including but nat limited to DSRA and ather reserves;

Subject to provisions of Sectian 19{2) and {3} of Banking Regulation Act, 1949, pledge of 5.9% of equity share capital and preference share capital of Borrower by the
Promoter to HOFC Bank exclusively; 81l will have a share pledge over 16.8% sharehalding of the Borrower held by the Promoter. For the remaining 10.6% stake sharehalding
lenders will have 5 negative pledge.

- Persenal Guarantees of Dr. Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athiya Agarwal, Dr. Adil Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Agarwal, Dr. Ashar Agarwal and Dr. Ashvin Agarwal, being the promoter and
relatives of the promoter.

*- Non-Disposal Undertaking and negative pledge in respect to shares of Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited (AEHL} owned by the Borrower.

{iif) The Company has chtained a written acknawledgement from the Bank that there were no non compliances with the foan terms and conditions as at 31 March 2023.
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1%.3 Issues of Fully and Compulsarily Conuertible C Participative P Shares

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has issued, 0.001% Fully and Compulscrily Convertible Non- Cumulative Participative Preference Shares to Arvon
investments Pte Ltd of Rs. 100 each inta 124,301 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each {at a premium of Rs. 3,100 each) in its Board meeting heid on 20 August 2021.

The canversion of Fully and Computsorfly Convertible Non- Cumulative Participative Preference Shares will happan at the earlier of twe years or 2 fund raise exceeding As.

100 Crares, at a fixed return over the said period.

0.601% Fully and Compufsorily Convertible Debentures of Face Value of Ry, 1200 4ach

1. Pursuant to the extra ordinary general meeting of the company held on 12 August 2021, the company has allotted 1,67,366 units of Compulsorily Convertible Deberitures

[CCD) of Rs. 1200 each to Value Growth Investments Holding Pte Ltd.

The conversion of Fully and Cormpulserily Convertible Debentures will happen at the earlier of two years or a fund raise exceeding fis. 100 Crores, at a fixed return aver the

sald period
Note:

Pursuant to the board meeting dated 26 April 2022 , the Company has allotted 53,024 equity share 1 the halders of 1,24,361 Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares

holders and 71,394 equity shares to holders of 1,67,36E shares to all of its Compulsarily Canvertible Debentures holders.

20 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABIITIES

{Amount in Rs. Crares|

Particufars

As at 31st March 2023

Asat 31st March 2022

Non-currant liakilities
Measured at Fair Value

fa]  Acquisition Liahilities {Refer Note below) 87.85 7.32
{b) Others 0.74 E
Total 88.59 7.32
Current

Measured at Amortised Cost

(s}  Payahles towards purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 43.09 i0.65
{b)  Interest Accrued But Nat Due on Borrowings

- from Banks 117

Measured at Falr Yalug

c}  Acquisition Liabllities (Refer Nole below) 33.45 7.08
Total 7N 12.73

Nate: Acquisition Liabilities represents the estimated fair value of the cantingent consideration relating to the acquisition of various eye clinics which was acquired upte 31

March 2023,

21 PROVISIONS

(Amount In Rs. Crores)

Particulars

As at 31st March 2023

Asat 21st March 2022

Non-current portion

{a} Provision for Empioyee Benefits:

- Gratuity Payable {Refer Note 37.3) 1.20 0,32

- Compensated Absences (Refer Note 37.2) 2.39 130
Total 3.59 162
Current portion
{a)  Provisicn for Employee Benefits:

- Cempensated Absences (Refer Note 37.2) 109 .59
{b}  Provision for Contingencies 0.08 a.08
Fotal 1,17 0.67

21.1 The Company carries a ‘provision for contingencies' towards variaus claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts {Refer Note 3a), based on Management's best

estimate. The details are as follows:

{Amount in &s. Crores)

Closing Balance

Particulars As at 31st March 2023 | As at 31stMarch 2022
Dpening Balance 008 0.08
Pravision made during the year = -
Amaunts Utjlized during the year =
Unused Amounts Reversed during the year E =
0.08 2.08

Nate:

‘Whilst the provision as at 31 March 2023 is considered as current in rature, the actual outflow with regard to said matters depends on the exhaustion of remedies available

under the law based an various develepments. No recoveries are expected against the provision,
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Rotes fnrminﬁ part of the inancial far the Year Ended 315t March 2023
22 OTHER LIABILITIES

Dt. Agarwal's Health Care Umited

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars As at 31st March 2023 | Asat 31st March 2022
Current llahilltles
(a)  Statutery Remittances 1.18 2.30
(b}  Advances from Customers 1.77 1.41
(c)  Gratuity payable - Current 121 0.85
Total 4.16 4,56
CURRENT BORROWINGS
{Amount in Rs. Crores]
Particalars Asat 31st March 2023 | As at 31st March 2022
{a) Loans Repayabie on Demand
{i} From Banks - Secured
- Cash Credit Facility {Refer Notes {i] and {ji} below} Q.60 4.22
{iif Current Maturities of Lang-Term Borrowings {Refer Note 19,1 and 19.2)
- from secured borrowings 28.54 14.40
- from banks {secured} 12.00 5.09
Totat 4116 2371
Nates :
{i) The details of interest rate, repayment and other terms of the Short Term Borrowings sre as follows:
{Amount in Rs. Crures!
at 31st March
Type Name of the Party Interest Rate Repayment Terms As 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Cash Credit facility from Bank HDFC Bank HDFCSZE;%RE‘E * Cn Demand 0.60 422

{ii} The Cash credit facility availed by the Company as at 31 March 2023 & 31 March 2022 is secured by the following:
- First and exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of current assets of the company

- Personat Guarantees of Dr. Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athiya Agarwat, Dr. Adil Agarwal, Or. Anosh Agarwal, Dr. Ashar Agarwal and Dr- Ashwin Agarwal, being the promaters and

relatives of the prometers and Or. Agarwal's Eye |nstitute,

TRADE PAYABLES
(Amaunt in Rs. Craves)
Particulars As at 31st March 2023 | Asat 315t March 2022
Current
- Dues of Mitro Enterprises and Small Enterprises (Refer Note 32) 14.16 6.77
- Dues of Creditors Gther than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 46.14 46.50
- Disputed dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises (Refer Note 32} E E
- Bisputed dues of Creditgrs Other than Micro Enterprises and Smail Enterprises - 5
- Other Trade Payable ) E
Total 50.30 53.67
As at 31st March 2023 {Anzount in Rs. Crores)
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
- MSME 14.12 0.03 0.01 g 14.16
- Others 40.78 419 2.42 Q.75 46.14
- Disputed dues - MSME - - - =
- Disputed dues - Others = S = =
Total 54.90 4.22 943 0.75 60.30
As at 3ist March 2022 {Amount in Rs. Crores)
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 Yeass Muore than 3 Years Total
- MSME 6.76 0.01 = 6.77
- Others 4573 0.42 075 46.90
- Disputed dues - MSME E 2 = E
- Disputed dues - Others - - -
Total 52.49 043 0.75 5 53.67
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Or. Agarwal's Health Care Limited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

REVENUE FROM CPERATIONS

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particufars For the year ended 315t | For the year ended 31st
arch 2023 March 2022
{a)  Sale of Products {Refer Note {i} below) 123.39 86.53
(b} Sale of Services {Refer Note (i} below) 474.16 274.91
{c)  Other Operating Revepues a0.09 0.15
Total 597.64 361.59
Disagg, jon of the fi i

The tables below present disaggregated revenues from contracts with rusiomers for the year ended 31 March 2023 by offerings. The Company believes that
this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainity of cur revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, market and other

ecanomic factors.
Nates :

{#} Sale of Products comprises the following:

{Amount in is. Crares)

For the year ended 31st

Far the year ended 31st

Particulars
March 2023 March 2022
Traded {Domestic) :

()  Opticals 69.45 49.23
{il  Pharmaceutical Products 43.13 2593
{iii} Contact Lens and Accassaries 1.85 1.42

114.43 77.58

‘Traded {Export} :
{if  Opticals 0.03 0.04
{il  Pharmaceutical Products - 0.05
fii)  Clinical Iters and Equipments 293 B.86
8.96 8.95
Total - $ale of Products 123.39 86,53

{1i} Sale of Services comprises the following :

{Amaunt ir Rs. Crores)

Particulars

For the year ended 31st

Far the year ended 2lst

Barch 2023 March 2022
in Income from Surgeries 398719 223.18
(i) tncome from Cansultation 3106 13.23
{fii)  Income from Treatments and Investigations 4431 3350
TFotal - Sale of Services 474.16 274.91

The services are rendered to various patients and there are no patients wha represent more than 10% of the totai revenue. However, the Hospital also serves
patients who are covered under insurance/health schemes run by insurance companies, corporates and the central/staze government agencies, wherein the
services rendered to the patient is on credit {o be reimbursed by the said insurance company, corporate or government agency.

Trade Receivables and Contract Balances

The campany classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as receivable.

A receivable is a right to consideration that is unconditional upon passage of time. Revenue is recognized as and when the related goods / services are
delivered / perfermed to the customer.

Trade receivable ara presented net of impairment in the Balance Sheet.

Contract lizbilities include payments recelved in advance of performance under the contract, and are realized with the associated revenue recognized under
the contract,

Performance cbligations and remaining petfarmance obligations

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount af the transaction price yet 1o be recognised as at the end of the reporting
period and an axplanation 25 to when the Company expecis to recognise these amounts in revenue. Applying the practicl expedient as given in IND AS - 115,
the Company has not disclosed information about remaining performance ohligations in contracts where the ofiginal contract duration is one year or less or
where the entity has the right to consideratian that corresponds directly with the value of antity’s performance completed to date.
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26 OTHERINCOME
(Amaunt in Rs. Crores)
. For the year ended 31st | Forthe year ended 31st
Particulars
Mavch 2023 March 2022
{al Interest Income
- Bank depasits 248 1.09
- Loans to Subsidiary |Refer note 38) 3.18 2.45
(B}  Interestincome - Other Financial Assets at amortized cost 1.29 0.14
(e} Net gain on termination of right-of-use assets = 2.44
{d)  Profit on sale of Property, flant and Equipment {Net) 0.05 =
{e})  Llsbiltties / provisions no lenger required written back 0.44 2.29
ft Interest an Income Tax refund 015 1.43
{g]  Netgainon Foreign Currency Transactions Q.66 =
{h]  Miscellaneous income
- Cther Miscellaneous Income 175 0.53
- Dividend 3.00 =
{i Prafit on Redemption of Current nvestments 466 =
Total 17.70 10.37

27  PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE

{Amount in Rs. Crares)

Particulars

For the year ended 31st

Far the year ended 315t

March 2023 March 2022
fa)  Opticals 26.09 20.02
{b) Pharmaceuticals Praducts 2975 1771
{e]  Contact Lens and Accessories 1.84 1.14
(d)  Clinical Items and Equipments 7.02 7.02
Total 64.70 45,83

23 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF STOCK IN TRADE

A.inveatories at the |

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

3 of the year:

For the year ended 315t

For the year ended 31st

Particulars
March 2023 March 2022
{a}  Opticals 4.55 2.99
{b)  Pharmaceuticals Products 2.81 2.27
{c)  Contact Lens and Accessories 0.70 0.24
{d}  Clinical items and Equi) 138 1.01
Total {4] 9.44 6.51
B. inventories at the end of the year: [Amount in Rs. Crares}
Particulars For the year ended 31st| For the year ended 31st
March 2023 March 2022
[a)  Opticals 5.80 4.55
{b)  Pharmaceuticals Products 472 281
[¢)  ContactLens and Accessories 139 Qa.70
[d) _ Clinical itams and Equipments 0.04 1.38
Total (B] 11.95 9.44
Total (&) - [B) (2.51) 293
29  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
[Amount in Rs. Crores)
Particulars for the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
March 2023 March 2022
{a) Salaries and Bonus 8121 53.72
(b} Contributians to Provident and Other Funds (Refer Note 37.1) .77 3.36
{c)  Seaff Weifare Expenses (Refer Note 37.1) 4.09 2.10
{d) Employee Stock option: Expenses {Refer Noie 43.4 and 18.3} 0.78 o
Total 50.85 59.18
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30 FINANCE COSTS

[Amount in Rs. Crores)

For the year ended %1st

For the year ended 31st

Particulars March 2023 March 2022

{a] Intereston Loan

{i) On Term Loans 738 1.65

{il} On Debentures 14,16 16.67

{ili} ©n Others 5.95 1.16

(iv} Interest on Acgulsition Liabilitles 12.86 -

{b)  Interest on Lease Liahility {Refer Note 40} 21.51 1r.09
Tatal 61.86 36.57

31 DEFRECIATICN AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars

for the year ended 31st

For the year ended 31st

March 2023 March 2022
{a)  Depreciation on Tanglble Assets (Refer Note 5) 25.42 28.00
{b)  Amortization on Intangible Assets {Refar Note 7} 33.53 221
{c)  Depreciation on right of use asset {Refer Note 6 & 40) 32481 18.38
{d} _Impairment on Intangible Assets 2 3.70
Tatal 91.76 59.29

32 OTHER EXPENSES

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

For the year ended 31st

Far the year ended 31st

Particulars
March 2023 March 2022
{a)  Consultamcy Charges® 10164 59.85
(b}  Consurmables 84.57 48.43
{)  Power and Fuei 729 4.88
{d)  Water Consumption 0.30 0.2%
{e} Rent {Refer Nate 40) 6.88 4.08
{n Repairs & Maintenance
- Equipments 453 2.57
- Dthers 5.17 4.20

{8l Haspital Maintenance Charges 10.77 8.50
{hY  Insurance 185 1.08
{i) Rates and Taxes 2.35 0.6B
{i) Communication 2.45 1.63
{k)  Travelling and Conveyance 8.98 4.37
n Printing and Stationery 247 1.28
{m] Legal and Professional Charges 9.16 6.33
[m}  Software Maintenance Charges 3.42 139
[0} Business Promotion and Entertainment 8.55 5.34
I} Marketing Expenses 12.97 7.23
lg)  Payments to Auditors (Refer Note 32.1 below} 0.45 0.41
[r}  BankCharges 2.4 158
Is)  Wet Loss on Foreign Currency Transactions and Transalations 0.29 0,17
[t)  Allowance for expected credit iasses 6.71 530

Less:

Bad debts written off 215 =

{Release of provision} (2.15) g

671

[u]  losson property, plant apd equipment discarded - 048
(v} Impairment Loss - 3.0
[w} Misceflaneous Expenses 2.06 1.77
Total 285.32 174.91

* Consultancy charges includes an amount of Rs. 0.74 crores relating Share Appreciation Expenses. (Refer Note 43.4)

321 Payments ta the Auditors Comprises :

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

For the year ended 31st

Far the year ended 31st

Raniculars Wiarch 2023 March 2622
{a) As Auditors:
- For Statutory Audit 0.3s 0.29
- For Quarterly review .03 0.03
- Other Services - 0.03
- Govds and Service Tax/Service Tax 0.07 0.06
Tatal 0.45 0.41
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33 Disclosures required under Sectlon 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

{Amount in Rs. Crores}

Particulars™

2022-23

2021-22

{l)  Princlpal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year

{ii} Interast due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year

fiii} The amount of interest paid aleng with the amounts of the payment made ta the supplier beyond
the appointed day

{iv] The amount of interest due and payahle for the year

{v] The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year

{vi} The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when
the interest dues as abeve are actually paid

14,15
017

0.17
0.17
0.17

6.76
0.06

0.06
0.06
0.06

Misnagement,

34 Disclosare under Sectlon 186 {4} of the Companies Act, 2013

Standzlone Financial Statements.
The particulars of the loans provided is disclosed in Note 9{i) of the Standalone financlal statements.

The particulars of guarantees given a3 required to be disclosed u/s 186 {4} of the Companies Act, 2013 are as follows:

*Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined ta the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of infermation collected by the

The partictlars of investmants made as required o be disciosed u/fs 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 are disclosed in Note 8 of Notes forming part of the

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Beneficiary of the Guarantee Party to which Guarzntee Is given

As at 31st March 2023

As st 31st March 2022

QOrbit Health Care Services [Mauritius) Uimited {Refer Note 38) SBM Bank [Mauritius) Limited

Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited [Refer fiote 38) Axis Bank 4383 31.94
Aditya lyot Eye Hospital Private Limited {Refer Note 38} Kotak Mahindra 2.14 338
175 =

35 Capital Commitmants

Further, 1350,000 Equity Shares held by the Campany in Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited has heen pledged as one of the collateral securities with Axis Bank, for
the leans taken by Dr. Agarwal's Eye Haspital Limited to the extent of INR 43.83 crares. The abave menticned amounts are outstanding position as cn 31 March
2023 and does not include the entire sanctioned amount, where the entire sanctioned amount fs Rs. 90.04 crores,

{Amaunt in As. Crores)

Particulars

Asat 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

(i} The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Accaunt, net of advances and|
not provided for

20.86

6.98

36 Cantingent Liabilities

{Amount in Rs. Crores}

Particulars

Asat 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Censumer Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt

.15

0.15

Notes:

hence no specific provision has been considered for the abave claims. Also refer Note 21.1

and, tharefore, cannot be predicted accurately.

{i} Based on Professional Advice / Management's assessment of all the above claims, the Company expects a faverable decision in respect of the above claims and

{ii) The arounts shown above represant the best possible estimates arrived at on the basis of the available information. The uncertainties and possible
relmbursement are dependent on the outcome of the various legal proceedings which have been initiated by the Company or the Claimants, as the case may he




Dz, Agarwal's Heaith Care Limited
Nates forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

37 Employee Benefits
37.1 Cefined Cantribution plans
la) The Company makes Pravident and Pension Fund contributions, which is a defined canuibution plan, for qualifying employees. Additionally, the Company alsa provides, for

covered amployess, health insurance through the Employee Stata Insurance scheme. Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the
payroll casts to fund the benefits. The contributions payable te these plans by the Campany are at rates specified in the rulas of the schemes.

{b) Expenses recognized :
{Amount in Rs. Crares)

For the year ended| For the year ended

Particulars 31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022

i)  Included under ‘Contributions to Provident and Cther funds' {Refer Note 23}

Contributions to provident and pension funds 3.88 il
(i) Included under 'Staff Welfare Expenses’ {Refer Note 29)
Contributions to Employee State Insurance 4.59 0.45
37.2 Compensated Absences {Armount In Bs. Crores)
For the year ended | For the year ended
]
Errtintors 3J1stMarch 2023 | st March 2022
{a) Included under 'Salacies and Bonus ' (Refer Note 29§ 182 Q.67
[Amaunt In Rs. Crores)
Particulars Asat 3istMarch | Asat 31st March
2023 2022
[b} Net asset { [liabilityl recognized in the Balance Sheat {3.48) [1.89)
Current portion of the above [Refer Note 21) {1.09} {t.59)
Non - current partion af the above {Refar Note 21} (2.39} 1.30)
The Key Assumptions used in the computation of provision for compensated absenges are as given below:
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Discount Rate {% p.a) 7.3% 5.B5%
Future Salary increase {% p.a 10% B%

37.3 Defined benefit plans

The Comgany eperates a gratuity plan covering qualifying employeas. The benefit payabie is calculated as per the Payment of Gratuily Act, 1972 and the benefit vests upon
completion of five years of continuous service and ance vested it is payatle to employees on ratirement or on termination of emaloyment. In case of desth while in servics, the
gratuity is payable frrespective of vesting_ The Company makes annual contribution te the group gratuity scheme administered by the Life Insurance Corparaticn of Indfa.

In respect of the plan, the most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined henafit obligation were carried cut as a2t 31 March 2023 by Mfs
Kapadia Actuaries and Consultants. The present value of the defined henefit cbligation, and the related current service cost and paid service cost, were measured using the
projectad unit cost credit method.

{a} Amount recognlzed In the statement of prafit & less [including other comprehansive income} in respect of the defined henefit plan are 3s follows :
{Amount in Rs. Crores}

For the Year ended| For the Year ended
Particulars 31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
in of Prafit % Lass In respect of these defined benefit plans are as fallows:
Service Cost [Refer Note{l} kelow] :
- Current Service Cost 0.85 0.64
- Net interest expense £.04 .01
Cormpanents of defined benefit costs recognized in the Statement of Prafit and 1ass 0.83 0.65
Remeasurement on the net defined henefit liability:
Retumn on plan assets {excluding amount included in net intecest income) (0.02) a1
Actuarfal galns and lass arising from changes in Demographic assumptions - 0.20
Actwarfal gains and loss arising from changes in Financial assumptions 0.06 [1s
Actuarial gains and laoss arising from experience adjustments .65 0.44
Camporents of defined benefit costs ized in other ive income 0.69 0.80
Total defined benefit cost recognized in Staterent of Prafit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 1.58 1.44

il The current service cost and Tnterest expense for the year are included in Note 29 - “Emplayee Benefit Expenses” in the Statement of Profit & toss under the line item
"Contribution to Provident and Other Funds”
(it} The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability Is included fn other comprehensive incame.
{b} The amount iacleded in the balance sheet arising from the entity's abligation in respect of defined benefit plan Is as follows :
{Amount in Rs. Crores}

Particulars As at 3tstMarch | Asat 3ist March
2023 0727
Net Asset/f{Liability) recognized In the Balance Sheet
1. Present value of defined benefit obllgation 5.05 375
2. Fair value of plan assets 3.64 2.59
Net asset / (liabllity) recagnized in the Balance Sheet (2.41) {1.16}
Current portian of the abave {1.21) {0.85}
Non - current portion of the above {1.20) {0.32)
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(&) Movement in the presant value of the defined berefit obligation are as follows :

{Amount in Rs, Crores)
Particufars As at 31stMarch | Asat 3ist March
2023 2022
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year £ 264
Expenses Recopnized in Statement of Profit and Loss:
- Current Sarvice Cost 0.85 0.64
- Interest Expense {income} 0.0 01
Adjustments . {0.07)
Recegnized in Other Comprehensive Income:
Kemeasurement gains / (losses)
- Actuarlal {Galn){ Lass arising from:
i. Demographic Assumptions & n.2e
ii. Financial Assumptions 0.06 Q.15
iji. Biperience Adjustments 0.64 0.44
Beneflt payments {0.45) {0.26)
Present value of defined benefit obligatian at the end of the year 5.05 3rs
{d) Movement in falr value of plar assets are as fallows :
Amount in fis. Crares)
Pasticulars Asat 31stMarch | Asat 31st March
2023 2022
Fair value of plan assels at the beginning of the year . 2.58 212
Expenses Recopnized in Statement of Profit and Less:
- Expected return on pian assets 0.15 010
Recognized in Other Comprehensive iIncome:
Remeasurement gains / [lasses)
- Actuarial gains and loss arising fram changes In financial assumptions - 3
- Return en plan assets [exciuding amount included in net interest income) Q.02 {o.01)
Contributions by employer 0.33 0.72
Benefit payments [0.44) {0.35)
Fair vaive of plan assets at the end of the year 2.64 2.58
{2} The fair value of plan assets plan at the end of the reparting perlod are as follows:
[Ampunt in As. Crores)
" Asat 31stMarch | Asat 315t March
Particulars.
2023 2022
investment Funds with Insurance Company
- Life Insuranca Corparatien of Indla .64 2.58

{1} The plan assets comprise nsurer managed funds. None of tl;e assets carry & quoted market price In acrive market or represent the entity's own transferable financial
nstruments of preperty oceupied by the entity.
{f The Actual retumn on plan asset for the year ended 31 March 2033 is INR 0.17 crores { For the year ended - 31 March 2022: INR €.08 crores).
1g) Artvarial assumptions
Investment Risk:
the present value of deflned benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is derermined by reference to the pravailing market yields of !ndian government
securitles as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations
Interest Risks
Adecrease in the yield of indian government securities will increase the plan Yiabiliy.
Longevity Risk:
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference ta the best estimate of the mortslity of plan participants both during and after their
employment. An increase in the life expectancy af the plan participants will increase the plan's fizhility.

Salary Risk:
The present velue of the defined benefit plan lizbility is calculated by reference to the future salacies. In particular, there is a risk for the Company that any adverse salary
prowth can result in an ingrease in cost of providing these benefits to employees in future.

The p pal assumptions used for the purpose of ctuartal valuation were as follows :
q Asat 31stMarch | Asat 31st March

Particulars 2023 2022
Discaunt rate 7.3% 5.85%
Expected rate of safary Increase 10% 8%
Expected return on plan assets 7.3% 5.35%
Expacted Attrition rate based on Past Service (PS) (% p.a) 28% 28%
Mortality indian Assured Lives| Indian Assured Lives

{2012-2014) {2012-2014)

1. The discount rate is based an the prevsiling market yields of Indian Government securities as at balance sheet date for the estimated term of the cbligation

2. The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the infiation, senjority, promstion and other relevant faciars.

3, order to protect the capital and optimize returns within acceptable risk parameters, the plan assets are maintained with an insurer vanaged fund (maintained by the L#e
Insurance Carperation ["UC")) and is well diversed
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The benefit ohligation resuits af a such @ scheme are particularly sensitive to discaunt rate, salary growth and employee attrition, |f the plan provision do provide for such
increases on commencement of pension.

The following table summarlzes the Impact In financial terms on the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period arising on account changes in these
four key parameters:

{Amount in Rs. Crares}

q As at 31st March | As at 3istMarch
Defined benefit Obligati
Incraase J {Decrease) on the Defined bene gation 2073 .

(i1 DiscountRate

Incraase by 100 bps [4.89) (0.12)

Decrease by 100 hps 5.24 0.13
(i) salary growth rate

Increase by 100 bps 5.22 a13

Decrease by 100 bps {4.90) {0.12)
(i) Attrition rate

Ingraase by 100 bps {5.05) {0.01}

Decrease by 200 bps 5.07 a.01

These sensltivitles have been caleulated to show the movement in defined benefit obligaticn in isolation and assuming there are no othar changes in markel conditions at the
acrounting date. The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual changa in the defined benefit obligations asit Js unlikely that the change fn
assumptions wauld occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermare in presenting the above sensitivity arfalysis the present value of defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end
of the reporting period which |s the same as that applied In calculating the defined benefit obligation liabiiity recognized in the balance sheet.

There i na change in the methads and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis frem the prior years.

Asset Liability Matching Strategies

The Company has purchased insurance policy, which is basically a year-on-year cash accumulation plan in which the interest rate is declared on yearly basis and is guaranteed
far 3 period of one year. The insurance Company, as part of the policy rules, makes payment of all gratuity jfability accurring during the year {subject to sufficiency of funds
under the palicy). The pallcy, thus, mitigates the liquidity risk. However, being a cash accumulation plan, the duration af assets is shorter compared to the duration of
liabilities. Thus, the Company Ts exposed to movement In interast rate.

Effect of Plan an Entity's Futuse Cash Flows

A} Funding Arrangements and Funding Policy
The Company has purchased an insurance poiicy to provide for payment of gratulty to the employees. Every year, the insurance Company carries out 3 funding valuation hased
on the Iatest employee data provided by the Company. Arty deficit in the assets anising as a result of such valuation is funded by the Company.

8) The Carnpany expects to make a contribution of INR 1.21 crores dusing the next financial year.
) The weighted average duratior: of the benefit abligation at 31 March 2023 is 3.40 years (as at 31 March 2022 13 3 44 years).
D} Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

Expected cash flows over the next N
{vatued on undiscaunted basis) (Amount in Rs. Crarez)

Within 1 year 1.11

2ta 5 years 130

6to 10 years 167

more than 10 years N
Experiance
Particulars 2D22-22 202%-22 I 202021 2019-20 2018-19
Defined Benefit Cbligations 5.05) 375 2.64 1.95 1.39
Plan Assets 2.64 2.58| 2.12) 1.60 1.18
Surplus [ [Deflcit) (2.41) (1.1 (.52 (035} [0.21)
Experience Adjustments on Plan Liabilities .64/ 0.44 0.28) 4.19] 0.19
Exgerience Adjustments an Pan Assets = - = = S

Experience adjustments related Yo prior vears have been disclosed based on the information to the extent available.
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38 Ralated Party Disclosure

38.1 Names of Related Parties and Nature of Relationships

Motes forming; part of the Standafone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 315t March 2023

Nature of Relationship

2022-73

1021-22

{8} |Subsidiary Company

Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited [AEKL)

Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited [AFHL)

Orbit Healthcare Services {Mauritius) Limited

Orhit Healtheare Services | ) Limited

Qrbit Healthcare Senvices International Operations Limited
[Merged with Orblt Healthcare Services {Maurltius] Limited
w.e.f 01 Agril 2022)

j Urnited

Crait Health care services {T;

Orhit Health carz services {Tanzaniz) Limited

Griit Healthcare Services Umited, Rwanda

Orbit Healthcare Services Limited, Awanda

Orhit Healthcare Services Ghana Limited

Orhit Healthcare Services Gharta Limited

Orbit Health

Services igue Limited

Orbit Heakheare Services ique Limitad

Orbit Healtheare Services SARL, Madagascar

Orbit Healthcare Sarvices SARL, Madagastar

Crhit Healtheare Services Ugande Limited

Cirbit Healtheare Services Uganda limited

Orbit Healtheare Services Zambia Limited

Orbit Healthcare Services Zambia Limited

Crbit Thelish Healthcare Servicas [Nigerta) Limited
{Clsinvestment of entire holding from July 19, 2022)

Orbit Thelish Healthcare Services {Nigeria) Limited

Orbit Healthcare Services Kenya Limited

Orbit Healtheare Services Kenya Limited

Aditya Jyot £ye Hospital Private Limited

Adilya Jyoi Eye Hospital Private Limited jw.e f 08 October 2021)

Advance Eye |nstitute Private Umited | Mergad with AHCL
w.e.fO1 April 2021)

Elisar Life Sriences Private Limitad

Elisar Life Sclences Private Limited

(i) |Associate Company

IdeaRx Services Private imited

IgeaRx Services Private Limited

{iTi) | Entities having significant
influence over the campany

£laymore Investments {Mauritius} Pte. Ltd

Value Grawth nvestment Haldings PTE Lbd
fupto 05 May 2022}

Value Growth Investment Holdings PTE Ltd

Claymore { itius} Pte. Lid

Hyperion [nvestments Pte. Ltd {w.e.fO5 May 2027)

Arvon investments Pie.{w.g.f 05 May 2022}

(iv) | ey Management Personnel of

Dr. Amar Agarwal

Dr. Amar Agarwal

the Company

Or. Athiya Agarwal

Dr. Athiya Agarwal

Mr. Balakrishnan Venkataraman

Mr. Trichur Ramasubramanian Ramachandran

Mr. Sanjay

ir Anand

Mr. Sanjay Dharambir Anand

Dr. Ashvin Agarwal

Dr. Ashar Aganwal

Dr. Ashvin Agarval

Dr. Ashar Agarwal

Dr. Adil Agarwal

Dr. Adil Agarwal

Dr. Anosh Agarwal

Dr. Anosh Agarwal

Mr. Shiv Agrawal

Mr. Shiv Agrawal

Mr.

than Arumugam {Company Secretary)

MAr. Tharikai y Arumugam (Company Secretary)

Mrs. Meerakshi Jayaraman {AEHL)

Mrs_ Meenakshi Jayaramas {w.e-f 16 December 2021) [AEHL)

Ms. Juilly H Jivani {up ta 13 Aug 2021) {AEHL}

Ms. Lakshmi Subramanian {AEHL)

Ms. Lakshmi jan {AEHL]

Mr. Suresh Eshwara Prakhala {up tc 04 May 2022)

Mr. Suresh Eshwara Prabhala

Mr, B. Udhay Shankar {Group CFG)

Mr. B. Udhay Sharkar [Group CFO}

Mr. Veakatesh Ratnasami fup to 05 May 2022]

Mr. 4 Ratnasami

Mr. Ankur Nand Thadani (w.e.f05 May 2022}

Mr. Ved Prakash Kalaroria {w.e f 05 May 2022}

{¥) {Enterprise over which the Key|Dr. Agarwal's Eve Institute

Or, Agarwal's Eya Institute

Management Personnel of thelDr. Agarwal’s Eye Institute Private Limited

Br. Agarwal's Eye Institute Private Limited

exertise controijaint control Qrhit

Company s in a position tojMaatrum Technolcgies and Legal Ventures Private Limited

Maatrum Technologies and Legal Ventures Private Limited

Orbit International

*Retated party relationships are a5 identified by the Management and relled upon by the auditors.
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38.2 Transactions carried out with related parties referred to abowve in the ardinary course of business during the Year

Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars

Related Party

2022-23

2021-22

Transactions during the Year
Revenye

Sale of Goods Aditys Iyt Eye Hospital Private Limited 0.26 =

Expart Sales Orbit Heattkcare Serivices LimTted, Rwanda 037 0.17
Orbit Healthcare Services Ghanz Limited 0.8 1.23
Orbit Health Care Services [Mauritius) Limited 0.43 0.89
Orbit Healthcare Services Mozambique Limited 1.60 0.90
Orbit Healthcare Services SARL, Madagascar 0.46 0.37
Orbit Health Care servites [Tanzania) Limited 0.52 093
Orhit Healthcare Servites Uganda Limited a.70 G.68
Orbit Healthtare Services Zambia Limited 3.55 3.33
Orbit Thelish Healthcare Services {Nigeria) Limited 0.12 .20
Orhit Heslthzare Services Kenya Limited 022 .25

Dividend Received Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited i ™

Carparate Guarsntee Charges Dr. Agarwal's Eye Haspital Limited .07 011

Other incame Orblt Healthcare Serivices limited, Rwanda 0.04 002
Orbit Healthcare Services Ghana Limited 0.09 0.05
Orbit Health Care Services {Mauritius) Limitad 0.05 0.05
Orbit Healthcare Services Mozambigue Limited .17 Q.08
Qrbit Healtheare Services SARL, Madagascar 0.04 Q.03
Orbit Health Care services [Tanzania) Limited 0.06 0.05
Qrbit Healthcare Services Uganda Limited a.0% Q07
Orbit Healtheare Services Zambia Limited 0.25 0.25
Orbit Thelish Healtheare Services (Nigeria) Limited 0.0z 0.02
Orbit Healthcare Services Kenya Limited 0.03 .02

Expenses

Reimbursement of Expenses DOr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Umited 1.84 237

Purchases IdeaPx Servites Private Umlted 16.05 1240

Maintenance Elisar Life Sciences Private Limited 0.0

Asset Purchase Elisar Life Sciences Private Limited .34 0.09

Recovery of Expenses

Consultancy Charges Orbit Healtheare Services Mozambigue Limited - b.90
Qriit Healthcare Services Ghana Limited = 1.23

ESOP Expenses Dr. Agarwal's Eve Hospital Limited {Refer Nate 16) 056 -
Elisar Life Stiences Private Limited {Refer Note 16) 009

SARS Expenses Dr. Agarwal's fye Haspital Limited 0.3y

Others Expenses bir, Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited 0.34

Cthers

Rental Depasit Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute 4.58

Capital Work in progress- Rent Or. Agarwal’s Eye Instikite 2.95

Expenses

invastments Aditya Iyot Eye Hospital vt Limited 6.25 25.00

Transter of Capital Work iy Progress Dbr, Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited 11.96

Conversion of Prefarence shares Value Growth Investment Holdings PTE Ltd 20.08
Arvon Inyestments Pte Ltd {issue of Compulsarily Convertible 124
Preference Shares)

Loan ta Subsidiary Elisar Life Sclences Private Limited 3.05 =

Interest income on Loan to Elisar Life Sciences Private Limited 318 =

Notes:

[i) The Company accounts far costs incurred by / an behalf of the Related Parties based on the actual invoices [ debit notes raised and sccruals as confirmed by such related
parties. The Related Parties have confirmed to the Management that as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, there are ne further ameunts payable te { receiveble fram
them, other than as disclosed above. The Company incurs certain costs on behalf of cther companies in the group. These costs have been aliocated/recovered from the
Eroup companies on a hasis mutyally agreed ta with the group companies.

(i) The Company has provided Corporate Guarantees amounting te INR 72.51 crores to Axis bank {Previously in HDFC} for the loans taken by Dr. Agarwals Eye Hospital.
Further, 1,350,000 Equity Shares held by the Company in the Dr Agarwals Eye Hospital Limited {AEHL) has been pledged as one of the roflateral securities with fwis bank
{praviously with HOFC), for the loans taken by AEHL, The Company has provided Corporate Guarantees amounting to [MR. 10.00 crores to Kotak bank for the loans {sken by

Dr. Aditya Jyot Eye Hospital.

{ill) The Campany has provided Corporate Guaranteas amuunting 10 INR 2.53 crares [MUR 25,400,000) to SBM Bank (Mauritius] Limited for the Joans taken by Orbit Heakth Care
Services (Mauritius) Limited, its wheliy awned subsidiary,
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38.3 G

1 ior of key

{Amount it Rs. Crores)

Particulars

Related Party

2022-23

2021-22

Shert-term employee beneflts
{Refer Nate {il})

Post employee banefits

Other perquisites

Sitting Fees

Dr. Anosh Agarwal

Dr. Adil Agarwal

Mr. B. Udhay Shankar

Mr. Thanlkainathan Arumugam
Dr. Anosh Agarwal

Dr. Adil Agarwal

Mr. B. Udhay Shankar

Mr. Thanlkainathan Arumugam
Dr. Anosh Agarwal

B, Adil Agarwal

Mr. Shiv Agrawal

Mr, Balakrishnan

Mr. Sanfay Oharamhir Anand

in

0.62
0.46
.00
040
oo
c.oo
043
045
0.01
001
0.02

105
112
0.50
0.31
a.00
0.00
0.00
Q.00
046
0.99
0.01
0.01
0.01

Notes:

{i} Excludes gratuity and compensated absences which cannot be separately identified from the curnposite amaunt advised by the actuary.

[) Employee Benefits paid to Dr Anosh Agarwal and Dr Adil Agarwal, represants remuneration of salary and allowances but excluding perguisites.

[ili} The remuneration payable Lo key management personned is determined by the

and market trends.

{iv) Therewers ne balances outstanding to he paid / recelved as at the year end.
v} The above remuneration for Key management persannel does not include vehlcle, communicatian expenses & other expenses for which the prequisite value 1s determinet

a3 Nit.

3B.4 Balances outstanding as a1 year end

having regard ta the performance of individuals

Amount in Rs. Crores)

Preference Shares} {Refer Note 17.1 Notes)

Particulars Refated Party As at 315t March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Assets

Trade Receivables Orbit Healtheare Serfvices Limited, Rwarda .04 0.02
Orkit Healtheare Services Ghana Umited 0.04 0.78
Orbsit Healtheare Services Mozambigue Limited 1.34 0.26
Orbit Healthcare Services SARL, Mad ar 0.05 0.26
Orbit Health Care services {Tanzania) Limited 0.04 2.11
Orbit Healtheare Services Uganda Limited 0.02 0.17
Orbit Healthcare Services Zambia Limited 2.02 7
Orbit Thellsh Healtheare Services [Migeria) Limited - 0.13
Orbit Healthcare Services Kenya Limped .04 0.18
Orhit Health Care Services (Mauritius) Limited 0.30 063
Aditya Jyot Eye Hospital Privata Limited 0.25

Other receivables Dr. Agarwai's Eye Haspital Limited 0.44 F
Elisar Life Scdences Private Umited 0.09

Loans Elisar Lifa Sclences frivate Limited 3419 2828

Liahilities =

Trade Payabla Jdea Rx Services Private Limited 335
Br. Agarwal’s Eye Hospital Limited 0.25 242
Elisar tife Sriences Private Limited 0.09 0.09

Instrumients aquity in nature Value Growth Investment Holdings PTE Ltd { issue of Compulsorily 20408
Convertible Debeatures) (Refer Nete 17.1 Notes)
Arvon Investments Pie Ltd {issue of Compulsorily Convertible - 1476

The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have keen given or received against the aforesaid outstanding baiances. Thara have been no
instances of amounts due to ar due from relzted parties that have been written back or written off or atherwise provided for during the year.
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39 Sepment Reporting

perfarmance Indicators by the overall business segment, |.e. Eye care related sales and services.

segmental assets & Habilities.

The Company is engaged in providing eye care and related services provided from its hospitals which are iscated in India. Baged o the "management approach” as defined in
Ind-AS 108 - Oparating Segments, the Chiel Operating Decision Maker [CODM) evaluates the Company's performance and sllacates resources based on an analysis of various

As the aHocation of resources and prafitability of the business Ts evaluated by the CODM on an overall basis, with evaluation into individual categories to understand the
reasons for variations, no separate segments have been identified. Accordingly no addltional discosure has been made for the segmental revenue, segmental reselts and the

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
ASegment Revenue

India 584.68 8.93
Qutside India 8.96 8.95
Total Revenue 597.64 17.88
ASegment Assets

India 1,283.70 685,77
Outsida India 3.88 6.68
Total Assets 1,387.58 692.45

40 leases

A, Thefallowng is the breakup of current and nen-current lease fiahilities:

38,4 The Campany has maintained hackup on daily basis of Its accaunting records maintained in electranic mode. The sackup Is maintained in servers physically located outside India.

The Campany has taken medical equipment and bulldings on leases having remaining lease terms of more than 1 year to 10 years, with the option to extend the
term of leases. Refer Note 6 for carrying amaunt of right-to-use assets at the end of the reporting period by tlass of underlying asset.

{Amounk In Rs. Erores)

Particulars As at 3Est March Asat 31st March
2023 22
Currant 28.80 15.97
Non-current 254.45 180.15
Total 2B3.25 156,12

B. The contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basisis as fellaws:

{Amount in Rs. Crares)

Expected Minimum Lease Commitment

tease Oblkgation As at 31st March As at 31st March
2023 2022
Payable - Not later than one year 5245 31.85
Payable - Later than one year but not later than five years 196.63 120.91
Payable - Later than five years 155.58 83.88
Total 405.08 236.68
€. Amounts recagnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
 Amount In Rs. Craras)
For the year ended For the year ended
Bettiilon 31st March 2023 st harch 2022
Interest on lease liabilities 2151 17.09
Expenses relating to short term leases 6.88) 4.08]
Depreciation on night-of-use assets 32.81 18.38
Prafit on termination of lease E 244

D. Ameunts recognised in the Cash Flow Statement:

{Ampunt In Rs. Crores}

Partizulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Total cash outflow for leasas (54.57) (28.17}

41 Earnings Per Share

{Amount in Rs. Crores}

- For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars
31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Earnings Per Share - Basic ~ Rs. 40.35 {2.15)
Earnings Per Share - Diluted - Rs, 40.20 {2.15)
Profii/{Loss) after Tax 31.59 (L.47}
Less: Dividend on Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares (Including Tax thereon) - =
Met Profit attributable ta Equity Shareholders - {Basic and Diluted) 31,58 {1.47)
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares (Face Value of Rs, 10 Each) - Basic 7,829,860 6,859,969
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares {Face Value of Rs. 10 Fach) - Diluted 7,858,944 65,859,969

previous year.

Note : During the current year the Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares are corwerted inta equity shares and hence no adjustments required.
For the previous year, such dividead on Compuisorily Convestibte Cumulative Preference Shares wera not considered an account of loss made during the
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42  Flnanclal Instruments

421 Capital Manageamtent
The Campany manages capital risk in order to maximize shareholders’ profit by maintaining sound/optimal capftal structure. For the purpose of the Campany's capital management, capital inclutdes
£qulty Share Capital and Gther Equity and Debt Includes Borrowings and Other Financial Lizbilities excluding Payables towards PPE met of Cash and bank balances. The Company monitoss capital an the

basis of the following aearing ratlo. There is no change in the overal| capital risk managemant strategy al the Company compared to last year.

Searing Ratio
{Amount in Rs. Crores}

Particulars As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Borrowings and Other Financial Liabilties 42045 266.25
Cash and Bank Balance (57.48) {60.00)
Net Debt {n) 332,98 206.25
Total Equity (B) 561.56 198.91
Net Debt to equity ratio {A/B) 5.5% 104
42.2 Categaries of Finandal Instruments
The carrying vaiue of the finandal instruments by categories as an 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 is as follows:
{Amount in Rs. Crores)
Particulars As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
s
Measured at fair value through PE&E {FYTPL]
Current Investments 33.66
Measured at amortized cost
- Loans 1.89 2108
- Cash and cash equlvalents 75.81 43.74
- Other Bank batances 20,67 16.26
Trate receivables 39,72 3053
- Other flnantlal assets 19.94 19.32
Measured at cost
- Non Current Investments 153.66 147.41
346.35 278.34
b} Finaneial Liabilities :
Measured at amortized cost
- Borrawings 0725 251.85
- Trade Payables 60.30 53.67
- Payables towards PPE 43.09 10.65
- Qther financial llabilities 123.21 14.40
- Lease Liahilities 2831.25 156.12
a17.10 4E6.69
The managemant assessed that fair value of cash and cash equivaients, trade recaivables, loans, horrowings, trade payables and ather current financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments,
Tha fair value of the financial assets and habilities is ncluded at the amount at which the instrument couid be exchanged in a current transaction hetween willing parties, ather than in a farced or
{iguidatian sale.
The fi hods and waere used to estimate the fair valuefamartized cost
1} Long-term fixed-rate receivables/borrawings ara by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk factors, Individual losses and creditworthiness of the
receivables
2} The fsir value of unquated instruments, loans fram banks and ether financial liabilities, as well as other non-current financial Kabilitles are estimated by discounting future cash Aows using rates
currently availabie Far debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining malurities. In addition to being sensitive to 2 reasonably possible change in the forecast cash flows or distaunt rate, the fair value
of the ungucted instruments is alse sensitive te a reasanably possible change in the growth rates. The I reguires r to use unobservabie inputs in the model, of which the significant
unabservable inputs are discinsed In the tables helow. Management regularly assesses a range of reasonably possible alternatives for those significant unobservable Inputs and determines their impact
on the total fair value.
3) Fair values of the Company's interest-bearing barrowings and lo2ns are determined by using Discounted Cash Flaw (DCF) method using discount rate that refiects the issuer’s borrowing rate as at the
end of the reporting perfnd. The pwn nen- perfarmance risk as at 31 March 2023 was assessed to be insignificant.
Fair Value Hierarchy
Level 1: Quoted prices {uradjusted) In active markets for |dentical assets of liabilities,
Level 2! Inputs other than quoted prices included within Leval 1 that are observable for the asset or liahility, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
Details of financial asssts and financial liahilities which were valued at falr value as of 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are disclosed in Note 42.
4§23 ial Risk F

The Company's board of directars has overall respensibility for the establfi and oversight of the Company's risk management framawork. The Cempany manages financial risk refating to the
operations through Tntemal risk reperts which analyze exposure by degree and magnitude of risk.

The Campany’s aciivities expose it to a variety of financial risks: liquidity risk, credit risk and market risk {including interest rate risk and other price risk). The Company's pimary risk management facus
is to minimize potential adverse effects of market risk on its financial performance. The Company’s risk management assessment and policies snd processes are established to identify and analyze the
risks faced by the Company, to set eppropriate risk limits and controls, and to menitor risks and compliance with the same. Risk assessment and managament policies and processes are reviewed
regularly to reflect chanpes In market condilions and the Company's activities. The Board of Directors and the Audit Commiltee is responsible for overseeing the Camgany's risk assessment and
management polidesand processes.
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(a] Liqwidity Risk Maragement :

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company canngt meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its Nquidity risk by ensuring as far as possibfe, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to maet its liabilities when due, under bath narmal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company's reputation. The Company maintains
adequate reserves and banking facilities, and continuously manitors the forecast and actual cash flows by matching maturing profiles of financial assets and financial fiabilities in accordance with the
approved risk management paolicy of the Campany periodicatly. The Company believas that the working capital {including banking limits not utilized) and its cash and cash equivalent are sufficlent to
maet its shart and medium term requirements.

tiquidity and Interest Risk Takles :

The fallowing tables detall the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financlal Habilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables include both interest and principal cash
flows.

Ta the extent that intersst flows are floating rate, the undiscaunted ameunt is derived from interest rate curves at the end of the reparting period. The rontractual maturity is based on the earliest date

oh which the Company may he required to pay.
{Amaunt In Rs. Crores)

Particulars Less than % year lto5years 5 years.and above Total

31st March 2023

Interest beading 148.45 476.45 131,95 755.85
Non-interest bearing 60.25 - - E0.25
| Total 208.70 476.85 13195 817.10
31st March 2022

Interest bearing 81.61 13809 20267 423.37
Naon-interest hearing 64.32 = = 64.32
Total 135.93 138.08 202.67 486,68

The foliowing tables detail the Company's remaining contractual mazurity for its nen-derivative financial Assets with agreed repayment periods. The Company does not hold any derivative financial
instrument.
{Amaunt in Rs. Crores)

Partlculars Lass than 1 year 1to5years 5 years and ahove Total

31st March 2023

Interast beading 99.37 - - 9037
Nop-Interest hearing 80.05 38.77 128.16 246.98
Total 173.42 38.77 12B.18 36.35
31st March 2022

Interest bearing 43.76 3344 71.20
Non-Interast bearing 53.71 E 147.42 20113
Total 97.47 33.44 147.42 278,33
(&) Credit Risk:

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractyal bl Credit risk ent of both, the direct risk of
default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk principally consist of trade receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and other finantial assets. Mane of the other financial instruments of the Company result in material concentration of cradit risk. Credit risk s contrelled by
analyzing credit limits and creditworthingss of customers on a cantinuows basis to whom the credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for redit

The carrying amount of the financial assets recarded Tn these financial statements, grossed up for sny allowance for losses, represents the maximuim exposures to credit risk.

Trade receivables: The Campany's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each custorrer. The demographics of the custamer, including the default risk of the
ndustry and credit history, also has an influence on credit risk assessment.

Refer Note 25 and Note 14 for the details in respect of revenue and receivabie from top customers.

Credit risk an current T cash & cash fent and derivatives is limited as the Company generally transacts with banks and financial fnstitutions with high credit ratings assigned by
Tnternatinnal and domestic credit rating agencies. Investinents primarily include investment in Mutual Funds.
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{c) Market Risk :

Market risk [s the risk of |oss of any future sarnings, in realizable fair values or in future cash flows that may result from adverse changes in market rates and prices (such as interast rates and foreign
currency exchange rates} or in the price of market risk sensitive instruments as a result of such adverse changes in market rates and prices. Market risk is atiri ble Lo all market risk: itive
financial instruments, all fareign currency receivables and payables and all short-term and fong-term debt. The Company is exposed ta market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk and
inlerest rate risk and the market value of Jts Investments, Thus, the Lompany's exposure to market risk is 3 function of Ipvesting and herrowing activities and revenua generating and operating
activities in fareign currencies.

{e.1] Interest rate risk:

interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash llows of a financial instrument will Auctuate because of changes in market Interast rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in
narket interest rates relates primarily po the Company's debt obligations with fioating interest rates.

The Company’s management manitors the interest fluctuatinns, if any, and accordingly, take necessary stegs to mitigate any interest rate risk.

Interast Rate sensitivity analysis:

A change [decrease/fincrease) of 100 basis paints in intezest rates at the reporting date would increase/{decrease] equity and profit o7 (oss by the amounts shawn befow. This analysis assumes that ail
ather varishles, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.

Impact on Profit and loss for the reporting pericd {Amount in Rs. Crores)
y Asat 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Particulars
Increase by 100bps I Decrease by 100bps Increase by 100bps | Recrease by 100bps
Impact on Profit and loss far the reporting period 3.09 I {3.09) 12.50}| 2.50
Impact on total equity as at the end of the regorting period {Amount in Rs. Crores)
Asat 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Particulars
Increase by 100bps | Decrease by 100bps Increase by 100bps [ Decrease by 100bps
Impact on total equity s at the end of the reparting period 3.09 | {3.09) (2500 250

ic.2) Forelgn Currency Rlsk Management ¢

The Company undertakas transactions denominated in farelgn currendes and eonseguently, exposures to exchange rate fuctuations arises. The Company has not entered into any derivative contracts
during the year ended 31 March 2023 and there are no outstanding contracts as at 31 March 2022,
The carrying amaints of the Company's loreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of each reparting period are as follows :

Asat 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Particulars Currency Amount in {Amount in Rs, Crores) Amaourt in {Amount in Rs. Crores)
Foreign Currency Foreign Currency
Trade Receivables usD 473498.00 3.88 881,229.00 6.68
Other Current Liabikties usc = = - Q.01

Farelgn Currency sensitivity analysis:

The following table details the Company’s sensitivity to a 5% increase and detrease in INR against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% Js the rate used i order to determine the sensitivity analysis
considering the past trends and expectation of the management for changes tn the farelgn currency exchange rate. The sensitivity analysis includes the outstanding foreign currency dencminated
monetary items and adjusts their transfztion at the period end for a 5% change [n foreign currency rates. A positive number belew indicates a increase in profit / decrease In loss and increase in equlty
where the INR strengthens 5% agzinst the relevant currency, Far a 5% weskening of the INR against the relevant currency, there would be a romparable impact on the profit or loss and equity and
balance below wauld be negative.

trepact on Profit and loss far the reporting period {Amaount in Rs. Crares)
N Forthe Year Ended 3Ist March 2023 For the Year Ended 31st March 2022
Particulars
Inerease by 5% [ Decrease by 5% increase by 5% | Decrease hy 5%
ush [¥T] ] {0.19) 0_33| 033
Impact on total equity as at the end of the reporting period {Amourst in Rs. Crores|
0 For the ¥ear Ended 31st March 2023 For the Year Ended 31st March 2022
Particulars
increase by 5% | Decrease by 5% Increase by 5% | Decrease by 5%
usD 019 | (0.1 033 ] 10.33)
Note :
This Is mainly attributable to the exposure of receivable and payable ing in the above mentioned currencies to the Campany at the end of the reporting period.

424 Fair value of financial assets and finandial (lablifties that are not measured at fair value {but fair value disclosures are regulred)

The Managerment cansiders that the carrying amaunt of financial assets and financial liabilities recognized in the financial statements approximate their fair values,
42.5 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilitles

Fhe Company has not oifset financial assets and financial liabiities.

#2.6 Fair Value Measurement
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilitles that are not measurad at fair value

Fair Value as at [Amount in Rs. Crares)

e . -
Financial Assets f Financial Liabilities Asat 3ist Marth R TR Fair Valug Hierarchy Value Technigue and Hey Inpu
2023
i idiarias - Or, " ted Net i i
Inves.tmer-lt |.n Subsidiaries - Or, Agarwal’s Eye 108.58 246,51 Level 1 Quatad Net Asset value in Active
Hospital Limited markets

The management assessed that financial assets and finandal liabilitles that are not measured at fair value in the financlal statements approximate the fair values
{except as as stated ahove) and accordingly, na disclosures of the fair value hiererchy is required to be made in respect of these assets / Ifabilltfes.
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43
43.1

43.3

Share-based payments
Stack Awards

uUnder the Company's stock awards program, the smployees and doctars of the Company and Its subsidiaries are granted shares and other stock awards of the Company, it accordance with the terms and
canditiens as specified in the plan. The plan is assessed, managed and administered by the cempany, whose shares and share based benefits have been granted to the empfoyees and doctors of the
Company and its subsidiaries. The company currently cperates an employee steck sption [“ESOP") and 2 share appreciation rights {"SAR"}. The Company has accountad for the amount of expense under Ind
AS 107 considering the valuatiens camied cul in respact of the same and has made the related disciosures required under INDAS 102, The amounts recavered fram the subsidiarles In respect of the cost
Towarts such stock awards given to its employees and doctors are accounted for under Note 16.

501

The stock awards pranted generally vast ovar 3 four service period. The annual stock awards are pranled effective of the 281h November 2022; this effective date is the "award dale” used for steck plan
administration purpases and shown in the awards agreement. The maximum number of shares In a stock award is, not exceeding 2% of the Paid Up Capital of the Company, 2s on August 12, 2022,
comprising 1,58,522 Dptians to or for the benefit of the employees of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The following reconciles ihe share options at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Amount in Rs.
q Weighted average
Particulars N';T::r n;";;;;"s price af pption
_— 21 March 2023

Options eutstanding as 2t the beginning of the year - -
Add: Optlens granted during the year 66,008 1594
Less: Options lapsed/forfeited during the year = E
Less: Options exercised during the year = -
Less: Options Transferred during the year -

Options as st the year end * 66,008 1,594
* included 37,832 options granied 1o employees of the subsidiaries
Tha fair valle of each award was estfmated on the date of grant using the following assumptians:

Amount in Rs.
Particulars 2022-23
Option price at the grant date 1.523.06
Option life 4 years
Exercise price 2,548

SAR

The share appreciatan rights {SAR) gives consultant dectors of the Company and its subsidiarles the opportunity ta receive a cash bonus equal to the appreciation in the value of the units which shall, for
eath Unit, be the diference between Fair Market Valua of the equity shares as at Payment Evant Trigger{PET}® of Dr_ Agarwal's Health Care Limited (the company) and Rs. 2,548/- {exceicise price] as stated
under the Plan.

*PET Is defined as either | of the 3 below;

i. On the nccurrenca of an Initial Publlc Offer [IPQ) by the Company

ntry of any new investar in the Company acquiring mare than 30% shareholding or change of shareholding by mora than 30% ef the paid up capital in any manner.
ifl. Any pthar event that the Anard may decide at ils own discration.

However, the payment timing shall net exceed 4 {four) years Iram the date of grant. If PET occurred oaly afier 4 (four] years fram the date of grant, then the 100% of the paymant will be made at the end of
the faurth year.

Amount i Rs.
Particulars Number of aptians W::ig;t::l:;:r::e
31 March 2023
ore 31 March 2023

5ARs autstanding #s at the heglnning of the year - -
Add: SARs pranted during the year 53,420 2827
Less: SARs lapsed/forfeited durlng the year -

Less: SARs exercised during the year -
Less: 58Rs Transferred during the year 2 -
Options outstanding as at the year end® 53,320 2,827
*included 21,860 aptions granted ta employees of the subsidiaries

The fair value of each award was estimated on the date of year end using the following assumptions:

Amourt in Rs.

Particulars 2027-23

Share Appraciation Right price at the grant date 2827

Qptian tife 4

Exercise price 2,548

Total expense accolnted for by the Company on acrount of the above are given below:

Rs. In Crores

B For the year ended
PaTHiouars 31 Warch 2023

ESOP cost accounted by the Company {Refer Note 29) 0.78

Total 1.52

FAR cast accounted by the Company (Refer Note 32} Q74




Dr, Agarwal's Health Care Limited

{alone Financlal $tatements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

Notes forming part of the St;

34 (A)

44 {8)

44 (C)

44{p)
i}

(it}
(iity

(iv)

)
{vi)

]

uii}

{ix)

Ratios

The following are the analytical ratios for the year ended 31st March 2023 and 31st March 2022

Asat 31st | Asat 3ist
Parti inati i Note
articubars Numerator Denominator March 2023 | March 2022 variance
Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities 0.94 1.06 -11%
Debt Equity Total Debt* Shareho{der’s Equity 1.05 2.05 -49% Refer Note 1
Debt coverage ratio Earnings available for debt Debt Service 1.54 1.64 -6%
service
Return an equity % Net Profits after taxes Average Shareholder’s Equity 8% -1% 1218%
Refer Note 1
and Note 2
Trade receivables turnover|Revenue Average Trade Receivable 1877 13.13 28%
. Refer Note 2
ratio
D Y %
Tra.de payahles turnover  |Purchases Average Trade Payables 2.58 1.84 40 Refer Note 3
ratio
Net Capital Turnover ratio |Revenue Working Capitai {47.51}) 54.93 -186%
Refer Note 4
Net profit rati i 5% 0% 04
et profit ratio Net Prafit Revenue 2104% Refer Note 2
Return on capital £arning before Interest and | Capital Employed 0.14 011 28% Refer Note 1
amployed taxes |
Return on investment Income generated from Time weighted average NA NA - .
investment investment
Inventory Turnover ratio  |Cost of Goods sold Average Inventory 7.76 6.12 27% Refer Note 3

*Tatal debt includes fong term and short term borrowings and lease liabilities.

Nates:
1. The ratios for the period ended 31 Mareh 2023 is not comparable with the period ended 31 March 2022 as there were fresh equity issue and
canversion that contributed to this change.

2, This is primarily on account of increase in revenue and higher callections fram customers compared to the previous period.

3. This is primarily on account of increase in purchases which is in Iine with the increase in revenue and business operations.

4. This ts primarily due to accounting of deferred considerations payable {current partion) in accordance with Ind AS 103 in relatien ta
acquisitions made during the current year, which increased the current liabitities as on 31 Mareh 2023,

Undisclosed Income
The Company daes nat have any transaction which are not recorded in the boaks of accounts that has been surrendered or disclesed as incame
during the year in the tax assessments under the Incame Tax Act, 1961.

Transactions with companies whose name is struck-off

The Company reviewed the status of ail its customers and vendars, as at 31st Mareh 2023, in MCA portal, and observed that a Company does
nat have any transaction or outstanding with struck off companies under Section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 ar Section 560 of the Companies
Act, 1956,

Other disclosures

The company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet

date.

The Company neither has any immovable proparty nor any title deeds of Immovable Property nat held in the name of the Company,
During the financial year, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Eguipment, Right of Use Asset and [ntangible Assets.

The Company has not granted any lpans or advance in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, Key Managerial Personnel and the related
parties {as defined under Comganies Act, 2013}, either severally or jointly with any other person, except far the below :

[a) The Company had granted loan of Rs. 3.05 crores during the current year and has an outstanding loan receivable{inclusive of interest
accured) of Rs. 31.42 crores as on 31 March 2023. The schedule of repayment of principal is stipulated as to be repaid over a period of 5 years,

though specific instalments for each period has not been specified. However, the payment of interest has not been stipulated.

The Company daes not have any intangible assets under development as zt 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, and hence disclosure under
Schedule Il is not applicable.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the group as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 for holding any
benami property under Banami Property Transactions {Prohibition] Act, 1988.

The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR 5 croves, in aggregate, at any point of time during the year, for a period
of 60 days, from banks on the hasis of security of current assets but were not required to submit the guarterly returns or statements. Hence,
reporting an the quarterly returns or staterments filed by the company with such banks is not applicable.

The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender,

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period, as at the year ended 31
March 2023 and 31 March 2022,
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[x}  As at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the Company has subsidiaries and complies with dause {87) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013

read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

ixi] The Company has not advanced or lpaned or invested funds to any person(s) or entitylies), including foreign entities {Intermediaries) with the
understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise} that the Intermediary shali:
(1) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persans or entities identified in any manner whatsaever by or on behalf of the Company {Ultimate
Beaneficiaries) or
[ii} provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

[xii] The Company has not recefved any fund fram any person(s} or entity(ies), including fareign entities {Funding Party} with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(i] directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persans or entities identified in any manner whatsaever by or on
behaif of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) ar
i) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Liltimate Beneficiaries

{3} The Company neither has traded nor invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the Financial year.

(xiv) The Company does not have any investment properties as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 as defined in Ind AS 40,
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45  Approval of Financial Statements

The Board of Directars of the Company has reviewed the realizable value of all the current assets and has confirmed that the value of such
assets in the ordinary course of business will not be less that the value at which these are recognized in the financial staternents In
addition, the Board has ais6 confirmed the carrying value of the non-current assets in the financial statements. The 8eard, duly taking into
account all the relevant disclosures made, has approved these financial statements in its meeting beld an 10 August 2023,

Far and on behaif of the Board of Birectors

MK

Dr. Adll Wgarwat Dr. Anosh Agarwal
Wholetime Director Wholetime Director
DIN: 31074272 DIN: 02636035
l//
L
) U\r ((
m ¢
Mr. B.Udhay Shankar Myr. Thanikainatiran Arumugam
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Chennai
Date : 10th August 20623
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Fax: +91 44 6688 505

To The Members of Dr. Agarwal’s Health Care Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Dr. Agarwal’s Health Care
Limited ("the Parent”) and its subsidiaries, (the Parent and its subsidiaries together referred to as
“the Group”} which includes the Group’s share of loss in its associate, which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Fiow Statement and the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of
the subsidiaries and an associate referred to in the Other Matters section below, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (‘Ind AS") and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2023,
and their consolidated profit, their consolidated total comprehensive income, their consolidated
cash flows and their consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143 (10) of the Act. Cur responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and its associate, in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requiremenis and the ICAI's Code of
Fthics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters section below, is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consclidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

« The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information include in the Board of Director’s report (but does not
include the consolidated financial statements, the standalone financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon). The Board of Director’s report is expected to be made available to
us after the date of this auditor’s report.
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Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

« In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, cur responsibility is to
read the other information identified above when it becomes available, compare with the
financial statements of the subsidiaries and associate audited by the other auditors, to the
extent it relates to these entities and, in doing so, place reliance on the work of the other
auditors and consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Other information so far as it relates to the
subsidiaries and associate, is traced from their financial statements audited by the other
auditors.

e When we read the Board of Director's report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance as required under SA 720 ‘The Auditor's responsibilities Relating to Other
Information’.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these consoclidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consoclidated changes in equity of the Group in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and its associate and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Parent, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management of the companies
included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective
entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate their respective entities or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
te do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate are
also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associate.
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Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consclidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

«  Qbtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controis.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting palicies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associate
to continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conc¢lusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group and its associate to cease to continue as a going
concern,

» Evaluate the overali presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
within the Group and its associate to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. For the entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which
have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely

ssponsible for our audit opinion.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the econcmic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
guantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and {ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent and such other entities included
in the consclidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We aiso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonabily be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safequards.

Other Matters

We did not audit the standalone financial statements of two subsidiaries and the consolidated financial
statements of a subsidiary which has 9 step down subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect
total assets of Rs. 157.63 Crores as at 31 March 2023, total revenues of Rs. 161.45 Crores and
net cash inflows amounting to Rs. 6.67 Crores for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s
share of net loss of Rs. Nil for the year ended 31 March 2023, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements, in respect of one associate, whose financial statements have not been audited
by us. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consoclidated financial statements, in so
far as it relates to the amounts and disciosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and
associate, and our report in terms of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates
to the aforesaid subsidiaries and associate is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and cur report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to
our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the
reports of the other auditors on the separate financial statements of the subsidiaries and
associate referred to in the Other Matters section above we report, to the extent applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books, and the reports of the other auditors. The Parent’s and its
listed subsidiary company's daily backup of it accounting records are maintained in servers
physically located outside India (Refer MNote 44.1.(a) to the consolidated financial
statements).
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c)

d)

e)

9)

h)

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consclidated Statement of Profit and Lass including
Other Comprehensive Income, the Consclidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consclidated financial
statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent as on
31 March 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and the reports
of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies and associate company incorporated
in India, none of the directors of the Group companies and its associate company
incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164 (2} of the Act.

The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith, are as stated in paragraph {b) above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “"Annexure A" which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent, subsidiary
companies and assoctate company incorporated in India. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of those companies.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

In our opinicn and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the remuneration paid by the Parent and its listed subsidiary company incorporated
in India to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197
of the Act. Subsidiary companies (other than listed subsidiary) and associate company
incorporated in India being private companies, section 197 of the Act related to the
managerial remuneration is not applicable.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i} The conselidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group and its associate - Refer Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements;

iy The Group and its associate did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts.

i) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Parent, and its subsidiary companies {other
than the listed subsidiary) and associate company incorporated in India.

In respect of the listed subsidiary, there has been no delay in transferring amounts,
required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
subsidiary.
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v)

vi)

(a) The respective Management of the Parent, its subsidiaries and associate which
are companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act, have represented to us and to the other auditors of such
subsidiaries and associate respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Parent or any of such
subsidiaries and associate to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Parent or any of such subsidiaries and associate (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b} The respective Management of the Parent, its subsidiaries and associate which
are companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act, have represented to us and to the other auditors of such
subsidiaries and associate respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the Parent or any of such subsidiaries and
associate from any person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Parent or any of such subsidiaries and associate shall, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reascnable
and appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the
auditors of the subsidiaries and associate which are companies incorporated in
India whose financial statements are audited under the Act, nothing has come to
our or other auditor's notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided
under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The final dividend proposed for the previous vear, declared and paid by its listed
subsidiary, which is a company incorporated in India, whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

The Parent and its subsidiaries {(other than the listed subsidiary) and associate which
are companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, have not declared or paid any dividend during the year and have not
proposed final dividend for the year.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log})
facility is applicable w.e.f. 1 April 2023 to the Parent and its subsidiaries and associate
which are companies incorporated in India, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g)
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year
ended 31 March 2023.
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With respect to the matters specified in clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4 of the
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (*CARQ"/ “the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, according to the information and
explanations given to us, and based on the CAROQ reports issued by us and the auditors of
respective companies included in the consolidated financial statements to which reporting under
CARO is applicable, as provided to us by the Management of the Parent, we report that there
are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the CARO reports of the
said respective companies included in the consolidated financial statements except for the

following:

Name of the CIN Nature of Clause Number of

company relationship | CARO report with
qualification or
adverse remark

Dr. Agarwal’s | US5100TN2010PLCO75403 | Parent Clause (iY(a)}i), (i),

Health Care Limited (vii}{a}, (vii)(b)

Dr. Agarwal’'s Eye | L85110TNI1994PLC027366 | Subsidiary Clause (i}(a){(i), (vii){a),

Hospital Limited (vii){b)

Elisar Life Sciences | U33100TN2018PTC125932 | Subsidiary Clause {xvii)

Pvt Limited

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
{Firm’s Registration No. 0080725)

7 (x\y\u‘»
EP/ f\;\g'\yp f\.vjl

R. Prasanna Venkatesh
Partner
(Membership No. 214045)
(UDIN: 23214045BGWIZY3673)
Place: Chennai
Date: 10 August 2023
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ANNEXURE “"A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act")

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for
the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of Dr. Agarwal’s Health Care Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“Parent™), its subsidiary companies and its associate company, which are companies incorporated in
India, as of that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Parent, its subsidiary companies and its associate company, which are
companies incorporated in India, is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the internal control with
reference to consofidated financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the
ICALY", These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of the Parent, its subsidiary companies and its associate company,
which are companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
fthe “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to consclidated financial statements. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consoclidated financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by other
auditors of the subsidiary companies and associate company, which are companies incorporated in
India, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial contrals with reference
to consolidated financial statements of the Parent, its subsidiary companies and its associate
company, which are companies incorporated in India.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unautheorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of interna! financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference
to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us and based
on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph
below, the Parent, its subsidiary companies and its associate company, which are companies
incorporated in India, has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to consclidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the
internal control with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Caontrols Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements insofar as it
relates to 2 subsidiary companies and 1 associate company, which are companies incorporated in
India, is based solely on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated
in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 008072S)

R Rrorenrs el

R. Prasanna Venkatesh
Partner
(Membership No. 214045)
(UDIN: 23214045BGWIZY3673)
Place: Chennai
Date: 10 August 2023




Dr. Agarwal's Heaith Care Limited
Cansolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023

{Amount in Rs. Crores}

Particulars Hate Ne. Asat 31st March 2023 | Asat 31st March 2022
1. ASSETS
{1) Non-current assets
(a) Progerty, Plant and Equiprent 5(A) 342.95 208.19
{b} Capital work-in-progress 5(B) 97.61 2843
{c} Right of use asset 6 460.47 30646
{d) Goodwill 7 273.20 148.07
{e} Other Intangibie assets 7 218,13 38.76
{f) Financial assets
{i] Other Financial assets g 26.41 21.44
{g) income tax assets [net) 11 32.48 2285
{h) Deferred tax assets 12 55.46 14.15
(i) Other non-current assets ] 8.26 10.31
Total Non - current Assets 1,514.97 798.61
[2) Current assets
{a} Inventaries 10 36.04 32.92
(b} Financial assets
(i} Investments 13 33.66 -
(i} Trade receivables 14 76.33 56.72
{iif} Cash and cash equivalents 15{A) 126.98 95.62
(iv} Other Bank balances 15{B) 2155 17.06
[v) Gther Financial Assets 16 4.39 4.62
{¢) Other current assets 9 11.22 16.54
Total current assets 310.17 227.48
TOTAL ASSETS 1,825.14 1,026.09
H. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
{a) Equity Share capital 17 7.93 6.86
{b) Other equity 18 621.63 205.51
{c) Nen Controliing interest 28.51 21.44
Total Equity 659,07 233,21
{2} Non-current liabilities
(a} Financial LTabilities
(i} Borrowings 19 305.60 253.99
{ii} Lease Liability 38 456,10 316.38
{iii) Other financial ifabilities 20 20,17 8.02
{b} Deferrad tax liabilities 12 2.45 128
e} Provisions 21 10.47 6oy :
Total Non - Current Liabilities 864.79 586.41
13] Current liabilities
{a) Financial Liakilities
{i) Barrowings 3 50.58 36,19
{ii) Lease Liability 38 45,07 26.76
{iiii} Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micra enterprises and small enterprises 24 16,76 874
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 24 84.13 80.33
{iv} Other financial liabilities 20 83.43 28.08
(b} Income tax liabilities 22 (A) 4.33 10.06
[e) Other currant [iabilities 22 14.04 1421
{d) Provisions 21 2.94 1.50
Total Current Liabifities 301.28 20587
TOTAL LUABILITIES 1,166.07 792.28
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,825.14 1,026.09

lidated financial statements

See accompanying notes farming part of the

in terms of our repart attached

Far Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartared Accountants

Firm's Registration Number; 0080725
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P' ?\/ \"eA ICM"’“:L( .
R. Prasanna Venkatesh

Parthner
{Meambership No. 214045)

Place : Chennai
Date : 10 August 2023

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors

M X

Dr. Anosh Agarwal
Wholetime Director
DIN; 02636035

~ AY

B. Udhay Shankar
Chief Financial Officer

Plaze : Chennai
Date : 10 August 2023

/’

Thanikainathan Arumugam
Company Secretary




Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Umited
Consofidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 315t March 2023

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars NoelE For the Year ended For the Year ended
’ 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
| Revenue from Operations 25 1,017.77 696.08
Il Other Income 26 15.27 17.88
Il Total Incore {111} 1,033.04 713.96
IV Expenses
Purchase of Stock-in-trade 27 116.31 86.62
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 28 {2.88) {2.61)
Employee benefits expense 29 120.4G 139.82
Finance costs 30 7197 45.40
Depreciation and amortisation expense 31 128.3C 97.66
Other expenses 32 445,32 290,31
Total expenses 949.44 657.20
V  Profit before tax (l11-1V) 83.60 56.76
Wl Tax expense
{a} Current tax 11.2 20.23 14.68
{b} Deferred tax 12.2 {39.36) (1.08)
{19.63) 13.60
VIl Profit for the Year {V-vI) 103.23 43.16
VIfl Other Comprehensive Income
Iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{a} Remeasurements of the defined benefit fiabilities / {asset) (£.20) (1.60)
{b) Incamne tax relating tc items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 12.2 0.13 0.20
Exchange Difference on Translation of Foreign Subsidiary (3.75) (8.33)
Total other comprehensive loss far the year (4.83) (2.73)
IX Total Comprehensive Income far the year {VII+ VIl 9g.40 33.43
Profit for the year attributable to:
Gwhners of the Company 94.10 37.69
Non controlling interests .13 5.47
103.23 43.16
Other Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to:
Jwners of the Company i4.74)) (9.59)
Non controliing interests (0.09) (0.17)
{4.83) {9.73)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year atiributable to:
Owners of the Company 89.36 38.14
Naon centrolfing interests 5.04 5.29
Total Comprehensive income for the year 28.43 33.43
X Earnings per equity share (Face value of Rs.20/- each) a0
[a) Basic {in Rs.) 120.18 54.95
{b) Diluted (in Rs.) 119.73 54.85

See accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number: 0080725

s eopes P

R. Prasanna Venkatesh
Partner
{Membership Mo. 214045)

-

Place : Chennai
Date : 10 August 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. Anosh Agarwal
Whaletime Director
DIN: 02636035

“ g N

Thanikainathan Arurnugam
Company Secretary

B. Udhay Shankar

Chief Financial Officer
Place : Chennai
Date : 10 August 2023




Dr. Agarwal®s Health Care Limited
Consolidated Cash Flaw Statement for the Year ended 315t March 2023

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

. For the Year ended 31st | Forthe Yearended 31st
Particulars
March 2023 March 2022
A. Cash flows from operating activities
Profit after tax for the year 103.23 4316
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 128.30 97.66
Income taxes {current and deferred taxes) (19.63) 13.60
Finance Costs / Interest Expense on financial liabilities at amortized cost 71497 44.86
Interest Income - Bank & cther investments {4.65) {1.27)
Profit an redemption of Current Investments (4.66) E
Liabilities / provisions ne longer required written back [0.68) (2.28)
Net galn on termination of right-of-use assets {0.45) {2.44)
Loss / {Prafit) an sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net) (0.04) 3.94
Allowance for Expected Credit Losses 11.75 1110
Interest on Income Tax refund (0.20) =
Net {gain)/Loss on Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation 2.00 (8,18}
Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 286.94 200.15
Movermants in working capital:
Increase in lnventories {3.12) (5.06)
Increase in Trade Receivables {45.11) (12.92)
Increase in Loans and Other Financial assets {Current and Non Current} (4.74) (4.76)
Decrease / {ncrease) in Other Assets (Current) 5.32 (7.10)
Increase in Trade Payables 11.81 14.55
Increase in Other Financial Liabilities {Current and Non Current) 7.07 397
Inerease /{Decreasa) in Provisions (Current and Non Current) 5.17 {0 1B)
{Decrease) / Increase in Other Liabilities (Current) {0.17) 299
Changes in Working Capital changes {23.77) (8.51}
263.17 191.64
tncome taxes (pafd) - net of refunds (35.68) (15.39)
Net cash generated by operating activities 227.49 176.05
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Payment towards acquisition of Property, Flant and Equipment {166.58} {101.59)
Amount spent on account of Business acquisitions {307.85) (50.88)
Payment towards additional stake held by non-controlling interest in subsidiaries [6.25} -
Praceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment {04 0.50
Sale/{Purchase} of Investments {Net) (29.00} -
increase in Bank balances not considered as Cash and cash eguivalents (4.49) (7.34)
Interest Received from Bank & other investments 485 1.46
Net cash flows used in investing activities {509.48) {157.85)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceads/{Repayment] from berrowings 113.86 71.92
Dividend paid [including tax thereon} {e.40) (0.0}
fFinance costs paid on borrewings {29.04) {21.74)
Proceeds from issue of equity shares of the company 300.00 14.76
Praceeds from issue/ {repayment) of Debentures of the company 2 20.08
Payment of lease liabilities [75.07) {50.48)
Net cash flows used in firancing activities 309.35 3454
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{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars

For the Year ended 31st

For the Year ended 31st

March 2023 March 2022
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents fA+B+C] 27.36 52.74
Cash and cash equivaients at the beginning of the year 99.62 55-.21
Exchange Difference on Translation of Foreigh Operations - (8.33)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 126.98 99.62

See accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
n terms of our report attached
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Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number: Q080725

A O O
P el Vat ol

R. Prasanna Venkatesh
Partner
{Membhership No. 214045}

"

Place ; Chennai
Date : 10 August 2023

DIN: ¥1074272

Dr. Anosh Agarwal
Wholetirme Director
DIN: 02636035

. pa b

B. Udhay Shankar
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Chennai
Date : 10 August 2023

Thanikainathan Arumugam
Company Secretary




£C0E 1N8nY gL 1 MEQ £Z0¢ 3508ny 0T ¢ Momﬂ

JEUBAYY © Bdelgd |euuayg
Aeianzs Auedwion IS0 [2|2URM14 JLY)
WESAUIAIY UBIEUIEIUEY] Jejueys ABUpn 8
i 3
b Q
SE09es2l Mg ] {SYOYTT ON AlysiaquRA)
- _. o1 IUIS|OYM Jauyied
|emaely ysouy ag ysajeyuss euueseld Yy
—
v A)q.Tu AV
L b
SZL0R00 lequiny uenensiSal s iy
S§uUTIUNOITY 1w._ut+—_u
SI0PPUNQ JO PAEOR 313 O J[EYIY U0 pUe Jog 1125 3 SUN{SEH 231013 o]
paysene Jodss Jne jo swi Al
SJUBLUSIENS [BI3UBLY PRIEPILOSUOD DY) 40 Jed Huiuus) 530U SujAuedwonde fag
PETS 15'62 E9T20 €8T [ [ 891 (teeor) €80 £0°95L EROZ YAURIA STE 38 s
891 - 89T d B * 851 ! = . (£'8T 310N 48J8Y) AsipISqRG UMOP-da1g PaUMD AJ[OYA J0 18313 Uo Bulsie py
{21°9) {£50} loas) o = B - {oers) - - {£°3T 330N 13j3y) Areipisgns & ul paanbae syess | uc Suspe p
81 - 2T 331 = - g - ; # {5°8T 310N Jagay) ue|g uondo yooig aadojduiy
{20'7) {600l i - - - - (£60) - - {saxel J0 Jou) sug|d AUy P3P 3y} JO SIULE, Y
{926} C 19£°8) 3 {9s°€} - - - - Aseipisgqng uBia104 Jo ucnesue. | ue douiRq Sdueyax)
{12°8) = 126} - - - - - - {126} {Z'8T 210N 1843)y) 5a.eys AjInba jo anssi Joy wnjwaid sa131IM085 JOo uonedjddy.
S9'BEE = G58EE = z 2 . E 5 SHEE {ER1 9Ioh S945y) panss( selelS U0 tniwpd
{00} {or'G} = - = - % 3 = = $3Jeys Alnba uo puap|aig Jo ucmE_.,mn_
EZ'E0T ET'B [ - - - - 4] 943 N o Jeeh gz aoj by
569 Tz TS'S0Z = (s52°08) 00 = (B T65) £3°0 £7°LTY ZZOZ WA ISTE I¥ 56 aouejeq
191 15T . F _ N = = . o uofisinbayiug
100 100 = b . N - a = 2 S3101s AANba U0 pU3piAK] Jo 1 i
{zE8) 00 {g€78) » {eeg) 5 - - - - 15qng UBISI04 40 LCKESUE | UR PouRseLK Sdusyg
{ov-i) {0l (g2 2 s & . {E7°T) - - {sa%ey Jo Jou} sue|d JYauaq FaUYSP 40 SIUAWS.
aTEr at"s BYLE o b ks - BILE B il JeaA DYL A0y IR
eTeT L a BELLT - (zrze} oo - {oEBZE} 80 ET LTV TZOZ Y4BIAl ISTE 1€ Se 3auEjeg
; @AlasaY LORB|SUEIL BAISSE] UnoIY
(g+v) (|) 35212301 (v)imoL L Aduaainy ufaicy uopdwsapay |endey Samsalmyde) siuieg paujeIsy phBsEY [BiausG WnjWald se(3nasg P—
Aynb3sapg mol | Bwiipaued-uoy ieNd
smdang pue samIpsay
521013 SH 8l JUROWY)
&ajnb3 Jyg A
989 £6°L pouad Suyodal Jo pus 243 3B IUEHE]
- 0T Jeah atp Fupnp [e3jdes aieys Aynb3 ) sadueyn
- - popad Jujpodad waaing ay; jo fujumbeq sy 18 sauejeg paieifay
= . si03 popad Joud o3 anp (2yjdes aieys AYnk3 u) sadury)
959 9g'g pevad Funiodas 3u o BuluBag Je se dutjeg
Z0L EZOT stepnaued
YIen] ISTE 1B SY | WPJE[A ISTE 1e 5Y

51013 5y U] JunoLy)
[eades aseys Aynbg

£ZOC YHTIN ISTE P+PUS 1894 o3 405 AIh3 Ul S5AUEYD JO 3= WIEY5 POIEPIOSUOT

PRULIT 3423 lEsH m._e_z_m: g




Or. Agarwal's Health Care Limited
Notes to the C Financial for the Year Ended 315t March 2023

1

Corporate Information

Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limiied {"the Company’ or "the Parent Company') was incorporated on 13 April 2010. The Group and its subsidiartes/associate detailed in Note
2{c ) betow are primarily engaged in running, owning and managing eye care hospitals, opticals, pharmacies, ete. and related services. The Group and fts subsidiaries /
associate are together referred to as "Group”.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial staterments of The Group and its subsidiaries/associate have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Aceounting Standares issued and
natified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015 {as amended).

Principles of Conselidation

A, Subsidiary

The consolidated financial statements have heen prepared on the following basis:

{iy  The financial statements of the subsidiary comparies, used in the consolidation are drawn upte the same reporting date as that of The Group ie.,
31 maarch 2023

{ii)  The financial statements of The Graup and Its subsidiary companies have been cambined on a line-by-line basis by adding together liks items of assets, liabilitles,
income and expenses, after eliminating intra-group balances, intra-group transactions and resulting unrealized profits or losses, unless cost cannot be recovared.

@iy The excess of cost to the Group of its investments In the subsldiary campany aver its share of equity of the subsidiary company, at the dates on which the
investments in the subisidiary company were made, is recagnized as 'Gaadwill'. On the other hand, where the share of equity In the subsidiary company as on the
date of investment is in excess of cost of investments of the Group, it is recognized as 'Capital Reserve’ and shown under the head 'Reserves & Surplus’, in the
consolidated financial statements

(v} Noen-Controlling Interest (NCI} in the Net Assets of the Consafidated Subsidiaries consists of:
{a) The 2mpunt of Equity attributable to holders of NCi at the date on which the investmant in the Subsidiary is made; and
{b} The NCI's share of movements in Equily since the date the Parent Subsidiary relatfonship came Into existence.
NC} share in the Net Profit / [Loss) for the year of the Consalidated Subsidiaries is identified and adjusted against the Profit After Tax of the Group even if this
results in the NCI having a deficit balance.

(v}  Accounting treatment for Goadwill an business combinations has been described in detail in Note 4.7 below.

{vi] The consolidated financial siatements have been prepared using uriform zccounting pelicias for like transactions and ather events in similar circumstances and are
presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Company's separate finencial statements.

B. Associate

The investment in the associate companles has heen accounted under the equity methad a5 per indAS 28 — ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures' notified under

the Companies [Indian Accaunting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended).

An investment in an assaciate is accounted for using the equity method from the date an which the investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in
an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment cver the Graup’s share cof the net fair value of the identifizble assets and liabilities of the investes is recognized as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amaunt of the investrment. Any excess of the Group'’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, 1s recognized directly in equity as capital reserve in the period in which the investment is acquired.

€. Details of entities consolidated
Fellowing companies have been considered in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements in addition to The Group which operaies in India:

Proportion of Proportion af
5No Wame of the entity eiations iipwithithie Ceantivie Ownership - As at | Ownership - As at 31
ompeey /Incarporation | 31 miarch 2028 March 2022
1 Dr. Agarwal's Eve Hospital timited ["DAEHL"} Subsldiary India 71.75%] 71.75%,
2 Orhit Health Care Services (Mauritfus) Ltd Subsidiary Iauritius 100.00%| 100.00%
3 Orhit Healthcare Services International Operations Ltd | Subsidiary of Z {above] upto | Mauritius NAJ 100.00%|
1st April 2022
4 Qrhit Healihcare Services {Ghana) Limited Subsidiary of 2 {above) Ghana 100.00% 100.00%
5 Qrbit Health Care Services SARL Subsidiary of 2 {above] Madagascar 80.00% 80.00%
[ Orbit Health Care Services Mozambique Limitada Subsidiary of 2 {abave) Mozambigue 07.00% S7.00%)
7 Qrbit Thalish Health Care Services Nigeria Limited Subsidiary of 2 {above] uptc  |Nigeria NA| 60.00%
1st Aprif 2022
8 Orbit Health Care Services Limited, Rwanda Subsidiary of 2 {above} Rwanda 100.06%, 160.00%)
] Orbit Health Care Services [Tanzania) Limited Subsfdiary of 2 {above) Tanzania 108.00% 100.00%;
10 | Orbit Health Cate Services (Zambia) Limited Subsidiary of 2 {above) Zambia 100.00%| 100.@
11 _|Orhit Health Care Services {Uganda) timited Subsidiary of 2 {abave) Uganda 100.00% 100.003%;
12  |Orbit Health Care Services {Kenya) Limited Subsidiary of 2 {above) Kenya 100.00% 100.00%1
13 |Elisar Life Science Private Limited Subsidiary india 76.00% 76‘%
14 |ldeaRX Sarvices Private Limited Associate India 14.71% 14.71%
15 |Aditya lyot Eye Hospital Private Ltd Subsidiary {w.e Oct 2025) _|India 63.25% 51.00%)|

Application of new and revised Ind AS

All the Indfan Acceunting Standards issued and notified by the Ministry of Corparate Affairs under the Companies [Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {2s amended} till the
financisl statements are authorised have been considered in preparing these financial stztemeants. There is no other Indian Accounting Standard that has been issued as of that
date but was not mandatarily effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") natifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time
0 time. On 31 March 2023, MCA amended the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards} Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

ind AS1-F ion af Financial -

This amendment requires the entities ta disclase their materiaf accounting poilcies rather than their significant accounting policles. The effective date for adoption of this
amendment Ts annual periads keginning an or after 01 April 2023.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Pelicies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors -

This amendment has intraduced a definition of ‘atcounting and i 1ts to Ind AS 8 ta help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies fram
chamges in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption af this amendment fs annual perieds beginning on or after G1 April 2023

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes -

This amendment has narrawed the scope of the initfal recognition exemption sa that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temparary differences.
The effective date for adaption of this amendment is annual perieds beginning on or after 01 Aprii 2023.

The Campany is in the process of evaluating the impact of the above on the financial statements,
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4.5

Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with indian Accounting Standards notified under the Companies {Indian Acceunting Standards) Rules, 2015
and relevantamendment rules issued from time to time,

The financial statements were authorised for the issuz by the Company's Board of Directors on August 10, 2023

The Group has cansistently applied accounting pelicies to all pericds

Significant Accaunting Policies

Basis of Preparation and Presantation of C { Financial

These financial statements have heen prapared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of each
reparting period, as explained in accounting policies below. Historical cost is ganerally based on the fair vaiue of the consid given in tor geods and
services.

Falr value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or pald to transfer a liability In an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using ancther valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset cr a liability, the Group
takes inte account the characteristics of the asset or liability If market participants would take those characteristics inte account when pricing the asset or iability at the
measurernsnt date.

In addition, far financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the Inputs to the fair value
measuremnents are ohservable and the significance of the inputs ta the fair value measurement In its entirety, which are described a5 follaws:

« Level 1 inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markats for identical assets or liabiities that the entity can access at the measurement date;
a Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are absenvakle for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
a Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Cash and Cash Equivalents {far the purpase of Cash fFlow Statement)

Cash comprises cash on hand, cheques and demand drafts an hand, balances with kanks in current accounts / demand deposits. Cash equivalents are shart-term
balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition], bighly fiquid investments that are readily convertibie into known amounts of
cash and which are subsject to [nsignificant risk of changes in value. Bank balances other than the kalance included in cash and cash equivalents represents balance on
account of unpaid dividend and margin meney deposit with banks and balances in earmarked ESCROW accounts.

Cash Flaw Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect methad, whereby prafit / {{oss) after extraardinary items and tax is adjusted for the ffects of transactions of non-cash nature
and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows frem operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated
based on the avallable information.

Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the group and the narmal Eme between acquisition of assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the group
has detertmined its operating cycle as 12 manths for the purpose of classification of its assets and labilities as current and nan-current.

Business Cemblnations

Acquisitions of businesses are accountied for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in @ business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date faic values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabillties incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equiby interests issued by the Group in exchange of controt of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognized at theis fair values, except that:

{i} deferred tax assets or liabifities, and assets or fiabilities related to employee benefit srrangements sre recognized and measured in accordance with [nd AS 12 Income
Taxes and Ind AS 19 Emplayee Benefits respectively;

(i) assets (or disposal groups) that ere classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Nan-current Assets Held for Sale and Biscontinued Operatfons are
measured in zccordance with that Standard; and

[iii) Faverable component of right of use assets and lease liabiites are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 116 - Leases,




Pr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited
Notes to the Consolldated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

46

4.7

4.8

Property, Plant & Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated al cast less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment |oss [if any). The cost of Praperty, Plant and Equipment
camprises Its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates and includes taxes, duties, freight, incldental expenses related to the acquisition and installation of
the assets concerned and excludes duties and taxes that are recoverable from tax autharities, Borrowing costs paid during the pericd of construction In respect of
borrowed funds pertaining ta construction / atquisitian of qualifying property, plant and equipment Ts adjusted to the carrying cest of the underlying praperty, plant and
equipment,

Any part or components of property, plant and equipment which are separately identifiable and expected to have a useful life which is different from that of the maln
assets are capitalized separately, based on the technical assessment of the Management.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment outstanding at each halance sheet date are disclosed as “Capital Advances” under Other Non
Current Assets and cost of Property, Plant and Equipment not ready o use before such date are disclosed under “Capital Work- in- Progress”

Depreciation

Depreciable ameunt for assets Is the cost of an asset less its estimated residual value

Depreciation on tangible property, plant and eguipment has heen provided an the straight line method{ refer Note 5{a) for change in method of depreciation effective
from 1 April, 2022) as per the useful ife prescribed in Schedule If to the Comparies Act, 2013 except in cases of certain assets where the management's estimate of the
useful life is less than the life prescribed in Schedule Il in which case depreciation is prescribed on the useful Jife as assessed by the management.

Improvements ta Leasehald Premises is smortized over the remaining primary lease period.

Depreciation is accelerated on property, plant and equipment, based on their condition, usability etc., as per the technical estimates of the Management, where
necessary,

An tem of property, plant and equigment s derecognized wpon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Lass.

Category Useful life
L Id improvernents Over lease term
Medical Equipments 1-13 years
Office Equipments 5 -B years
Yehicles 8-10 yaars
Compul 3-6 years
Electrical Fittings 1 years
Furniture and Fixtures 8-10 years
Lah Equip ts 10 years

Geodwill

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-cantrolling Tnterasts in the acquiree, and the fair value of the
acquirer's previously held eguity interest in the acquire (i any] over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabifities
assumed.

For the purpase of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in 2 Business combination is, frem the acquisition date, allocated ta each of the Group's cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit fram the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or (labilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units. Cash generating unit to
whith goodwill has been allocated is tested for impalrment annuzlly, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
ammpunt of the cash gererating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment lass is allocated {irst to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill atlocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognized in the
Stztement of Profit and Loss. An impairment lass recognized for goadwill is not reversed Tn subsequent periads.

Where goodwill has been alibcated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed
operation is inciuded in the carrying amount of the aperation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Gocdwill Sispased in these circumstances is measured
besed on the refative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

intangiile Assets

Intangible 3ssets with finite useful lives thai are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated smertization and accurnulfated impaimment losses {if any). The
intangible assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful fives on a straight-line basis, commencing from the date of assct available to Group for its
use. The useful fife consldered for the Tntangible assets are as under:

}Partiwlars Useful Lives

[satrware License period or 3 yedrs, whichever is fower
Trademarks 1D years

Custamer Relationshi] 5 years

Research & Davelopment Cost 3 years

Non-Compete Agreement Agread terms or 5 years , whichever Is lower

The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed zt the end of each reporting periad, with the effect af any changes in estimate being accounted for an
prospective basis. Intangiole assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost kess accumulated impairment Josses.

An Intangible asset is derecognized on dispasal ar when ro future economic benefits are expected from use of disposal. Gains or lasses arising frem derecognition ef an
intangthle assst measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset as recagnized in profit or loss when the asset is
derecagnized.
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4.9 Research and Development Expenditure
Expenditure on research aclivities are recognized as expense in the pericd in which it is incurred.
An internaily penerated intangible asset arising from develepment (or from devel 1t phase of an internal project) is recognized if, and anly if, afl the following have
been demonstrated:
a) the tachnical feasibifity of completing the intanglble assets so that it will be available for use or sale;
b} the intention to comptlete the intangible asset and use or sell i;
¢) the ability io use or sell the Intangible asset;
d) how the intangible asset will generate probahle future economic benefits;
&) the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the devalopment and to use or sell the intangible asset; and
1) the ability to reffably measure the expenditure attributzble ta the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognized for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the Intangibte asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed ahove, Where no internally-generatad asset can be recognized, development expenditure is recognized in the statement of profit and less in
the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognitian, internaily-generated intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated amertization and accumulated impairment losses, on the
same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

4.10 Impalrment of Targlble and Intangible Assets
Al the end of each reparting period, the group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets ta determine whether there s any indication that those
sssats have suffered an impaimment loss. i any such Tndication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 7s estimated in order to determing the extent of the
impairment loss {if anyl. Where it is nat possible ¢o estimate the recoverable amount of an Individual asset, the group estimates the recaverable amount of the cash-
generating unit 1¢ which the asset befongs. Where a reasonable and comsistent basis of allacation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocsted to individual cash-
generating units, or atherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives end intangible assets nat yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an Tndication
that the asset may be impaired,

Recaverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to seil and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated futvre cash ows are discounted to their present
value using & pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset far which the estimates of
future cash flows have not bean adjusted.

IF the recoverable amount of an asset [or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amaunt of the asset {or cash-generating unit}
is reduced 1o its recoverable armount. An impairment |oss is recognized immedistely in the Statement of Profit and Loss, uniess the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is ireated as a revaluation decrease.

Whan an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount cf the asset {or a cash generating unit) s Increased ta the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but se that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been i had no impai loss been recognized for
the asset {or cash generating unit} in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

The Group's policy for impairment of Goodwill is given in Note 4.7 above.

4.11 Inventories

tnventory of Traded Goods comprising Opticals, Pharmaceutical Products, Contact Lenses and Accessories, Cansumables and Provisions - Food Items are valued at lower
of cost ascertained using the First-in-Firsi-out method and net realizable value. Cost includes rost of purchase, freight, taxes, duties and other charges incurred far
bringing the gaods to the present lacation and condition and are net of VAT/GST/other tax cradits, where applicable.

Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price far inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Due allowance is estimated and made for unusable/ nen-saleable/ expired items of inventory wherever necessary, based on the past experience of the group and such
allowances are adjusted against the inventary carrying value.

4.12 Revenue Recognitian

(i} Revenue from Operations

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivabie. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to
customers In an amaunt that reflects the consideration we expect to received in exchange For those products or services. Sales and Service income exclude Goods and
Service Tax [GST) and are net of trade / volume discounts, where applicable.

sale of araducts camprising of Sale of Optical Frames and Lens, Pharmaceutical Praducts, Contact Lens and related accessories is recognized on defivery of items to the
custemers and where the risks and rewards are passed on to the customers,

Sale of services comprises Income from Consultation, Surgeries, Treatments and Investigations perfermed are recegnized on rendering the related services.

Other Cperating Income fram medical support services provided by The Group and 7s recognized on rendering the related services.

{ii) Other Income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits wili flow to the group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition. Dividend Income fs
accounted far when right ta receive it is established,
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Forgign Currency Transactions

Initial Recognition:

Cn initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applyfng to the fareign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and
the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Treatment of Exchange Differences:
Al monetary assets and liahilities in foreign currency are restated at the end of accounting period at the ciosing exchange rate and exchange differences on restatement

of ail menetary items are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Lass.

Censalidation of subsidiaries situated in foreign countrigs;

On cansalidation, the assets and liabilittes of foreign operations are translated Into INR at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their Statements of
#rofit and Loss are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions, For practical rezsans, the group uses an average rate to translate income and
expense Hems, If the average rate approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transattions. The exchange differences arising on translation for conselidation are
recognized in Other Comprehensive Income [OCf]. On disposat of a foreign operation, the compoenent of OCI relating to that particular forsign operation is recognized in
the Statement of Frofit and Loss,

Employee Benefits
Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits:

i) Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee defined benefit plans Inciude aratuity.

Far defined benefit retirement henefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried
out al the end of each annusl reporting pericd. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes te the asset ceiling {if applicable} and
the return on plan assets {excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive income in the
period n which they otcur. Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in reteined earnings and is not reclassified to profit ar
loss. Past service cost is recognized in the Statement of profit or less In the period of a plan amendment, Nat interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the
beginning of the period ta the net defined benefit liabllity or asset.

Definad benefit costs are categorized as follows:

- Service cost (inciuding current service cost, past service cast, as well as galns and losses on curtailments and settlements);

- Net interest expense or income; and

- Remeasurement

The group presents the first two companents of defined benekt costs In profit or loss in the fine item 'Employee benefits expense’. Curtaiiment gains and Josses are
accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the group's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from
this calculation is imited to the present value of any economic henefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans

A lizbility for & termination benefit is recognized at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity
recognizes any related restructuring costs,

Certain entities of the group make contribution to a seheme administered by the insurer to discharge gratuity liabilities to the employees.

Short-term and other long-term employee henefits
Aliahility is recognized for benefits accruing 1o employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected ta be paid in exchange far that senvice.

Ulabilities reccgnizad In respect of shert term employee benefits are measured at the undiscaunted amount of the benefits expected 1o be paid In exchange for the
related service.

Liabifities recognized in respect of other long term employee henefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by
the group in respect of services provided by employees up to the reparting date.

H) Defined Contribution Plans:
Employee defined contribution plans include prevident fund and Emgloyee state insurance.

Pravident Fund and Employee State Insurance:

Certain employses of the group receive benefits from Provident Fund and Employee’s State insurance, which are defined contribution plans. Bath, the employee and the
group make monthly contributians to the plan, each equaling to 3 specified percentage of employee’s hasic salary. The group has no further obiigations under the plan
beyond fts monthly cantributions

The group contributes to the Employee Provident Fund and Employee’s State Insurance scheme maintained by the Central Government of indiz and the contribution
thereof is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which the services are rendered by the employees.
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Share Based Payments :

The Group |5 covered under the employee stock option scheme of Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Uirnited, India {the holding company). Under the plan, the employees and
doctors of the Group sre granted shares and other stock awards of the holding company, In accordance with the terms and conditions as specified in the plan, The plan is
assessed, managed and administered by the halding company, whose shares and share based benefits have been granted to the emplayees and dociars of the Company.
The haiding company currently operates the plan / scheme of employee stock option ["ESOP”) and 2 share appreciation rights {"SAR"}. The Group has accounted for the
amount of 2xpense under Ind AS 102 ronsidering the invoice received from the holding company taking into acceunt the valuation carried out in respect of the same and
has made the related disclasures required under INDAS 102 based on information aiitained from the holding campany

ESQPs:
£quity settled share based payments ta the employees of The Group are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

Compansation expense for the Employee Stack Option Plan {"ESOP”}is measured zt the option value as on grant dete and the cast of the opticn will be amaortised on a
systematic basis which reflects pattern of the vesting of the options over the pericd of 4 years.

SARSs:

Cash settied share based payments to the doctors of The Group js remeasured at the value of option at the end of every reparting period. Compensation expense for the
Share Appreciation Rights ["SAR") will be accounted at every reporting date till the date of exercise of the 5ARs baset on the information provided by the holding
company [Refer Note 39],

Borrawing Costs.

Borrawing costs include interest, amortization of ancillary casts incurred ang exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they sre
regarded as an adjustment te the interest cost. Costs in connection with the barrowing of funds to the extent not directly related to the acquisition of qualifying assets
are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss aver the tenure of the loan. Bormowing costs, allocated to and wtifized for qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from
comrmencement of activities relating ta construction / development of the qualifying asset upte the date of capitalization of such asset are added to the cost of the
assets. Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement of Profit and Lass during extended periods when active development activity an the
qualifying assets is interrupted.

Interest income earned on the temporary invesiment of specific horrowings pending their expendlture on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitakzation.

All other borrowlng costs are racognized in prafit or loss in the periad in which they are incurred.
Government Grants, Subsidies and Expart Incentives
Gavernment grants and subsidies are recagnized when there s reasonable assurance that the Group wiil comply with the conditions attached te them and the grants /

subsidies will be received. Government grants whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire capital assets are presented by
deducting them from the carrying value of the assets. The grant is recognized as Income over the life of a depreciable asset by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Export benefits, if any, are accounted far in the year of exports based on eligibility and when there is np uncertainty in receiving the same.

Government grants Tn the nature of premoters’ contribution Iike investrnent subsidy, where no repayment is ordinarily expected in respect therecf, are accounted in
Reserves and Surplus in Cther Equity. Government grants in the form of non-rmonetary assets, given at a concessional rate, are recarded on the basis of thefr acquisition
cost, In case the non-manetary asset is given free of tost, the grant is recorded at a nominzl value.

Other government grants and subsidies are recognized as income over the periods necessary to match them with the costs for which they are intended to compensate,
an a systematic basis.

Segment Reparting

Operating segments reflect the group's management structure and the way the financial information is regularly reviewed by the greup's Chief operating decision maker
{CODM). The CODM considers the business from both business and product perspective based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns and the internal
organization and management structure. The aperating segments are the Far which financial i ion |s avail and for which aperating profit /
{loss) amounts are evaluated regularly by the executive Management in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.

The accounting policies adopted Tor segment repoerting are in line with the accounting pelicies of the group. Segment revenue, segmeat expenses, segment assets and
segment fiabilities have been identified to segments on the basfs of their relatlonship to the operating activities of the segment.

Inter-segment revenue, where applicable, is accounted an the basis of transactions which are primarily determined based on market / fair value factars.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the group as a whole and are not allecable to segments on reasonable basis are included under “unallocated
revenue / expenses / assets / liabilities”.

Leases

The Company's lease asset classes consists of leases for buildings. The Company, at the |ncaption of a contract, assesses whether the contract is a lease or not fease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right ta control the use of an identified asset fer a time in exchange for a consideration. This policy had been
applied to contracts existing and entered into on or after 1 April 2019.

The Group recognises a right-af-use asset and a lease Nability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the
inftial ameunt cf the lease Fability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs Incurred and an estimate of
costs ta dismantle and remave the underlying asset or ta restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreclated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease tarm.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the Company’s
incremental borrowing rate. it is remeasured when there Is a change in future lease payments arising from a change In an index or rate, if thera is a change in the
Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if The Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise 3
purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease fiability is r ] in this way. a cor di dj is made to the earrying amount of the right-of-
use asset, of is recerded tn profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced tc zero

The Group has elected niot to recognise right-of-use assets and |ease liabilities for short-term |eases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of iow-value
assets, The Group recognises the lease payments assogiated with these leases as an expense aver the lease term.
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Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is camputed using the waighted average number of equity shares outstznding during the period.

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered fer deriving basic EPS and zlso weighted average
number of equity shares that could have been Issued upon cenversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Potential equily shares are deemed to be dilutive only if thelr conversion to equity shares would decrease sarnings per share from continuing cperations, Dilutive
potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the heginning of the period, unless issved at a later dite, The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the
proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value {l.e. sverage market value of the outstanding shares). Difutive potential equity shares are
determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share
splits and honus shares, as appraprizte.

Taxes on incame
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax expense far the year is ascertained on the basis of assessable prafits computed in accardance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 and with the
provisicns of the respective tax laws of each subsidiary.

Minimum Alternate Tax {MAT) paid as current tax expense in accordance with the tax laws, which pives future ecenomic henefits in the form of adjustment to future
income tax liability, s considered as tax credit and recognized as deferred tax ssset when there is reasonzhle certainty that the group will pay normal income tax in the
future years and future ecanomic benefit associated with it will flow to the group. The carrying amount is reviewed at the end of each reporting periad and reduced to
the extent that It is no fonger probable that sufficient taxable profits will be availzbie to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is recagnized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liahilities in the Financial Statements ane the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tex liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognized for ail deductible temporary differences te the extent that it i= probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temparary
differences can be utilized. Such deferred 1ax assets and lishilities are not recognized if the temparary difference arises from the initial recognition {other than in a
business combination] of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each repartfng period and reduced to the extent that it is no lenger probabie that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recavered.

Deferred tax Yiabikties and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected 1o apply [n the periad in which the llability is settied or the asset realized, based on tax
rates {and tax laws] that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reperting period

The measurement of deferrad tax labilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would fallow from the manner in which the group expects, at the end of the
reparting period, to recover or settle the cammying amount of its assets and fiabilivies,

Provisi Canti Liabillties and Contl Assets

A provision is recogrized when the group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a resuit of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the abligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the
obligation at the balance sheet date and measured using the present value of cash flows estimated to seitle the present obligations (when the effect of time value of
money /s material). These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liability is disclosed far

{1} Possibie obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the controt of the group or

{ii) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an cutflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation ar a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation carinot ba mada.

The graup does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses fts existence In the C 1 Financial ts. Contl 1t assets are only disclosed when it is

probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entlty.
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Insurance claims are accounted fer an the hasis of claims admitted / expected ta be admitted and to the extent that the amount recoverable can be measured reliably
and it is reagonable to expect ultimate coflection.

4.24 Financial Instruments

Initial Recognition
Financial assets and financial Fabilities are recognized when the group becomes 3 party te the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assats and liabilities are
inftially measured at fair value, Transaction casts that are directly atiributable to the acauisition or issue of financial assets and financial fizbilities {other than financial
assets and financial liakilities at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPLY) are added to or deducted fom the fair value measured an initial recognition of financial asset or
financiel lisbility. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit end less sre
immediately recognized Tn the statement of prafit and loss.

4,241 Financial Assets

{a) ien and initial

{i) The group initially recognizes loens and advances, deposits and subardinated liabilities on the date on which they ariginate. All cther financial instruments {inchuding
regutar way purchases and sales cof financial assets} are recognized on the trade date, which is the date an which the group becomes a party to the contractual grovisions
of the instrument. A financial asset or lizbifity is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or [ssue.

{) Classification of financial assets
n Initial recagnition, a financial asset is classified to be measured at amortized cost, fair value thraugh other comprehensive income (FVTGCL or FYTPL

A financial asset [s measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the Following conditions and is not designated at FVTPL:

i} The asset is held within a business modef whose objective is to hald assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

{ii)The contrartuzl terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
autstanding.

For the impairment policy in financial assets measured at amorthed cost, refer Note 4.24.1 (g)
A debt instrument is classified as FYTOC| only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not recagnized at FVTPL:

(i}The asset is held within a business mode| whose objective is achieved by both collecting centractual cash flows and seliing financial assets; and
(fi]The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal ameunt
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at falr value.
{e) E¢fective interest methad

The effectiva interest method Ts a methad of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument and of allacating interest income over the relevant period, The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts {including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected ife of the debt instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt Instruments cther than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest incame is recognized in profitor
loss and Is included in the “Other iIncome” line ftem.

{d) Financial assets at fair value through profit or Yoss {FVTPL)

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortized cost criterfa or FVTOC! criterfa {see above) are measured at FYTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the
amortized cost criteriz or the FVTQC! criterfa but are designaied as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortized cast criteria or debt instruments that meet the FYTOC) criteria may be designated as at FYTPL upon initfal recognition if such
designation eliminates or significantly reduces a reasurement or recognition inconsistency thst would arise from measuring assets or liabilitles or recognizing the gains
and lossas on them on different bases. The group has not designated any debt instrument as at FYTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fir value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized in profit or lass.
The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the finandial asset and is included in the 'Other income’ line item.
Dividend on financial assets at FYTPL is recognized when the group's right to receive the dividends is estshlished, it is probable that the econamic benefiss associated
with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the isvesiment and the amount of dividend can be measured
retiably.

{e) tImpairment of financial assets

The group applies the expecced credit loss model for recognizing impairment loss on finantial assets measured at amortized cost, debt instruments at FYTOCI, trade
receivables and cther contrastual rights to receive cash or other financial asset.

Expected credit {psses are the weighted average of credit Insses with the respective risks of defauit occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the group in atcordanca with the cantract and all the cash flows that the group expects to receive fi.e. all cash shortfalls),
discaunted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financtal assets). The group
estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial Tnstrument {for le, prepay Y ian, call and similar options} through the expectad
life of that financial instrument.

The aroup measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amourit equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument
has increased significantly since Tnitial recagnition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recogaition, the group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument &t an smount equal 7o 12-manth expected credit losses, 12-month expected credit losses are pertion of the life-time
expected credit lasses snd represent the lifatima cash shortfails that will resutt if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash
shorifalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

Eor trade receivahles, the group always measures the loss allowsnce at an ameunt equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime
axpected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the group has used s practical expedient as permitted Under ind AS 108, This expacted credit foss allowance is
computed based on 3 provision matrix which takes into account histarical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-lagking Infermation.
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{f) Derecognition of financial assets

The group derecagnizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows fram the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to apother party. 1f the group neither transfers nor retains substantially ak the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the group recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. if the group
retains substentially all the risks snd rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the group continues to recognize the financia! asset and also recognizes 3
callateralized borrowing for the procesds received.

On derecognltion of a financlal asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized In other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have
otherwise been recognized in profit or loss on disposal of that financial agset,

On derecognition of a financial asset athar than in its entirety {e.g. when the group retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset], the group alocates the
previous carrying amaunt of the financial asset between the part it continues ta recognize under cantinuing invelvernent, and the part it na fonger recognizes on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount alfiocated to the part that is no fonger recognized
and the sum of the consideration received for the part ne longer recognized and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been retognized in other
comprehensive incorme is recognized in profit or loss If such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognized and the part that is no
langer recognized on the basis of the relative fair values of thase parts.

(g} Foreign exchange gains and losses:

The fair value of financial assets dencminated in a foreign currency Is determined in that foreign currency and transtated at the spot rate at the end of each reperting
periad.

« For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amartized cost and FYTPL, the exchange differences are recognized n profitor loss.

» Changes in carrying amount of Investments in equity instrurnents at FVTOCI relating 1o changes in fareign currency rates are recognized in other comprehensive
income

o Far the purposes of recagnizing foreign exchange gains or losses, FYTOCI debt instruments are treated as financial assets measured at amartized cost. Thus, the
exchange differences on the amortized cost are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOC) financial assets are
recagnized in ather comprehensive income.

FINANCEAL LIABRITIES AND EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

{a) Classification as debt or equity
Financial liabilities and equity Instruments issued hy the group are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered intc and the definitions
of 2 financial liability and an equity instrument.

{b} Equity instruments

An equity instrurent is any contract that evidences a residual Irterast In the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabifities. Equity instruments are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direci issue costs. Repurchase of the group's own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in equity. No gain ar loss is recognized
in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the group’s own equity Trstruments.

[e} Fimancial Liabilities at FUTPL
Financial lizbilities are classified as at FYTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability 1s classified as heid for trading if:

* it has been incurred principally far the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

« on initial recognition it js part of 2 portfolio of identified financial instrumants that the group manages together and has a recent actual pattem of short-term profit-
taking;

A financfal liability ather than a financial liability held far trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon mital recognition if:

= such designaticn eliminates or significantly reduces a measurermnent of recaguition inconsistency that would etherwise arise; or

= the financial liahility forms part of a group of financia! assets or financial liabilities or bath, which is managed and its pedformance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordanee with the group's documented risk management or investmant stratagy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

{d) Fi ial liabilities suk ly measured at amartized cost

Fimancial Ilabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FYTPL are measured at amortized cost at the end of subsequent accounting periads. The
carrying amounts of financial lahilities that are subseguently measured at amertized cast are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is
not capitafized as part of costs of an assetis included in the ‘finance costs' line ir@m.

The effective interest metnod is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a finzncial fisbllity and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discaunts) through the expected life of the financfal liabiltty, or {where appropriate] a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

{e) Foreign exchange gains and losses
For financial llabHities that are denominated in a foreign cumency and measured at amortized cost at the end of each reparting period, the forelgn exchange gains and
losses are determined based on amortized cost of the fnstruments and are recognized in the Statemant of Profit and Loss.

The fair value of the financial ilabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that ferelgn currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the
reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or lesses recognized in the
Statement of profit and Loss.

{f) Derecognition of financial liabilities

The group derecoegnizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the group's abligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid ang payable is recognized the Staternent of Profit and Loss.

Goods & Service Tax Input Credit

Goods & Serives Tax Input Credit is accounted for In the books during the period in which the underlying goods and services received is accounted and where there is no
uncertainty in availing/utilizing the same.

Exceptional ftems

Exteptianal items are itemns of income and expenses which are of such size, nature or incidence that their separate disclosure is relevant to explain the parformance of
the Group.
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4.27 Criticat Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of Consalidated Financial Staternants in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make Judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reparted amounts of assets, fiabilities, income and expenses and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about the
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adfustment to the carrying value of assets or lizbilties affected in future periods.

Estfmates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing hasis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the esiimates are
revised and future periods are affected,

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect an
the amounts recognized in the financial statements are Tncluded in the following notes:

i} Usefui lives of Property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 4.6}

(i) Assets and ahligations relating to employee benefits [Refer Note 4.14)

{iii} Valuation and measurement of Tncome taxes and deferred taxes [Refer Note 4. 21}

{iv] Provisions far disputed statutory znd other matters {Refer Note 4.22)

{v] Valuation of Goodwill and Intangible Assets an Business Comhbinations (Refer Nate 4.7)
{vi} Impairment of Goodwill {Refer Note 4.10)

{vil) Allowance for expected credit losses {Refer Note 4.24.1 {e))

{viil) Falr valuz of Financial Assets and Lizkilities {Refer Note 4.24.1 and 4.24.2)

{ix) Lease Term of Leases entered by the Company (Refer Note 4.19)

Determination of functional currency:
Currency of the primary economic envicenment Tn which The Graua operates {"the functional currency”) is Indian Rupee {INR} in which The Group primarily generates
and expends cash. Accordingly, the Management has assessed its functional currency ta be Indian Rupee {INR).
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Dr, Agarwal's Health Care Limited

Notes forming part of the C iidated Financial for the Year Ended 3%st March 2023
6 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
[Amaunt in Rs. Crores)
Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March
2043 2022
Carrying amounts of:
Buitding 346.40 189.96
Medical Equipments 337 156
Leasehold land 110.70 114.94
Total 460.47 306.45
6.1 Details of movement in the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets
[Amount in Rs. Crores)
Bescrlption of Assets Medical Equipmants Buildings Leaseheld land Total
I Gross carrying valus
As at 1 Aprli 2021 392 233.38 77.50 314.80
Additfens 5 50.56 43.29 93.85
Disposals / Adjustments during the year - (1.89) - (1.29)
As at 31st March 2022 3.92 283,05 120.79 a06.76
As at 1 April 2022 392 28005 120.79 408.76
Addittons 226 143.86 - 151.22
Additions through husiness Combinations 57.45 57.45
Disposals / Adjustments during the year - (L32) {2.52)
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment 4.02) {4.02)
As at 31st March 2023 6.18 481.92 120.79 &0E.89
II. Accumulated depreciation and impairment
As at 1 April 2021 195 60.89 2.67 65.52
Charge far the year 0.40 L 3.18 3535
Disposals [ Adjustments during the year - (057} - {0571
As at 31st March 2022 236 92.09 5.85 104,30
As at 1 April 2022 236 92.09 5.85 100,30
Charge For the year 0,45 50.23 - 50.68
Transferred to CWip - 4.24 4.24
Disposals / Adjustments during the year - {1.69} - {1.69)
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment - {5.11} - {5.11)
As at 31st March 2023 2.81 13552 08 148.42
Net carrying value as at 31st March 2023 3.37 346.40 110.70 460.47
Net carrying value as at 31st March 2022 1.56 189.96 114.94 306.46
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Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 21st March 2023

7.2 Subsidiary wise breakup of Goodwill an Consclidation

{Amount in Rs. Crores

Name of the Subsidiary

As at
31st March 2023

Asat
31st March 2022

Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited 24.09 24.09
Orbit Healthcare $ervices (Ghana) Limited 1.51 2,01
Orbit Health Care Services Madagascar SARL 0.48 0.48
Orbit Health Care Services Mozambique Limitad {4.45) {4.08)
Orbit Thelish Health Care Servicas Nigeria Limited 0,09 0.09
Orbit Health Care Services Limited, Rwanda 6.92 6.96
QOrbit Health Care Services [Tanzania) Limited 0.31 0.28
Orbit Health Care Services {Zambia) Limited 0.48 0,51
Qrbit Health Care Services (Uganda} Limited 3.26 3.17
Orbit Health Care Service (Mauritius) Ltd. {0.74) (0.74}
Aditya Iyt Eye Hospital Private Ltd 24.87 24.87
Tatal 56.80 57.64

7.3 Breakup of Goodwill on acqulsitions :

[Amount in Rs. Crores)

. A b As at As at

Particulars of Cash Generating Unit 31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Haspital at MNellore 0.45 0.45
Hospital at Hyderabad 0.05 0.05
Hosgital at Guntur .40 0.40
Hospital at Pune (1) 11.24 12.24
Hospitai at Bengaluru (1} 237 2.37
Hospitai at Bengaluru (2) 16.76 16.76
Haospitai at Indore 9.30 9.30
Haspital at Mumbai (1) 4.28 4.28
Hospitai at Coimbatore 0.10 0.10
Hospitai at Nashik 14.28 14,28
Hespital at Vijayawada 4.52 4,52
Hospital at Pune {2) 3.32 3.32
Hospital at Mumbai (2) 2217 22.13
Hospitai at Nashik College Road 0.18 0.18
Hospital at Pune (3} 3.05 -
Haospitai at Punjab 4.00 -
Haospital at Mohati 5.81 =
Hospital at Panchkula 3.44 -
Hospital at Pune {4} 6.33 -
Hospital at Madanapalle 0.57 -
Hospital at Bhavnagar 3.93 -
Hospital at Surat 13.09 =
Hospital at Vapi 1.94 =
Hospltal at Jammu 5.92 -
Hospital at Mumbai {3) 23.22 -
Hospital at Satara 0.0 -
Hospital at Davanagere 8.69 -
Hospital at Mumbai {4} 7.11 -
Hospltal at Madurai 3872 -
Total 216.40 90,38

hospital was alsa written back as this izahility was ne longer payable.

accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 36.

7.4 {i) During the pericd ended 31 March 2022, the company has fully Impaired the non-compete fee and customner relatienship
recagnised in refation to the acquisition of Vinayaka Nethralaya haspital located at lanjeerwala square, which had a net carrying
value of {NR 3.70 crores. Further, contingent consideration of INR 2.29 crores accrued under acguisition liabillty towards this

[ii] As on 31 March 2023, Goodwill balances have been tested for impairment znd no provision required to be recorded in




DOr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited
Notes forming part of the Consalidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

& Other financlal assets

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars

As at_31st March 2023

As at 21st March 2022

Non-current, at amertized cost
{a) Rental Deposits

- Related Parties (Refar Note 36) 0.36 0.36

- Others 24.28 19.64

{h) Security deposits 177 1.44
Total 26.41 21.44

9 OTHER ASSETS (Unsecured, Cansidered good)

(Amaunt in Rs. Crores)

Particulars

As at 315t March 2023

As at_31st March 2022

Cther non-currant assets

[a)  Capital Advances 8.26 10.31
Total 8.26 10.31
Cther current assets

(a) Prepaid Expenses 5.73 314

(b)  Advances to Suppliers 262 4,79

(c}]  Employee Advances 0.01 0.02

(d) Balances with Government Authorities

- Input Credit Receivables 284 7.43

(e}  Prepaid share issue expenses [refer note below] - 1.16

{f Statutory remittances - Balances with Government Authorities 002 -
Total i1.22 16.54

Note;

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the company incurred an amount of INR 1.16 crores towards fund raise which got concluded in FY2022-23. This amount is shown

as prepaid share issue expenses which will be adjusted against security premium in the FY 2022-23.

10 INVENTORIES {at lower of cost or net realizable value)

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars

As at 31stMarch 2023

As at 31st March 2022

[E]] Traded Goods

- Opticals 10.36 9.32
- Pharmaceutical Products 1.56 5.21
- Contact Lens and Accessories 2.36 1.25
- Main, Headset Assembly - Stock in Trade - 0.09
{b)  Raw Materials / Consumables {goods held for consumgption) 0.52 0.81
{c) Consumables (gaods held for use in rendering services) 15.19 14.85
{d) Clinical items and Equipments held for trading 0.05 1.39
Total 36.04 32.92
Notes:
(Ampunt in Rs, Crores}
Sl No Particulars As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

1 |The cost of inventories recognized as an expense during the year

1 |The cost of inventories recagnized 3s an expense, includes write downs of inventary to
net realizable value
3 |The mode of valuation of tnventories has been stated in Note 4.11

233.90
012

159.97
.98




Agarwal’s Health Care Limited
Notes forming part of the Consoll

ted Finandlal Statements far the Year Ended 31st March 2023

11 INCOMETAX

11 Noncurrent Income tax assets

(Amount in Rs. Erores)
Particulars LS At
315t March 2023 31st March 2022

Incame tax payments made against returns fited fdamands received (including tases deducted arsource) 7380 5172
Less: Provislons far incame Tax 14132 (28.87)
Tax Refund receivable et} 248 12.85

11.2 Income tau Expense
[Amount in &s. Crores)

Particulars (Ant Asat
31stMarch 2023 | 3ist March 2022
{A 1) Income Tax recognized in statement of profit andloss
{if Curveent Tax:
- In respect of current year 2023 14.68
- In respect of prior years -
Tatal (A} 2022 14.68
i} Deferces Tax:
-in respect of current year 3986 108
Total (B} 3986 108 |
Total income tax expense recognizedin fit 3nd Ipss accaunt {A+B) $19.63] 1361[

(A2} Income tax recognized in ather Comprehensive Income
Deferred tax related to items recognized In other comprehensive income during the vear:

~Remeasurement uf defined benefit i ; A 0.13 0.20
- | 0.13 = 0.20
tClassification of income tax recognized in other emprahensive income
- Income taxes refated to items that will be reclassified o profit or loss - -
Incarme taxes refated to items that wiil not be reclassiled to profit ar foss 0.13 0.20
[Total 0.13 0.20
(4.3) Recanclliatian of Income tax expense and the profit by pany’s domestic tax rate:
Profit £ {Loss) before tax after exceptions] items B3.60 56.76
Income Tax using the tax rate of eniities consolidated {Refer Nate {i] below) 1711 1279
Tax Effect of :
- Recogniion of deferred tax asset on account of brought forward husingss lusses and depreciation ®B12
- adjustment on sccount of brought forward losses and deprediation (4.89)
- Deferred Tax Credls not 6ll FY 22 and recognised i current year (57:35} -
- Eftect of expenses that sre non—deductibte in determining taxagle profit 1055} LE
- Deterred tax not recognised 565
- Gthers, : 16.89) s=— |
Tax expens recognized instatement of profit or ioss from continuing oparations - (19.63) 1361 |
Kotes:

{1} The Lax rate wsed w.r.t reconcilisklan above for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are the respactive corparale tax rates prevalant a1 each subsidiary of the Group.




Dr. Agarwal's Health CareLimited

Hotes formin;

1z

121

123

art of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Yeas Ended 31st M.

DEFERRED TANES
Deferred Tax Balavces
[Amaunt in Rs. Crores)
Particulars et =
315t March 2023 15t March 2022
The fallowing is the analysis of the nel deferred ta asset/ liabllity) position as presented In the Fnancis statements
| Deferred taxassels 55.21 1350
MAT Credit Q.25 0.25
Deferred tax assets 55.46 i2.15
Deferred ta lishilities 145 128
Mavement in Deferred Tax Balances
A. Far the Year Ended 31st March 2023
{Amount in k3. Crores)
Charge/iCredit] recognized In
: . Forelgn Currenty Asal
Particulars As at 1 april 2022 of Prafit | Other Ci Transdation 315t Masch 2623
and Loss Inceme -
adjustment
Tax effact of items conssuting deferred tax assets / (deferred tax fiabilities)
Froperty, Plant and Equiprent and Intangibls Assers 234 264 984
Employes Benefits 146 210 013 369
Frovisians 433 354 827
Lease assets net of [ease llabilities 318 agL 7.20
Unrealised exchange differences = 118 119
Brought forward Loss and Unabsorbed Depredation 5593 127.36) 1R A3
Financial assets at fairvalue through profit & loss 030 1e.1) 019
ther iterns 741 13.75) 366
MAT Credit 035 - L
Less: Valuztion Allowancs (57,404 57.40 -
Net Tax Asset f{liabilities} 12.87 0.13 0.16 53.04
B. Forthe Year Ended 31st March 2022
. (Amaount in ks, Crores)
Charge /{Credit) recognized in [
; . Faroign Currency Asat
€
Partizulars Asat LApril 2021 Upurn e — of Profir | Othar e Tranuixtion 315t March 2022
ishedar . adjustment
Tax effact of items canstituiing defermed tax assets £ {deferred tax liabilties
|
Froperty, Piapt and Egquipment 1104 | {363 - loe7) .34
Emplayee Benafits 201 0.75) 020 - L6
Provisions 213 2.20 433
Lease assets net of lease hiabihtias 257 052 1%
Brought Forward Logs and Unabsoshed Depreriation 4004 595 45.99
Valuation of Investments. 123 [1.23) -
Financial assets at far value through prafit & loss 015 015 LED)
Cther items 542 159 741
Net Deferred tax hability on zecount of Aditya Jyot Eye Hospital - (1.43) 143 -
MAT Cradit B35 - 035
Diidand Distribution Tax on foreseeable profits from subsdiary {0.08) 008 -
Less: Valuatian Allowance {5L.75) {5.65) | {57.40)
1
Net Tax Asset /fLizbilities) 13.03 1.43 115 8.20 | 10.073) B8

Note:

The Company has recagnized Dalerred Lax asset of INR 29.86 Crores in the books as there is reasonable cerfainity of gasming futiira taxable profits based on the annual analysis of Luture projections of taxeble inceme of the

Company as 2t 21 March 2023 .




Dr. Agarwal’s Health Care Limited
Notes farming part of the Consolidated Finanelal Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

13 INVESTMENTS - CURRENT

[Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Current Investments - carried at Falr Value through Profit & Loss

fa]  Investmentsin Mutual Funds
{1) 5Bl Liquid Fund growth
As at 31 March 2623 - 29136 units & 3523.30 NAV per unit
As at 31 March 2022 - Nil

{11} tnvesca India Uitra Short Term Fund - Direct Plan Growth (MT-D1}
As at 31 March 2023 - 1494 units @ 2435.78 NAV per unit
As at 31 March 2022 - Nil

{iil}) Sundaram Liguid Fund
As at 31 March 2023 - 50487 units @ 1986.65 NAV per unit
As at 31 March 2022 - Nil

{iv] HSBC Overnight Fund - Direct growth
As at 31 March 2023 - 110844 units @ 1173.456 NAV per unit
As at 31 March 2022 - Nil

10.27

0.38

10.03

13.00

Total

33.66

{Amount in Rs. Crores}

Particulars

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

{a) Aggregate book value of quoted investments
Aggregate market value of quoted investments

{b} Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments

13.66
33.66
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Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Eimited
Nuotes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 315t March 2023

THADE RECEIVABLES
[Amount in Rs, Crores)

Partlcutars Asat 31st March 2023 | As at 31st March 2022
Current
[a) Undisputed Trade Receivables -Secured and Cansidered good 108.50 £4.17
‘Allowance far doubtiul debts {32.27) {27.45)
[b) Undisputed Trade Receivables -Considered doubtful - -
‘Allowance for doubtfui debts - considered good = *
[c} Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered good ] =
{8} Disputed Trade Receivables -Considered doubtful =
[e] Other trade receivables E -
Total 76.33 56.72
A at 31st March 2023 {Amount in Bs. Crores)
Less tian 6
Particulars manths 6months - lyzar 1- 2years 2-3years More than 3 years Total
{a} Undisputed Trade Recelvables -Considarad good B£7.50 19.77 13.m 5.34 .97 108.60
AMlowance for daubtful debts - secured - considerad pocd (9.49) i6.21) 9.15} {4.57) {2.B5] (32.27)
{b) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit - - - - - -

risk
{c} Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - =
{d} hisputed Trade Receivables -Considered good - - = -
{e} Disputed Trade Recefvables -which have significant increasa in credit risk - - e

{f) Disputed Trade Receivables -credit impaired - - - = 3 =

Total 58.01 13.56 3.87 0.7 0.12 75.33
As at 3ist March 2022 {Amgunt én R, Crores]

Particulars Lessthan) 6 months - 1year 1- Zyears 2-3years Mure than 3 years Total

months

{a} Undisputed Trade Receivahies -Considerad good 42.08 15.86 1160 6.36 129 84.17
Allowance for doubtful debts - secured - considersd good (8.20} {5.86) {6.11) {5.98} [1.29) {27.45)
{b! Undisputed Trade Receivablas - which have significant increase in cradit - - -
risk

{c) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - g - < - =
[d} Disputed Trade Receivahles -Considered goad
{e} Disputed Trade Receivables -which have significant increase in credit risk - - s 2 =

{f] Disputad Trade Recelvables -credit impaired - - s 2 s g
Total 40.86 10.060 549 938 0.00] 56.72

Credit period and risk

Significart portion of the Group's business is against receipt of advance. Credit is provided mainly to Insurance C fes, Corparate c ang ¢ cavered by ded health
senefits. The Insurance Companies are required to maintain minimum reserve |evels and gre-approve the insurance claim, Gavearnment undertakings and the Corperate Customers are enterprises with high
credit ratings. Accordingly, the Group exposure o credit risk in refation to trade receivabies is fow.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearlng and are generally due immediately when the invoice is raised. OF the Trade Recsivable as at 31 March 2023 and 32 March 2022, following is the details of customers
having mera than 5% of the total balence of trade receivshles:

Number of customers
having mare than 5% of | Balance Dutstanding

the total balance of {(Amaunt in Rs, Crores)

trade receivablas

Farticulars

As at 31st March 2023 23.30]
As at 31st March 2022 [ 31.35]
There are no other customers who regresent more than 5% of the total balance of trade receivables.

w

Ma trade receivable are due fram directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in
which eny directar is 2 partner, a directar or a member.

Expecied credit loss alfowance

‘Tha Greup has used a practical expedient by compubing the expected toss allowance for trade receivahles based on pravision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account the historical credit loss experience
and adjustments far forward looking information. The expected credit foss allowance (s based on the ageing of the days the recaivables are due and tha rates as given in the prevision matrht, considering the
amounts due from the government undertakings and the other undertakings.

The provision matrix at the ent of the reporting period 31 March 2023 is as fallows:

Particulars Expected Credis loss {%}
1-90 days past due 7% 1o 24%
91-180 days past due 22% %0 50%
181-270 days past due 27% 10 59%
271-360 days past due 35% 10 60%
361-450 days past due I7% to 190%
451-540 days past due 44% to 100%
541-630 days past due 51% to 100%
630-720 days past due 61% to 100%
720-310 days past due B54% to 100K
tvlora than 810 days past due 100%
Mouvementin the allowarce for doubtful receivables [including experted cradit loss )] {amount in Rs. Creres)
Particuars 2022-23 2021-22
Balance at beginning of the year 2745 71.05
{Add) Provision Created during the year 1175 1110
Farelgn Currency Transiation adjustment {1.95) {0.66)
{Less) Provislon written off during the year {4.987 4.03}
Movement in axpected credit loss allowance on trade receivables calculated at lifetime expected credit lasses 4.82 541
Balance at end aof the year 3227 27.45

During the year ended 31 march 2023, the Company has written-off trade receivable balances amounting ta Rs. .98 cores |31 March 2022-INR 4.03 crores) which are cutstanding far more than 3 years as at
31 March 2023 and have utilised the existing allowances towards expected credit loss. The company doss not expect ta receive Future cash flows/recoveries from trade receivables previously written off.
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Dr. Agarwal's Hezlth Care Limited
Notes furmini part of the Consalidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 315t March 2023

CASH AND BAKK BALANCES

Cash and ¢ash equivalents

{Amount in Rs. Crares)
As at 31st March 2022

Particulars As at 31st arch 2023

{a] CashonHand 15.00 .01
{b}  Balanceswith Banks

- In Current Accounts 54.64 57.11

- In Fixed deposits with maturity tess than 3 manths 53.34 40.50
Total 126.98 99.62
Note: Represents fixed deposit with maturity less than 3 months.
Cther Bank Balances {Amaount in Rs. Crores}

Particulars As at 3%st March 2023 | As at 31st March 2022

{a) In Fixed Deposits - under Lien 2107 16.48
{b}  In Earmarked Escrow Accounts 039 0.58
{c} unpaid dividend .05 D.08
{d}  Fixed deposits - Other bank balances 0.13 =
Total 21.35 17.06
Notes:
{1} Beposit under Lien reprasents depasits placad for Bank Guarsntees obtained by the Company

- Towards Guarantaes for empanelling with Govt Schemes, PSU's ete 180 S0

- Bank Guarantee placed against the IRP process - 250

- Cutstanding Interest Payable to Debenture Holder [COC Group PLC)Y 10.77

- F marked under Lien - tewards acquisition of Aditya Jyot Eye Hospital Pvt Lid. 8.50 8.50
Total 21,97 16.48

i) Balance in Escrow areounts represents amount deposited in the account specifically earmarked for payment of interast on dehantures to the debenture holders (Refer Note 19.1)

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
;Amount in Rs. Crores)
Particulars As at 31st March 2023 | As at 31stMarch 2022
Cugrent_
fa}  Interestaccroed but net due an fixed deposits 0.47 0.17
b} Advances ta Employees 0.40 057
[e}  Others
- Receivahle fram Gthers 0.02 0.17
{d} Rents) Deposits
- Others 350 i1
Total 4.39 8,62
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EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31sk March 2023 As a1 3Ist March 2022
Particulars Number of {Amount in Number of shares {Amount ia
shares Rs. Crores) Rs. Crares)
Authorised Share capitat
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 19,200,000 19.20 7,000,000 7.00
10% Cumulative Redeemahle Non-Convertible Preference Shares of - - 10,000,000 10.08
Rs. 10 each
0.001% Fully and Compulsorily Convertible Non- Cumulative 7,080,000 70.80 7,100,000 71.00
Participating Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each
90,00 88.00
Isswed and subscribed capital comprises:
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 7,926,103 7.93 6,859,969 E.86
Total 7,926,103 7.93 6,859,969 6.86

Reconciliation of the Wumker of Shares and Amount Gutstanding at the Beginning and at the End of the Reporting Periad:

As at 3ist March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Particulars Number of {Amount in tNumber of shares {Amount In
shares Rs. Crores) Rs. Crores)

Equity Shares
Shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 6,859,969 6.86 6,859,969 6.86
Add: Fresh issue of shares/Adjustment during the year 941,716 054 - 5
Add: Canversion during the year 124,418 0.13 - -
Shares outstanding as at the end of the year 7,926,103 1.93 6,859,969 .86
Note

1. During the year ended 3Ist March 2023 the company has issued fresh issue of shares of 5,96,420 numbers [Face Value of Rs. 10 each) to Arvon
investments Pte Ltd and 3,45,296 (Face Value of Rs. 10 each) numbers to Hyperion Investments Pte.ltd aggregating to total Equlity shares of 5,41,716
naumbers dated 05th May 2022

2. Further during the year ended 31st March 2023, the Comnpany has allotted 53,024 equity share to the helders af 1,24,301 Compulsorily Convertibie
Preference shares helders and 71,394 exuity shares to holders of 1,67,366 shares to all of its Compulserily Convertible Oebentures holders.

Terms / rlghts attached to Equity Shares !

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10. Each holder is entitled ta one vote per equity share. Dividends are paid in
fndfan Rupees. Dividend praposed by the Board of Directors, if any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Annuzl General Meeting except In
case of interim dividend. Repayment of capital will be in accordance with the terms of the Articles of Association and in proporticn to the number of equity
shares held.




17.3 Details of shares hald by each shareholder helding more than 5% shares

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Class of Shares Mumbar of % holding of equity | Numbar of Shares | % holding of equity
| Shares held shares hetd shares
| Equity shares
{a) Dr. Amar Agarwal 423,350 5.34%. 423,350 B.17%
{b} Dr. Athiva Agarwel 512,062 6.46% 523,536 7.63%
[} Dr. Adil Agarwal 118,743 5.28% 511,985 7.46%
{d} Dr. Anosh Agarwal 524,263 6.61% 524,263 7.64%
{e} Dr. Ashvin Agarwal 509,514 5.43% 509,514 FA3%
[ Valuz Grawth Investment Holdings Pte. Limited = . 2.174.285 31.70%
{g) Or. Anagsh Aigarwal on hehalf of Or Agarwal's Eye Insthiute 366,339 4.62% 366,339 5.34%
[k} M/s Claymore Investments {(Mauritivs) Pte. Ltd 1,614,815 WI% 1,614,815 23.54%|
(i} Hyperion Investrents Pre. Ld 2,599,975 32.69% =
‘ll] Arvan Investment Pte. Ltd . 754,210 9.52% - -
\ToTAL 7,714,271 97.33% 6,548,137 96.91%,

17.4 Share hofding by promoters

The details af shares held by promotars as at 31 March 2023 are as foliows:

As st 3ist March 2023

As at_31st March 2022

{lass of Shares Number of % holding of equity | Number of Shares | % holding of equity % Change i share
Shares held shares held shares holding

Equity shares

(a) Br. Amar Agarwal 523,330 5.34% 423,350 6.17% ~13.45%
{b) Dr. Athiya Agarwal 512,062 6.46% 533,586 7.63% -1536%
(c) Dr. Adli Agarwal 418,743 5.28% 511,985 FAp% 20.21%
(d) Dr. Anash Agarwal 524,253 6.61% 524,263 7.60% -13.45%
(€] Dr. Ashvin Agarwal 509,514 6.43% 509,514 7.43% 13.45%
(7 Dr. Ashar Agarwal 16,435 0.21% 16435 0.24% 13.45%
(g} Dr Aganwzls Eye Institute Private Limitad 144,744 1.83% 144,744 2.11% 13.45%
(h) Farah Agarwal 20,500 0.26% 20,500 0.30% -13.45%
(1) Urenila Agarwat 20,500 0.26% 20,500 0.30% -13.45%
{J} Dr. Anosh Agarwal en behall of Dr Agarwal's Eye institute 366,339 4.62% 366,339 5.34% -13.45%
Total 2,956,450 37.30% 3,061,216 44.62% -16.41%




Dr, Agarwal's Health Care Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial § ts for the Year Ended 31st March 2023
18 OTHER EQUITY {Amount in Rs, Crores)
Particulars Note Asat Aslat
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
General Reserve 8.1 0.52 0.83
Securities premium reserve 18.3 756.07 427.23
Ratalned earnings 18.3 {104.31) (191.84)
Capital redemption reserve 18.4 0.4 0.04
ESOP Reserve 18.5 1.83 -
Capital reserve 8.7 1.68
Total Reserves and Surplus 656.14 236.26
Exchange Difference on Translation of Foreign Subsidiary {34.51) {30.75)
Total Other Comprehensive Income {34.51) {30.75}
Tatal 621.63 205.51
18.1 General reserve {Amount in Rs. Crores)
Particulars Aslat Asfat
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Opening Balance 0.83 0.83
Adjustments during the year 2 =
Closing balance 0.B3 0.83
The general reserve represents appropriation of retained earnings by transfering profits. As the general reserve is created by a transfer from
one component of equity to another and is nat an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.
18.2 Securities premium
[Amount in Rs. Crores}
Particulars Aslat LOEE
31st March 2023 3ist March 2022
Opening Balance 427.23 427.23
Add ; Premium on Shares issuied/ Converted during the Year 338.55 -
Less: Application of securities premium far issue of equity shares {9.71) -
¢losing Balance 756.07 427.23
Amounts received on issue of shares in excess of the par value has bean classified as securities premium.
18.3 Retained earnings
{Amount in Rs. Crores)
Particulars piieh et
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Cpening Balance (191.84) {228.30}
Adjustments
profit attributable to owners of the Company 94,10 37.69
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability or asset {0.97) {1.23)
Excess consideration paid over net assets upan acquisition of nan-controlling interest {5.60}
flosing Balance (104.31) {191.84}
Note:

The amount that can be distributed by the Group as dividends to its equity shareholders is determined based on the financial statements of the
Company and also considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, the amounts reported above are not distributable in
entirety.
During the year ended March 31, 2023, the baldirg company acquired additional shares in fts subsidiary Aditya lyot Private Limited. INA (-}
5.68 Crores has been recognised as the difference between invested value and networth of the entity for the percentage shareholding
acquired.




18.4 Capital redemption reserve

18.5

18.6

18.7

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars Asat ASIEt
31t March 2023 31st March 2022
QOpening Balance Q.04 2.04
Adjustments during the year E 5
Closing balance 0.04 0.04
ESOP Reserve {Amount in Rs. Crores|
. As at As at
Particulars
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Opening Balance 5 -
Adjustments during the year 1.83
Clasing balance 1.83 -
Exchange Difference on Transiation of Foreign Subsidiary
Particulars LOET Aslat
31st March 2023 3ist March 2022
Exchange Difference on Translation of Foreign Subsidiary
Opening Balance (30.75) {22.42)
Add/{Less): Gther Comprehensive income for the year, net ef income tax {3.76) (8.33)
Closing Bal (34.51) {30.75)
Capital reserve
Particulars ASIat Aslat
31st March 2023 315t March 2022
Opening Balance - -
AdJustments during the year 1.68 e
Closing balance 168 5

Note:

Orbit Healthcare international Operations Limited {Step Down Subsidiary) merged its operations with Orbit Healthcare Mauritius limited

[Subsidiary Co), resulting in capital reserve of |NR 1.68 Crores.
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19 NON-CURRENT BORROWANGS

{Amount in Rs. Creres)

As at As at

fit

Particulars
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Borrowings measured at amortized cost:
Secured Borrowings
(i) 2,150 Senicr Redeemable, Non-Canvertible Debentures of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 ea<h 133.33 143.45

[Paid Up value - Rs. 10,00,000 ezch] (Refer Note (19.1(2}) below}
Tarm Loans / Others {Refer Note {15.2) below)

- From Banks 169.22 7242
{ii}  Vehicle loans 0.09 .32
{iv)]  0.001% Fully and Compuisarily Convertible Debentures f Face Value of Rs. 1200 each (Refer - 20.08
note (19.3} below]
{v)  0.001% Fully and Compulsarily Convertible Nen- Cumulative Participative Preference Shares - 14.76
of Rs, 100 each {Refer note (19.3) below)
{vil  Long term borrowings - Others {Refer note (19.4} below) 2.95 2.96
Total 305.60 253.99

19.1 Dretails of Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures

{a

2,150 Senior Redeemahle Non Convertible Debetures of Face Vaue Rs.10,00,000 each

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the company had a total drawdown of INR 170 Crores. The details of tenor, interest rate, repayment

terms

of the same are given below:
{Amount in Rs. Crores)

No. of instalments
Ri it 1st March
5.Mo.| Original Tenor {in Months) Interest Rate outstanding as at e::z:::n St :;:;March Y :0;; ot
31st March 2023
3M MIBOROIS +
19 Maonth: rtel
1 e l‘i',Pa’"’”t Spread 18 Refer Note (i 161,89 157.85
Refer Note {#)
Sub-Total 161.89 157.85

Notes:

0]
(i

i)

(i)

v

1)

[vii)

The first installment of principal is payable on expiry of 36 months from the date of first drawdown i.e. 11 December 2019.

As per the terms of Debenture Trust Deed, the coupon rate shall be charged at the rate of 3M MIBOR + 0I5 Coupan interest payments
are to be made on a monthly basis for the year ended 31st March 2023,

During the period ended 31 March 2023, the company had received approval from the CDC Group PLC for change in repayment
schedule of orginal 96 manth repayment to 19 months guartely payout.

Subsequent to year ended 31 March 2023, the holding company has refinanced the loan from CDC Group PLC to ICIC] Bank for the
entire cuistanding amount as an 30 May 2023,

The details of Security provided are as follows:

first-ranking security over the fixed assets of the Company

-first-ranking security over the debt service reserve account

-first-ranking pledge cver the shares of the Company owned by Dr. Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athiva Agarwal, Dr. Adil Agarwa), Cr. Anosh
Agarwal, Dr Ashvin Agarwal, Dr Ashar Agarwal, Ms, Farah Agarwal, Ms. Urrnila Agarwai, Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute Private Limited and
Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute

-non-isposal undertaking and negative pledge in respect of the shares: (a} in Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited owned by the
Campany; and (b} In all Orbit subsidiaries cwned directly or indirecily by Orbit {as agplicable); and

-personal guarantee of Dr. Amar Agarwal, Dr, Athiya Agarwal, Dr. Adil Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Agarwal, Dr Ashvin Agarwa! and Dr Ashar
Agarwal,

Balance in Escrow accounts represents amount deposited in the sccount specifically earmarked for three manths payment of
{Interest + Principal} on debeniures to the debenture holders {Refer Note 16{8)).

Guring the year ended 3ist March, 2023 the company has repaid INR 45 Crores to British International Investments (Formerly CDC
Group Plc} on 30th June, 2022 by way of refinancing from HDFC Bank,

Subsequent ta the year ended 31 March 2023 , the Company refinanced entire NCDs held by CDC Group Ple with ICIC) Bank term loan.

As on 31 March 2023, the Parent Company had given guarantees for its subsidiaries Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited, Aaditya Jyot Eye
Hospital Private Limited and Orbit Healthcare Services (Mauritius) Limited for an amount of Rs. 72.51 Crores, Rs. 10 Crores and Rs. 2.5
Crores, respectively.
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19.2 Details of Term Loan fram Banks / Others - Secured

The Company has availed Term Loan from Banks as at 31 March 2023. The details of tenar, interest rate, repayment terms of the same are

given below:
{Amaunt in Rs. Crores)
No. of Instalments Rt As at ot
S.Wo.| Original Tenor {in Months} Rate [ asat Terms 315t March2023 | 3ist March 2022
31st March 2023
i - Term toan from HOFC Bank (Refer Note (i} below)
1 21 3M T Bill -+ Spread 18 galioors Payout 48.71 54.68)
{artely Payout
2 21 3MT Bill + Spread i8 Salloan Payout 40.96 -
Guarteiy Payout
3 72 Manths EMI 3MT 8ili + Spread 72 Principal 55.00 -
Manthly,
Interest
Manthly
144.67 54.68
II - Vehicle Laans from HDFC Bank (Refer Note {1} belaw) T
Principat 0.09 0.26
1 60 8.75% 13 Monthly,
Interest
Manthly
Sub-Total 0.08 0.26
Tatal of barrowings from Banks 144.76 54.94
Less : Current Maturities of long-term borrowings {Refer Note 23] [12.00} [5.08)
Long-term Barrawings from Banks 132.76 49.86
| - Term Leans from Axis Bank (Refer Note (i} below)
b 7 Repo + Spread il Principal - 0.26
Monthly,
Interest
Monthly
2 20 Repo + Spread 7 Brincipal 2.27 6.78
Monthly,
Interest
Monthly
3 120 Repo + Spread 96 Principal 35.82 15.73
Monthly,
Interest
Manthly
Sub-Taotal 38.09 22.77
Il - GECL Loan from Aais Bank {Refer Note {iv) below)
il 30 Repo +Spread 17 Principal 167 3100
hanthiy,
Interest
Monthly
Sub-Total 1.67 3.00
|l - Vehicle Loans from Axis Bank {Refer Nate {i} helow)
1 50 9% 14 Principal 013 0.23
Monthly,
Interest
Monthly
Sub-Total 0.13 0.23
Total of horrowings from Banks 39.89 26.00
Less : Current Maturities of long-term borrowings (Refer Note 23) {4.12) (5.29)
Long-term Borrowings from Banks 35.77 20.71
1- Term Loan from Ketak Mahindra Bank (Refer Nate {vii) below)
1 Principal .20 1.05
Monthly,
24 Repa + Spread 12 i
Monthly
Principat 0.59 .38
2 27 Repo +Spread 15 L
Interest
Monthly
Principal 1.35 2.00
Monthly,
3 B4 MCLR + Spread 23
Interest
Monthly
Sub-Total 2.14 a3
Total of berrowings from Banks 214 3.43
Less : Currant Maturities of long-term borrowings (Refer Note 23) [1.38) [1.26}
Long-term Borrowings from Banks 0.78 2.17
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Nowes:

{i) The loans are secured by hypothecatian of respective Vehicles financed by the Bank.

{ii) The details of security provided against the HDFC Terms loans are as follows:

-First charge by way of hypothecation an all Barrower's tangible movable assets, including movable plart and machinery, machinery spares,
tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets, present and future;

- Exchusive charge on all Borrower's (Standalong} current assets and receivables, including book debts, operating cash flows, receivables,
commissions, revenues of whatsaever nature 2nd wherever arising, present and future;

-First charge by way of hypothecation on 2l bank accounts and reserves of Borrower including but not limited to DSRA and other reserves;

-Subiject te provisians of Section 19{2} and {3} of Banking Regulation Act, 1949, pledge of 9.9% of equity share capital and preference share
capital of Borrower by the Promoter to HDFC Bank exclusively. Far the remaining 0.6% stake shareholding lenders will have a negative
pledge.

- Personal Guarantees of Dr. Amar Agarwal, Dr, Athive Agarwal, Dr. Adil Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Agarwai, Dr. Ashar Agarwal and Dr. Ashvin
Agarwal, being the promoter and relatives of the promoter.

- Non-Disposal Underteking and negative pledge in respect to shares of Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited {AEHL) owned by the Barrower

{iii} The details of Security provided against the Term Loans are as follows:

- First and exclusive charge on the entire current assets of the Company.

- First and exclusive charge on the Plant and Machinery cwned by the company other than those funded by other banks.

- Pledge of 1,350,000 Shares of the Agarwal Eye Hospital Limited held by Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited.

- Personal Guarantees of Dr. Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athiya Agarwal, Dr. Adil Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Agarwal, Cr. Ashar Agarwal, Dr. Ashvin
Agarwal, being ihe promoter and retatives of the promoter.
{iv) The Government of India under "Ernergency Cradit Line Guarsnteed Scheme [ECLGS) has directed the barks to provide Guaranteed
emergency Credit Line (GECL) by way of warking capital term loan {WCTL) . This facility is covered by 100% guarantee from NCGTC {National
Credit Guarantee Trustee Company Ltd - Ministry of finance). The amournt sancticned is INR 3.52 Crare with a moratarium perfod of 12
months , Turther Security provided against GECL loan are as follows:

- Personal Guarantees of Dr. Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athiya Agarwal, Dr. Adil Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Agarwal, Dr. Ashar Agarwal, Dr. Ashvin
Aparwal, and Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited .
fv] As at the year ended 31 March 2023, the Dr. Agarwal Eye Hospital Limited had borrowed term Jean from Axis Bank Limited far
constructicn of New Chennai Main Hospital {CMH}. Of the sanction amount of INR 60 Crares, the company has uttlised INR 35.81 Crares.
The security against which is fisted below

- Equitable Mortgage on the Land belonging to Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute, a related party, for 6.555 Ground,
- Equitable Mortgage on Building proposed to be constructed on the antire land of 9.68 grounds at cathedral road Chennai.
{vi) The Group has obtained a written acknowledgement from the Bank that there were no non comgliances with the lean terms and
conditlons as at 31 March 2023.
{vii} All the loan borrowed from Ketak Bank are Loan against Froperty [LAP] ; security as below
1.First and exclusive hypothecation charge an all existing and future receivables/ current assets of the Borrower.
2 First and exclusive hypathecation charge on all existing and future moveable fixed assets of the Borrower.
3.First and exclusive Registered mortgage charge on immoveable praperties being land and building situated at Wadala
4.Personal Guarantees of Dr. Amar Agzrwal, Dr. Adii Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Agarwal, being the aromater.
5.Corporate guarantee/s of Dr.Agarwal's Health Care Ltd.
tssues of Fully and Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Participative Preference Shares
Note: During the year ended 31 March 2022, the holding Company has issued, 0.001% Fully and Compulsarily Convertible Non- Cumuiative
Participative Preference Shares to Arvon [nvestments Pte Ltd of Rs. 100 each into 124,301 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each (at a premium of Rs.
1,100 each) in its Beard meeting held on 2¢ August 2021.

The conversion of Fully and Compulsorily Convertible Non- Cummulative Participative Preference Shares will happen at the earlier of two years
or a fund raise exceeding Rs. 100 Crores, at a fixed raturn over the said pericd.

0.001% Fully and Compulsorily Convertible Debentures of Face Value of Rs. 1200 each

1. Pursuant to the extra ordinary general meeting of the helding company held on 12 August 2021, the hoiding cempany has ailotted 1,67,366
units of Cempulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCD) of &s. 1200 each to Value Growth Investments Holding Pte Ltd.

The conversion of Fully and Compulsorily Convertible Debentures will happen at the earlier of two years or 2 fund raise exceeding Rs. 100
Croraes, at a fixed return over the said periad.

Note

Pursuant to the board meeting dated 26 April 2022 , the holding Cempany has allotied 53,024 equity share to the holders af 1,24,301
Compulserily Convartible Prefernce shares holders and 71,394 equity shares to holders of 1,67,365 of Compulsorily Convartibie Debentures
holders.

Long term borrowings - Othars
Represents [oan provided by Dr S Nakrajan to M/s. Aditya Jyot Eye Hospital Private Limited as at 31st March, 2023 & ¥1st March, 2022.
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20 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

{Amount in Rs. Crores
n As at As at
Particulars
315t March 2023 31st March 2022
Non-current liabilities
{3)  Acquisition Liabilities measured at Amortised Cost {Refer Nate below] 80.06 8.02
bj_ Other Financial Liabilities measured at Fair Valve{Non Current) - SARs 111 -
Total 90.17 B8.02
Current
Measured at Amortised Cost
(2)  Payables tewards purchase of Property, Plantand Equipment 48.31 19.95
(b)  Interest Accrued But Not Due on Barrowings
- from Banks 117 -
(4] Interest Accrued But Not Due on Barrowings -Current 0.02 0.53
{d)  Financtal liabilities-Unpaid dividend 0.05 0.08
(e}  Acquisition Liabilitias (Refer Note below) 33.88 7.52
Total 8343 28.08

which was acquired upto 31 March 2023,
21 PROVISIONS

Nate: Acquisition Liabilities represents the estimated fair value of the contingent consideration relating to the acquisition of various eye clinics

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

. As at As at
Particulars
31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022

Non-turrent portion
[a) Provisicn for Employee Benefits:

- Gratuity Payable {Refer Note 35.3) 5.4% 431

- Compensated Absences (Refer Note 35.2) 398 2.43
Total 10.47 6.74
Current portion
fa)  Provision for Employee Benefits:

- Compensated Absences (Refer Note 35.2) 1.86 1.15

- Qthers 2.38 -
(b)  Provision for Contingencies Q.70 0.35
Total 2,94 1.50

basad on Management's best estimate. The details are as follows:

21.1 The Group carries a 'pravision for contingencies' tawards various claims against the Company hat ackrowledged as debts [Refer Nate 36),

__|Amount in Rs. Crores)

. As at As at
Particulars

31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Opening Balance 0.35 .35
Provision made during the year 0.35 -
Amounts Utidized during the year - -
Lnused Amounts Reversed during the year E -
Closing Balance 078 0.35

Note;

22 QTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Whilst the provision as at 31 March 2023 is considered as current in nature, the actual outflow with regard 10 sald matters depends cn the
exhaustion of remedies available under the law based an various developments. No recoveries are expected against the provision.

[Amaount in Rs. Crares}

5 Asat Asat
Particulars
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Current liabilities
{a]  Statutory Remittances 6.63 7.01
{b)  Advances from Custormners 5.02 5.23
{c}  Gratuity payable - Current 2.39 197
Total 14.04 14.21
22 (A) Current Tax Liahilities
Particulars Ly LaE:
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Provision for Tax 4.33 10.06
Total 433 10.06
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23 CURRENT BORROWINGS

(Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars GELD Gt
31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
{a) Loans Repayable on Demand
{1} From Banks - Secured
- Cash Credit Facility {Refer Notes (i), (i), (i) and (iv} below] 0.60 10.17
Overdraft facHity (Refer Note (iv) below) 3.94 e
{ii) Current Maturities of Long-Term Borrowings
- from Senior Redeemable, Nan-Convertible Debentures 28.56 14.40
- from banks {secured) (Refer Note {19.2)) 17.48 1182
Total 50.58 36.19
Notes :
{i} The details of interest rate, repayment and other terms of the Short Term Barrewings are as follows:
{Amount in Rs, Crores]
Repayment As at As at
Type P Int: it
e HameotihelParty terest fate Terms 31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Cash Credit facility from Bank HDFC Bank HOF CS?;::“ *| onDemand 0.60 422

- First and exciusive charge by way of hypothecation of current assets of Agarwal Eye Hospital Limited
- Extension of equitable mortgage on a praperty owned by Or, Agarwal's Eye Institute far the exposure;
- Personal Guarantees of Dr. Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athiya Agarwal, Dr. Adil Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Agarwal, Dr. Ashar Agarwel and Dr. Asfiwin

Agarwal, heing the promoters and relatives of the promoters and Dr. Agarwal'’s Eye Institute,
{iii) The details of interest rate, repayment and other terms of the Shert Term Borrowings are as foliows:

{ii) The Cash credit facility availed by Agarwal Eye Hospital Limited as at 31 March 2023 & 31 March 2022 is secured by the following:

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Repayment Asat Asat
Type
i Name of the Party |  fmterest Rate Terms 31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Cash Credit facility from HDFC Bank HOFC MCLR + Spread On Demand - 2.94
Overdraft facility fronr Axis Bank Axis Repo +Spread On Dernand 3.94 3.00

as at 31 March 2023 & 31 March 2022
is secured by the following:

24 TRADE PAYABLES

- First and exclusive charge on the entire current assets the holding company and its subsidiary

- First and exclusive charge an the Plant and Machinery owned by the subsidary company other than thase funded by ather banks,

- Pledge of 1,350,000 shares of Agarwal Eye Hospital Limited held by Dr. Agarwal’s Health Care Limited.

- Personal Guaranteas of Dr. Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athiya Agarwal, Dr. Adil Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Agarwal, Dr. Ashar Agarwal and Dr. Ashvin
promoter and relatlves of the promoter.

{v) The Ovardraft facility availed by Agarwal Eye Hospital Limited as at 31 March 2023 is secured by the following:
- Pari- passu charge with Axis Bank Limited on the landec property of 9.68 Grounds belonging ta Or. Agarwal's Eye institute, a related
party and propesed building to be censtructed there at Cathedral road , Chennai.

{iv] The Cash credit & Overdraft facifty availed by the holding company and its subsidiary Dr. Agarwals Eye Hospital Limited

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars Aslat LoEd
31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Current
- Dues of Creditors Qther than Micro Enterprises and Smail Enterprises 84.13 80.33
- Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 16.76 8.74
Tatal 100.89 8507
As at 31st March 2023 {Amount in Rs. Crores)
Particulars Less than 1year 1-2 years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
- MSME 16.72 0.03 0.01 16.76
- Cthers 76.39 £.06 {0.62 106 84.13
Total 93,11 6.09 .62 1.07 100.89
As at 31st March 2022 {Amount in Rs. Crores}
Parficulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3Years | More than 3 Years Total
- MSME 8.73 = 0.01 = 874
- Others 78.65 0.62 106 S 80.33
Total 87.38 0.62 1.07 - 89.07
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25.4

REVEMUE FROM OPERATIONS
{Amount in Rs. Crores)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2023 31st March 2022

fa)  Sale of Products (Refer Note (i) below] 231.10 179.74
|b)  Sale of Services (Refer Note {ii] below) 785.88 524,94
Ic) _ Other Operating Revenues 0.79 0.40
Total 1,017.77 696.08

Disaggregation of the revenue Information

The tables below present disapgregated revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended 31 March 2023 by offerings. The Company believes that
this disageregation best depicts how the nature, amaunt, timing and uncertainity of cur revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, market and other

eccnomic factars.

Notes :
(i) 5ale of Products comprises the following: [Amount in Rs. Crores}
Particulars Far the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2023 3Ist March 2022
Traded ;

{iy Opticals 141.44 107.44
fii}  Pharmaceutical Products 81.08 57.00
fiii}  Contact Lens and Accessaries 352 283
[iv) Sale of Advanced Vision Analyzer -AVA & Trial Lens 455 .05
[v) Sale of food items 0.50 042
Total - Sale of Products 231.10 170,74
{ii) Sale of Services camprises the follawing : {Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars Far the year ended For the year ended
3%st March 2023 31st March 2022

i Income from Surgeries E36.65 401.28
fii}  Income from Consultation 493§ 34.43
fiii)  Income from Treatments and Investigations 100.43 83.23
fiv)]  Income from Annual Maintenance contract o.e2 <
Total - Sale of Services 785.88 524.94

The services ars rendered to various patients and there are no patients who represent mare than 10% of the total revenue. However, the Hospital aiso serves
patients who are covered under insurance/heaith schemes run by insurance cempanfes, corporates and the central/state government agencies, wherein the
services rendered to the patient is on credit ta be reimbursed by the said insurance comgany, corporate or government agency.

Trade Receivables and Contract Balances

The Group classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliversbles as receivable.

A receivahle is a right ta consideration that is uncanditional upon passage of time. Revenue is recognized as and when the related zoods / services are delivered
/ performed to the customer.

Trade receivable are presented net of impairment in the Balance Sheet.

Contract liabilitfes include payments recelved in advance of perfermance under the contract, and are realized with the associated revenue recognized under the
contract.

Performance okligations and remaining performance obllgations

The rermaining perfarmance ohligation disclesure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognised as at the end of the reporting
period and an explanation as to when the Group expects ta recognise these amaunts in revenue, Applying the practical expedient as given in IND AS - 115, the
Graup has not disciosed information about remaining performance abligations in contracts where the original contract duration is one year or less or where the
entity has the right to consideration that corresponds directly with the valve of entity’s perfermance completed to date.

from Products and Services

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
(i} | within India 874.32 554.01
(fi) | Outside India 143.38 142.07
1,017.77 £96.08
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OTHER INCOME

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars

Far the year ended
31st March 2023

For the year ended
315t March 2022

{a}  interest Income

- Bank depuosits 2.58 1.27
- interest Income - Others 2.07 -
(b}  Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment [Net) .21 -
{e]  Liabllities / provisions no langer required written back 0.68 2.28
[d)  Interest en Income Tax refund 0.20 143
{e)  Net gain on Forefgn Currency Transactions and Translation 1.38 837
Miscellaneous income 3.04 158
{1 Income on termination of fease 0.45 243
[B)  Profit on Redemption of Current Investments 4.66 -
Total 15.27 17.88
PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE
{Amount in Rs. Crores)
0 For the year ended Far the year ended
Particulars
31st Mareh 2023 31st March 2022
{a)  Opticals 50.25 39.56
(2]  Pharmaceuticals Products 53.66 36.40
e}  Contact Lens and Accessories 343 231
{d)  Clinical ltems and Equipments T.02 7.00
le Others 195 1.35
Total 116.31 86.62
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF STOLK IN TRADE
A. Inventories at the beginning of the year; {Amount in Rs. Crores}
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
{a) Opticals 49.32 7.73
{b) Pharmaceuticals Products 5.21 500
{c)  Contact Lens and Accessories 125 0.52
{¢]  Other Raw material 0.82 109
{e}  Cinical items and Equiprnents 1.39 104
Tatal (&) 17.99 15.38
B. ies at the end of the year: Amount in Rs. Crores)
Particulars Far the year ended For the year ended
315t Mareh 2023 31st March 2022
{a} Opticals 1038 9.32
{b)  Pharmaceuticats Products 7.56 521
{c]  Contact Lens and Accessories 2,36 1.25
{d}  Other Raw material 0.52 0.82
{g] Lhirical tems ard Eguipments 0.05 1.39
Total (B} 20.85 17.99
Total (4] - (B) {2.86) [2.61}
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
{Amount in Rs. Crores)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
(a)  Salaries and Bonus 170.20 128,68
{b}  Cantributians to Provident and Other Funds 9.85 654
{c)  Staff Welfare Expenses 8.52 4.19
{d} Employee stock aptian expenses [Refer Note 39.3) 1.83 P
Total 190.40 139.82
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FINANCE COSTS

{Amaount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars

31st Mareh 2023

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
31st March 2023 3ist March 2022
{a} Interest on Loan
() On Term Loans B.56 3.24
(ii} On Debentures 1418 16.67
{iii) Gn Others 595 024
{Iv] Finance charges-Others 0.34 1.43
{b}  Interest on Deferred consideration 12.84 -
{c}  Interest on Lease Liahlity (Refer Note 38} 30.09 23.30
{d)  Interest on delsyed remittance of statutery dues 0.03 0.02
Tota! 71.97 45.40
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE {Amount in Rs. Crores)
particalars Far the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
{a) Depreciaticn on Tangible Assets (Refer Note 5} 40.51 46.34
{bj  Amartization an Intangible Assets {Refer Note 7} 38.33 15.45
{c)  Depreciaticn on right of use asset {Refer Note 6 & 38) 49.46 32.17
{g) Impairment on Intangible Assets = 370
Tatal 128.30 97.66
OTHER EXPENSES
{Amaount in Rs. Crores)
For the year ended Far the year ended

31st March 2022

fa)  Consultancy Charges® 147.12 92.77
[b] Cansumables 120.45 75.96
{c)  Power and Fuel 1162 B.14
[d}  Water Consumption 0.62 0.55
fe}  Rent{Refer Note 38 (C} | 14,13 9.55
[f}  Repairs & Maintenance
- Equipments 7.14 4.32
- Qthers 9.64 7.30
[g]  Hospital Maintenance Charges 1B.96 15.47
[k}  Brokerage and Commissian - -
0] Insurance 260 1.86
il Retesand Taxes 294 1.60
{k}  Communication 4.63 3561
@) Travelling and Conveyance 17.45 9.97
[m}  Printing ang Stationery 4377 273
[n)  legaland Professional Charges 14.55 10.93
[0}  Software Maintenance Charges 560 2.43
(p)  Business Promotion and Entertainment 15.24 8.06
(q) Markefing Expenses 22.28 13.05
{r}  Payments to Auditars 172 1.66
(s)  Hank Charges 452 3.60
[t} Netloss arising on Financial Assets designated as at Fair Value through Profit or Lass 3.38 0.17
{u)  Allowance for expected credit losses 1135 1110
tess:
Bad debts written off 4.98 .07
{Release of pravision} {4.98) 8.07)|
11.75 ilio
(v}  Loss on Sale of property, plant and equipment 017 0.24
(w) Miscellanecus Expenses 359 4.95
(x}  Expenditure on Corporate Sccial Responsibilty .43 0.29
{y)  Freight Charges .62 -
Total 445.32 290.31

* Consultancy charges includes ap amount of Rs. 1.11 erores relating Share Appreciation Expenses. (Refer Note 39.3)

? )
CHENNAI-17
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33 Capital Cammitments

{Amount In Rs. Crores)

Particulars

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

(i) The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account, net of|
advances and not provided for

58.50

1151

34 Contingent Liabflties

(Amaunt in Rs. Crares}

Particulars

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Consumer Claims against the Company nat acknowledged as debt

2.22

1.82

Notes:

{i) Based on Professional Advice [ Managemant's assessment of 2il the abave claims, the Group expects 2 favarable decision Tn respect of the above

claims and hence no specific provision has been considered for the above claims.

{ii} The amounts shown above represent the best possible estimates arrived at on the basis of the available information. The uncertainties and possible
reimbursernent are depandent on the cutcarme of the various legal proceedings which have been initiated by the Company or the Claimants, as the case

may be and, therefore, cannot be predicted accurately.
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Dr. Agarwa
Notes for:

35 Employee Beneflts
35.1 Defined Contribution plans
{a} The Group makes Provident and Pension Fund contributions, which is & defined contribution plan, for qualifying employees. Additionally, The Group alsa provides, for

covered employess, health insurance through the Employee State Insurance scheme. Under the Schemes, The Groug is required to coniribute a specified percentage of
the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The contributions payable ta these plans by The Group are at rates specifiad in the rules of the schemes.

) Expenses recognized :
Amount in Rs, Crares)
Asat Asat
31stMarch 2023 | 31ist March 2022

Particulars

(i)  Included under ‘Centributions to Prevident and Other Funds'

Cantributions to provident and pension funds/ Natignal Security Saving Fund (for Orbit} 5.65 543
(i} !ncluded under 'Staff Welfare Expenses'
Cantributions to Employee State insurance 0.60 0.59
35.2 Compensated Absancas {Amount in Rs. Crores)
Particul Asat Asat
articuiars 31st March 2023 | 3Tst March 2022
(a) Included under "Salaries and Bonus 1.86 1.02

{Amount in Rs, Crares)

ount In s, Lrores

Particulars ozt Lol
31st March 2023 31st March 2022

{b] Net asset [ {lfability) recognized In the Balance Sheet {5.34) {3.58)
Current portion of the above {Refer Note 21} {1.86) (1.15}
Non - current portien of the above (Refer Mote 21) (3.58) [2.43)
The Key Assumptions used in the computation of provision for compensated absences are as given below:

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Discount Rate {% p.a) 7.3% 5.85%
Future Salary Increase {% n.at 0% 8%

35,3 Definad benefit plans

The Group operates a gratuity plan covering qualifying employees. The benefit payable is calculated as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972/\Worker's Rights Act 2018 (for
Orbit) and the benefit vests upon completlan of five years of continuous service/beqfits vests upon completion of 12 months of continuous service (for Orbit} and once vested
1 Ts payable ta employees an retirement or on termination of employment. In case of death while in service, the gratuity fs payable irrespective of vesting. The Group makes
arinuzl contribution to the group gratuity scheme administered by the Life Insurance Corporation of India.

In respect of the plan, the most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit abligation were carried out as 3t 31 March 2023 by
W/fs Kapadia Artuaries and Consuitants for the entlre group. The present vaiue of the defined henefit obligation, and the refated current service tost and paid service cost,
ware measured using the projected unit cost credit method.

() Amount ized jn the of profit & lass [including other comprehensive income} in respect of the defined benefit plan are as fallows :
{Amount in Rs. Crores]
Asat Asat
31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022

Particulars

Amounts recognized in Statement of Prafit & Loss in respect of these defined benefit pians are as follows:
Service Cost [Refer Noteli] beiow] :

- Current Service Cost 185 1.62
- Net interest expense 031 0.18
Components of defined benefit costs recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 216 1.80

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:

Return an plan assets {excluding amount included in net ipterest income) 0.02 (c.01)
ActLarial gains and loss arising from changes in Demographic assumptions 013 033
Actuarial gains and loss arising (rom changes in Financial assumptians 0.06 0.24
Actuarial gaing and loss arising from experfence adjustments 0.99 0.88
Components of defined benefit costs recognized in other camprehensive income 1.20 1.50
Total defined benefit cost recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Intame 3.36 3.30

i) The current sarvice tost and interest expensa for the year are included in Note 29 - "Employee Benefit Expenses” in the Statement of Profit & Loss under the line iterst
"Contribution to Provident and Other Funds™

(i) The remgasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included [n cther comprehensive income.

[}

The amaunt included in the balance sheet arising from the entity's ohligation in respect of defined benefit plan is as follows :

[Amount in Rs. Crores)
Particulars Asat st
31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Net Asset/{Eiability) recogrized in the Balance Sheet
1 Present value of defined benefit oblfgation 1196 11.22
2_Fair value of plan assets 5.08 4.87
Met asset / {liability} recognized in the Balance Sheet 8.88 6.33
Current portion of the ahove {2.39) {1.97)
Non - current portion af the above {6.49) 14.31)
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[¢} Movament in the present value of the defined benefit ohligation are as follows :

§d

{e

[Amount in Rs. Crores)

Asat As 31
Particuars
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 11.19 B.47
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss:
- Current Service Cost 1.85 162
- Interest Expense {Incame) 031 035
Adjustments & {0.07)
Recagnized in Other Comprehensive Income:
Remeasurament gains [ (losses)
- Actuarial {Gain)/ Loss arising frem:
i. Gempgraphic Assumptions 0.13 028
¥, Financial Assumplians 0.06 2.3s
fl. Experience Adjustments 122 0988
Benefit payments {0.80) {0.65)
Prosent value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 13.96 1119
Mavement in fair value of plan assets are as follows =
{Amount in Rs. Crares)
Particulars £ et
31st March 2023 | 3ist March 2022
Fair value of plan assefs at the beginning of the year 4.93 4.07

Adjustment ta Opening Balance
Expenses Recognized 'n Statement of Profit and Loss:
- Expected return an plan assets 0.23 .18
Recognized in Other Comprehensive income:
Remeasurement gains / (losses)
- Actuarial gains and toss arising from changes in financial assumptions

- Return on plan assets {excluding amount fncluded in net interest [ncome) n.o1 .01
Contributions by employer 0.71 L3l
Benefit payments 10.80) 1D.64)

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 5.08 4.93

The falr value of plan assets plan at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
Amount in Rs. Crores}

Asat Asat

icaul
Particulars 31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022

{nvestment Funds with Insurance Comparry
- Life tnsurance Corporation of India 5.08 493

(i} The plan assets comprise insurer managed Funds. None of the assets carry a quated market price in active market or represent the entity's own transferable financial
instruments or property cccupied by the entity,

The Actuat return on plan asset for the year ended 31 March 2023 was Rs.0.24 lakhs | Fer the year ended - 31 March 2022: Rs. 0.18 Croes),

Agtuariat assumptions

Investment Risk:
The present value of defined benefit plan liabllity is calcufated using 2 discount rate which (s determined by reference @ the prevailing market yields of Indian
government securities as at the halance sheet date for the estimated term of the abligatiens.
Interest Risk:
A decrease in the vield of Indran government securities will increase the plan lishilitv.
Longevity Risk
The present vajue of the defined benefit plzn liakility 7s cakulated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality af plan participants both during and alter their
emplovment. An increase in the life exoectancy of the olan carticioants will increase the olen's lizbifite.
IE] ]
The present value of the defined benefit plan lizbility is calculated by reference to the future salaries. In particufar, there is a risk for The Group that any adverse salary
growth can result In an increase in cost of praviding these beneflts to employees in future.

The principal assumptinns used for the purpose of actuarial valuation were as fallow.

Particulars A at Asiat

31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Discount rate 7.3% 5.9%
Expected rate of szlary increase 10% 8.06%
Expected return on plan assets 7.3% 5.85%
Expected Attrition rate based on Past Service {PS} [% p.a} 28% 28.37%
Mortality Incfian Assured Lives|  Indlan Assured
[2012-2014) Lives
{2012-2014)

1.The discount rate is based on the prevailing market viekds of Indian Government securities as at bafance sheet date for the estimated term of the ohligation.

2. The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniarity, promotian and other relevant factors.
3. In order to protect the capital and optimize returns within accentable risk parameiers, the plan assets are maintained with an Insurer managed fund (maintained by
the Life Insurance Corporation ["LIC"}) and is well diversed.
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Sensitivity Analvsis:
The benefit obligation results of a such a scheme are particularly sensitive to discount rate, safary growth and employee attrition, if the plan provision do provide for such

Increases on commencemnent of pension.
The following table summarizes the impact in financial terms on the reported defined benefit abligation at the end of the reporting perlod arising on account changes in

these four key parameters:
{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Agat Asat
[ the Defined benefit O
Increase f {Decrease} on the Defined bene! bligation e Mo 31st March 3022

(i) Discaunt#ate

Inerease by 100 bps (0.36) {0.37)

Becrease by 100 hps Q.40 0.40
(i) Salary growth rate

Inerease by 100 bps 0.35 0.36

Becrease by 100 bps {0.34) {0.30)
{iit) Actrition rate

Increase by 100 bps (C.08) {0.02)

Decrease by 130 bps 0.11 0.02
{iv} Martality rate

Increase by 10% 0.01

These sensitivitizs have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit abligation in isclation and assuming there are o other changes in market cenditions at
the accounting date, The sensitivity analysis presented above may nat be representative of the actua! change in the defined benefit obligations as it is unlikely that the
change in assumptlons wauld gccur in isofation of one another as some of the assumptions may e correlated.

Furthermore In presenting the ahove sensitlvity analysis the present value of defined benefit obligation has been caleulated using the projected unit eredit method at the
end of the reporting period which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognized in the balance sheet.

There is no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparfng the sensitivity analysis from the priar years.

{h} Asset Liability Matching Swategles

The Group has purchased insurance policy, which is basically a year-cn-year cash accumulation plan in which the interest rate is declared on yearly basis and is
guaranteed far a period of one year. The Insurance Company, as part of the palicy rules, makes payment of all gratuity liability occurring during the year (subject to
sufficiency of funds under the policy). The paticy, thus, mitigates the liguidity risk. However, being a cash accumulation plan, the duration of assets is shorter compared to
the duration of liabilities. Thus, The Group is exposed te mevement in interest rate.

(]  Effect of Plan on Entity’s Future Cash Flows

A} Funding Arrdngements and Funding Policy
The Graup has purchased an insurance policy to provide for payment of gratuity to the employees. Every year, the insurance Company carries cut a funding valuation
based on the [alest employee data provided by The Group. Any deficit in the assets arising as a result of such valuation is funded by The Group.

8) The Group expects to make a contriputicn of Rs. 2.23 Croress during the next financial year,
C) The weighted average duration of the henefit obEgation at 31 March 2023 is 3.86/3.40 years (25 at 31 March 2022 is 3.86/3.44 years).
D) Maturity profite of defined henefit obligatian:

Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted basis): Asat 31stMarch2023 |  Asat 31st March 2022
Within 1year 344 262
1to 5 years 1.80 5.98
6 ta 10 years 4.55 313
more than 10 years - =

1l Exnperience Adiustments

Particulars 2022-23 021-22 I 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19

Defined Benefit Qhligations 11.19] 7.35] 7.30 5,23
Plan Asseis 4.93) 4.07 3.38 2.72]
Surplus / {Deficit) (5.26) (3.28) (3.91) 13.53)
Experience Adjustments on Plan Li ies 0.3§ 0.15) 2.03 1.114

Bl

Exparience adlustments related to prior years have been disclesed based on the i ion to the extent avail
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36 Relsted Party Disclosure

Names of Aelated Parties and Nature of Relatienships®

the Year Endad 31st March 2023

Nature of felationship

2022-23

2021-22

{1) Assoclate entities of the Campany

IdeaRx Services Private Limited

IdeaRx Sorvices Privete Limited

iy Entities with significant influence over the|value Growth Investment Hofdings PTE Lid value Growth Investment Holdings PTE Lid
Comgany (up wo 05 May 2022)
{laymare Investments {Mauritius) Pte. 1xd Claymare investments {Mauritius) Pe. Ltd
Hyperion Investments Ple. Ltd {w.e.f 05 May 2022)
Arvon Pte.iw.e.f 05 May 2022} =
(iity Enterprise over which the Key Orbit int - Partnership Firm Orbit Internatignal - Parnershig Firm

Personnel of the Company 15 bn a positian to

Dr. Agarval's £ye institute - Partnershig Firm

Dr. Agarwal’s Eye Institute - Partnershig Firm

exercise control / jaink contralf sij

Dr Agarwals Eve Institute Private Limited

Dr Agarwals Eye Institute Private Limited

[} Key Management Personnel of the Campany /
Subsfdiary Company

Dr. Amar Agarwal

Dr. Amar Agarwat

Dr, Athiya Agarwsl|

Or. Athiya Agarwal

Mr. Balakrishnan Venkataraman

Mr.Trichur Ramasubramanian
Ramachandran

up to 28 March 2022)

Anand

Wr. Sanjay D

Mr. Sanjay Dharambir Anand

Dr. Ashvin Agarwat

DOr. Ashvin Agarwal

Dr. Ashar Agarwal

D, Ashar Agarwal

Dr. Adil Agarwal

Dr. Adil Agarwal

Dr. Anosh Agarwal

Dr. Anosh Agarwal

M. Shiv Agrowal

Mr. Shiv Agrawal

Mr. Thanikainathan Arumugam {Company Secretary}

Mr. Thanlkainathan Arumugam

Mrs. Meenzkshi layaraman {AEHL)

Mrs. Meenakshi Jayaraman {w.e.f 16 December 2021]) (AEHL)

Ms_ Jully H llvani {up to 13 Aug 2021) (AEHL}

Ws. Lakshmi Subremanian {AEHL}

Ms. Lakshmi Subramanian (AEHL)

Mr. Syresh Eshwara Prabhala {up to 04 May 2022)

Mr. Surech Eshwara Prabhala

Mr. B. Udhay Shankar {Group CFO}

W, B, Udhay Shankar (Group CFO)

IMr. Venkatesh Ratnasami (up te 05 May 2022)

|Mr. Venkatesh Ratnasam|

Dr. 5unita Agarwal

Dr. Sunlta Agarwal

Mr. Ved Prakash Kalanaria (w.e.f 05 May 2022)

Mr. Ankur Thadani {w.e.f 05 May 2022]

“Related party relationships are as identified by the Manag

ement and relied upen by the auditors.

Transactions mrried sut with related parties referred ta above In the ordinary course of business during the year.

Particulars Related Party 2022:23 2021-22
{Amount in fis. Crores) (Amauntin Rs. Crores)

Transactions during the Year

Expenses

Purchasas IdeaRx Services Private Limited 2393 032

Rent Expenses Dr Agarwal’s Eye Institute 6.64 526
Dr. Ashvin Aparwal - Guesthousa 036 0.33
Dr. Ashar Agarwal - Guesthouse = 0.17

Dividend paid Dr. Sunita Agarwal 0.0

Dividend paid Mr. Sanjay ir Anand 0.00

Qthers

issue of instruments equity in nature Hypetion Investments Pte. Lid, (issue of Compulsoriky 0.08
Canvertible Debeniures)

{ssug of Instruments equity in nature Arvon Investments Pte Ltd {issue of Compuisarily Convertible - 14.76
Preference Shares)

issue of Equity Shares Hyperion Investments Pte. Ltd 110.00 3

Issum of Equity Shares Arvon Investrments Pre Lid iso.oz 3

Conversion of CCDs to Equity Hyperion investments Pte, Ltd 22.74 -

Conversion of CCPs 16 fquity ‘Arvon Investments Pte Lid 16.8%

Recovery of Rental Deposits. Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute 4.58

Sale af asset Or. Agarwat's Eya Institute 1.1

Investments Aditya Jyol Eye Haspital Pyt Limited 6.35 26.00

Director sitting fees Mr, Trichur Ramasubramanian Ramachandran - 041
Ar. Sanjay Dharambir Anand 0.03 0.02
Ms. Lakshmi Subramanian (AEHL) [HLeal 0.0
r. Shiv Agrawal [l 0.01
Mr. Batakrishnan Venkataraman 002 0.0t

Capitai Work in Progress - Rent Expense Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute 6,54 525

Notes:

i} The Group accounts for costs incusred by / on behalf of the Related Parties based on the actual inveices / debit notes raised and aceruals as confirmed by such related parties. The Related Parties
have confirmed ra the Management that as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, there are no further amauats payable to / receivable from them, ather than as distlosed ahove. The Group incurs
certain costs an behalf of related parties. These costs have been allocated/recavered from the related parties on a basTs mutually agreed with them,

(i} An axtension of Equitable Marigage on a property owned by Or. Agarwal's Eve Institute has also been provided to HBFC Limited and Axis Bank as 2 security in respect of Ere Term loan and Cash
Credit facility availed by the Or Agarwal's Eya Hospital Limited.

(iit} Br. Amar Agarwal, Or. Athiya Agarwal, De. Adil Agarwal, D7, Anosh Agarwal, Dr. Achar Agarwal, Dr. Ashwin Agarwsl and Dr. Aganwal's Eye Institute have provided personal guarantees for term loans

Laken by the Graup.
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G ian af key P
Particulars Related Party Eliderds EIis
{Amoant in Rs. Crores) {Ampunt In Bs. Crores)

Short-term employes benefits Dr. Amar Agarwal 236 1.82

[Refer Note (i)} Or. Athiya Aganwal 032 87
Mr. Udhay Davey 186 100
s, Jully H Tivani - 004
s, Meenakshi Jayaraman 011 003
0. Adil Agarwal 3125 112
Or. Anosh Agarwal 3123 1.05
r Thanikainathan Aremugam 046 0.31

Past employee benefits Or. Adil Agarwal .00 0.00

[Contribution ta Provident Fund) Or. Arosh Agarwal 000 0.00
Or. Amar Agarwal - 0.00
Dr. Athiya Aganval - n.ag
Mr. Udhay Davey o.o0 0.00
Mr. Thanikainathan Arumugam .00 0.00
Ms. Jully H Ivani - 0.00
s, Weenakshi Jayaraman 0.00 .00

Other perquisites Dr. Adil Agarwal 045 0.95
r. Anosh Agarwal Q.43 0.46

ESOP r, Udhay Davey 0.18
Mr, Thanikainathan Arumuogam 0.04 &

Receiving of services

Consultancy 0, Ashvin Agarwal 0.88 069
Dr. Ashar Agarwal = n1s

Cthers

Reimbursement of Expenses Or. Amar Agarwal 093 032
Dr. Ashvin Agarwal 062 021

Notes:

n Excludes gratuity and compansated absences which cannot be from the amount advised by the actuary.

[ The remuneration payabie to key management persennel of Dr, Agarwals Fye Haspital Limited and Dr. Agarwals Health Care Limited is by the inaticn and

committee having regard ta the performance of individuals and market trends

(i} There were no balances autstanding to be paid f received a5 at the year end.

(i) ‘The abieve remuneratian for key managerial personnel does not include vehicle, communication expenses & ather expenses for which the perquisite value is determined as Nil.

v} Since the Fgures are reporied in crores, please note that ' denctes NIL balance and ' denotes nominal fipures.

{wi) All the Figuras disclesad above are excluding Goods and Service Tax

Balances autstarding as at year end

As at Asat
Particulars Related Party 31st March 2023 st March 2022
{amountin Rs, Crores) tAmountin Rs. Crares)

Assels

Rental Depasits {Financial Assels - Loans} Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute 458 4.58

Liabilities

Trade Payables IdeaRx Services Private Limfred 083 523

Trade Payzhtes {Remuneration) Dr. Amar Agarval .22
Mr. Udhay Davey 10 -
Ms. Meenakshi layaraman 0.01
Dr. Agarwal’s Eye [nsthute 049 0.50

Equity Hyperion investments Pre. Ltd, 110.00 -
Avvon Investments Pre Ld 190.00 =

[} The amcunts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. There have been no istances of amounts due to ar due from related parties that have been wntten back or written off or

atherwise provided for during the year

[ii) The rental deposit payahle to refated parties is prasented at undiscounted amount and net at amartised cost as contained in Note 8.
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Segment Reporting

The Group is engaged in providing eye care and related services provided from Tts hospitals which are located in [ndfa and Africa. Based on the
"management approach” as defined in Ind-AS 108 - Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (COZM) evaluates the Group's
performance and allocates rasources based on an analysis of various perfarmance indicators by the overall husiness segment, i.e. Eye care

retated sales and sarvices.

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

A.Seg ment Revenus

{India B74.39 554.01
Qutside Indla 143.33 142.07
Yotal R 1,017.77 696,08
ASegment Assets

India 1,687.55 900.17
'mide India 137.59 12587
Total Assets 1,825,149 1,026.03

Leases

The Group has taken medical equipment and buildings on leases having remaining lease terms of more than 1 year to 15 years, with the aption
to extend the term of feases. Refer Note 6 for carrying amount of right-to-use assets at the end of the reporting peried by class of underlying

asset.

The following is the breakup of current and nor-current lease liabilities as at 31 March 2023:

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

31st March 2023

= Asat As at
Particulars
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Current 45.07 26.76
Nan-current 456.10 316.38
Total 501.17 343.14
The contractual meturities of lease fiabilities as at 31 March 2023 on an undiscaunted hasis is as follows:
{Amount in Rs. Crores)
Expected lease Cammi
Lease Dhligation Asat Asat

31st March 2022

Total

Payable - Not later than one year 7121 45.58
Payable - Later than one year but not later than five years 249,55 156.72
Payable - Lzter than five vears 14,57 726.68

635,33 428.983

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Arnount In Rs, Crares}

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
nterest on fease liabilities .09 23.80)
Expenses relating to short term [eases 14.13] 9.55
Depraciation on right-af-use assets 49.45 32.17

Amounts recagnised i the Cash Flow Statemeant:

{Armount In Rs. Crores)

Particulars For the year ended For the year anded
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Total cash outflow for leases {75.07} {5C.48)
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Share-based payments

Under the Group's stock awards program, the employees 2nd dociors of the Group are granted shares and cther stock awards of the Company,
in accordance with the terms and conditions as specified in the plan. The plan [s assessed, managed and administered gy the Group, whose
shares and share based benefits have been granted to the employees and dactors of the Group. The Group currently operates an employee
stack option ("ESOP") and = share appreclation rights ["SAR"). The Group has accounted for the amount of expense under Ind AS 102
considering the valuations carried cut in respect of the same and has made the related disclosuras required under INDAS 102,

ESOP

The stock awards granted generally vest over a faur sarvice pericd. The annual stock awards are granted effective of the 28th November 2022;
this effective date s the "zward date” used for stock plan administration purposes and shown in the awards agreement. The maximum number
of shares in a stack award is, not exceeding 2% af the Paid Up Capital of the Holding Company, as on August 12, 2022, comprising 1,58,522

Opticns ta or far the henefit of the employees of the Group.

The following reconciles the share options at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Amount in Rs.
Particulars Humber of options Welght:l::!ei:‘ge -
3% March 2023 31 March 2023
Options cutstending as at the beginning of the year E -
Add: Options granted during the year E6,008 1,594
Less: Options fapsedfforieited during the ysar L =
Less: Options exercised during the year -
Less: Options Transferrec during the year - -
pti ding as at the year end 56,008 1,594

The fair value of each award was estimated on the date of grant using the following assumplions:

Amount in Rs.
Particulars 2022-23
Option price at the grant date 1,593.06
Option ilfe 4 ymars
Exercise price 2,548

SAR

The share appreciation rights [SAR] gives considtant doctors of the Group the oppartunity to receive a cash bonus equal to the appreciation in
the value of the units which shall, for sach Unit, be the difference between Fair Market Value of the equity shares as at Payment Event
Trigger(PET}* of Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited {the holding company) and Rs. 2,548/- {excercise price) as stated under the Plan.

*PET is defined as either 1 of the 3 below:

i, On the accurrence of an initfal Public Offer {IPQ) by the Holding Company

ii. Entry of any new investar in the Helding Comipany acguiring more than 30% shareholding or change of shareholding by more than 30% of the

pzaid up capital in any manner.

iit. Any other event that the Beard may decide at its own discretion,

Hawever, the payment timing shail not exceed £ {four) years from the date of grard. i PET occurred only after 4 (four} years from the date of
grant, then the 160% of the payment will be made at the end of the fourth year.

Amourit in Rs.
w =
March 2023
31 Mar 31 March 2023

5ARs outstanding as at the beginning of the year = =
Add: SARs granted during the year 53,420 1827
Less: SARs lapsect/forieited during the year -
Less: SARs exercised during the year -
Less: SARs Transferred during the year - -
Optiors cutstanding as at the year end 53,420 2,B27

The fair value of each award was estimated on the date of y2ar end using the following assumptions:

Amcunt in Rs,
Particulars 022-23
Share Appreciation Right price at the grant date 2,827
Option life 4
Exercise price 2,548

Total expense accounted for by the Graup en account of the above are given below:

Rs. In Crores
n For the year ended
gL 31 March 2023
ES0P costaccounted by the Group {Refer Note 18,5, and Note 29) 183
SAR cost accounted by the Group (Refer Note 20) 111
Total 294
Eamings Per Share
Amount in Rs. Crares)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Eamnings Per Share - Basic —Rs. 120.18 54.85
Earnings Per Share - Dituted — Rs. 119.73 54.95
Prafit / [Loss) after Tax - Amount in fis. Crs 94.10 37.69
Net Profit attributable to Equity Sharehclders - Rs. in Crs [Basic and Diluted) BA.3% 37.69
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares {face Value of Rs. 10 Each| - Basic {Nos.) 7,829,860 5,859,963
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares {Face Value of Rs. 10 Each] - Diluted (Nos.} 7,858,944 5,859,963
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41  Finangial Instriments

41.5 Capital Managament

Gearing Ratlo :

The Group manages capital risk in order to maximize shareholders' profit by maintaining sound/optimal capitat structure. For the purpose of The Group's capital management, capital includes Equity
Share Capital and Other Equity including share of non-controlling fnterest and Debt includes Botrowings and Other Financial Uabilities exciuding Payables towards PPE net af Cash and hank
balances. The Group monitars capital an the hasis of the following gearing ratio. There is na change in the overall capital risk manzgement strategy of The Group compared to iast year.

(Amount in Rs. Crares)

Particufars

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Borrawings and Other Flnancial Liahilitles
Cash and Bank 8alance
Net Debt (&)

Total Equity (8]
Net Debt to eguity ratie (A/B)

481.47 306.24
{148 53)) [126.68]
332.94 189.66
6507 233.81
.51 0.81

Categaries of Fingncial Instruments

The carrying value of the financial instruments by tategorias ason 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 is as follows:

[Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars

Asat 31st March 2023

Asat 3Lst March 2022

(a] Financial Assets
|Measured at fair value through PEL [FVTPL]

- Cerrent Investments 33.66
Measured at amortized cost
- Cash and Cash Equivalents 126.98 39.62
- Other Bank balances 21.5% 12.06
- Trade receivables 76.33 56.72
- Other financlal assets 30.80 26.06
289.32 19946
Financial Liabifities :
iMeastred at fair vaiue thraugh P&L
- Dther financial Kahilities 1I1
Measured at amortized cost
- Borrowings 356.18 290.13
- Trade Payables 100.89 89.07
- Payables towards PPE 48.31 1935
- Other financia| Uahilitles 124.18 16.16
Lease Liabitities 501.17 343.14
1,131.84 758.51

carrying amaunts |argely due ta the shart-tarm maturities of these instruments.

liquidatian sale.

The follgwing methpds and assumptlons were used to estimate the fair vakrefamertized cast

receivables

determines their impact on the total falr value.

Fatr Value Hierarchy
Level 1: Quoted prices {unadjusted] in active rmarkets for entical assets or liabilities

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or lizbifitiss that are nat based on observakle market data {unchservabie inputs}

41.2 Financizl Risk Management Fremawork

Leve! 2: inputs ather than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Detaiis of financial assets and financial liabilities which were vatued at fair value as of 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are disclosed in Note 41.1

The Group's board of directors and the board of directors of the respective subsidiaries): iate have overal|

management policies and processes.

The management assessed that fair valug of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, laans, barrowings, trade payzbles and other current financial assets and frabifities approximate their

The fair valuz of the financiat assets and liabilities is included st the amount at which the instrurnent could be exchanged in & current transaction berween willing parties, other than in a forced or

1) Long-term fixed-rate receivablesfborrawings are evaluated by The Group based on parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk factors, individual losses and creditworthiness of the

2) The fair value of unguoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities, as well as other non-current financial liahilities are estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates
currently available for debt an similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturilies. In addition to being sensitive to a reasenably possible change in the forecast cash flows or discount rate, the fair
valua of the unguoted instruments is alsa sensitive 1o a reasonably possible change in the growth rates. The valuation requires management ta use unabservable inputs in the madel, of which the
significant unobservable inputs are disciosed in the tables below. Management regulerly assesses a range of reasonably possible alternatives for those significant unobservable nputs and

3) Fair values of The Group's interest-bearing borrewings and teans are determined by using Discounted Cash Flow {DCF) method using discount rate that reffects the issuer’s borrowing rate as at
the end of the reporting period. The awn nan- perfarmance risk as at 31 March 2023 was assessed to be Insignificant.

and aversight of The Group’s risk management
framework. The Group manapas financial risk relating ta the pperations through internal risk reparts which analyze exposure by degree and magnltude of risk
The Groug's activities expose it ta a varicty of finantial risks: Tquidity risk, credit risk and market risk including interest rate risk and other grice risk]. The Group's primary risk management focus is
te minimze potential adverse effects of market risk an its financial performance. The Group's risk management assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and anafyze the
risks faced by The Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and complience with the same. Risk assessment and mznagement policies and processes are reviewed
regularly Lo refiect changes in market conditions and The Group's activities. The Board of Directors and the Audit Cammitiea is responsible for overseeing The Group's fisk assessment and
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[a) Liquidity Risk Wanagement :

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that The Graup cannot meet its financial obligatians as they become due. The Group manages its fiquidity risk by ensuring as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity tw meet its lizbilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to The Group's reputation. The Group maintains
adeguate reserves and hanking Facilities, and continuously menitors the Forecast and zctual cash flows by matching maturing profiles of financial assets and financial liabilities in accardance with the
approved risk management policy of The Group periodically. The Group belfeves that the expected future cashflows from the acquisitions during the year, working capital {including banking timits
not utiized} and its cash and cash equlvalent are sufficient to meet its short and medium term requirements.

Hyuidity and Interest Risk Tables :
The fallowing tahles detsil The Group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment pericds. The tables include both interest and principal cash
Aows.

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of the reporting period. The cantractual maturity is based on the earfiest
date on which The Group may he required to pay. The interest bearfng financial liabilities were high when comaared to non interest bearing financial assets, which is primarily due ta acguisition of
haspitals during the year. This risk will ba reduced with the operating cash Inflows generated fram the newly acquired hospitals and from the exisitng hospitals.

{Amaunt in Rs, Crores)

Particulars Less than £ year 1t 5 years 5 years and ahoue Total

3ist March 2023

Interest bearing 176.82 55011 19608 1,023.01
Non-interest bearing 107.73 1,10 - 108.83
Total 284.55 551.21 296.08 1,130.84
31st March 2022

Interest bearing 119.34 170.78 359.38 645.56
Nan-interest bearing 109.01 - = 108,01
Total 228.35 17078 358.3% 75851

The foltowing tables detail The Group's remaining cantractual maturity for its non-derivative Finzncial Assets with agreed repayment periods. The Graup does not hoid any derivative financial
nstrument.
{Amauntin Rs. Crores)

Partitulars Less than 1 year 1ta 5 years 5 years and above Tatal

31st March 2023

Interest bearing 112.50 - 711 119.51
Non-interest bearing 150.55 10.96 8.20 16371
Total 263.06 10.95 15.31 289.32
31st March 2022

Interest bearing 35.31 23.20 2098 79.43
Non-nterast bearing 117.060 140 Q.57 119.97
Total 152,31 25.60 2155 199.46

[b) Credit Rigk:

Credit risk is the risk of hrancial loss to The Group If a custamer or courterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk ent of both, the direct risk of
defaul and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness a5 well as concentration of risks. Financial instruments that are subjact to concentrations of credit risk principally consist of trade receivables,
cash and cash equivalems, hank deposits and cther financial assets. None of the other financizl instruments of The Group result in material concentration of cradit risk. Credit risk is cantroiied by
analyzing cradit limits and creditworthiness of custoners on a continuous basis to whom the credit has been granted after chtaining necessary approvats for credit.

The carrying amaunt of the financial assets recorded in these financial statements, grossed up far any allowance for losses, reprasents the maximum exposures to credit risk.

Trad receivables: The Group’s exposure ta credit risk is influenced mainly by the individuaf characteristics of each customer. The demagraphics of the custamer, including the default risk of the
industry and credit history, alsa has an influence on credit risk assessment.

Refer Note 25 and Note 15 for the details in respect of revenue and receivable from top customers.

Credit risk en current investments, cash B cash equivalent and derivatives is limited as The Group generally transacts with banks and financlal institutions with high credit ratings assigned by
international and domestic credil rating agencies. nvestments primarily include investment in Mutwat Funds,
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{c) Market Risk :

Market risk is the risk af lass of any future sarnings, in realizable fair values or in future cash flaws that may result from adverse changes in market rates and prices fsuch as interest rates and foreign
currency exchange rates) or in the price of market risk sensitive instriiments as a resull of such advarse changes in rrarket rates and prices. Market sk ks attributable to ali market risk-sensitive
financial instruments, all foreign currency receivables and payables and all shori-term and lang-term debt. The Group is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk ang
interest rate risk and the market value of its investments. Thus, The Group's axposure to markat risk is a function of investing and borrowing activities and revanue generating and oparating
activities in foreign currencles.

[c.1) Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk Is the risk that the fair vahue or future cash flaws of a financial instrument will flurtuate hersuse of changes in market interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates relates primarily to The Group's debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Graup’s management monitors the interest flictuatians, it any, and accordingly, take necessary steps ko mitigate sny interest rate riskc
Interast Aate sensitivity analysfs:

A change {decrease/increase} af 100 basis palnts In interest rates at the reporting date would increase/{decrease) equity and profit or loss by the amaunts shown below. This analysis assumes that
all ather variables, in particular fareign currency rates, remain constant.

Impact on Profit and inss for the reporting period

(Amaunt in Rs. Crores)

Particulars

Agat 31st March 2023

Asat 3st March 2022

Ingrease by $0Gbps Decrease by 100bps

ncrease by 100hps Decraase by 100bps

Impact on Profit and Yoss for the reporting pericd

{3.56) 3.56

12501 230

Impatt on total aquity a5 at the &nd of the reporting pericd

{Amount in As. Crores]

Particufars

As at 31st March 2023

Asat 31st March 2022

Increase by 100hps | by 100bps

Increase by 100bps. ] Decrease by 100bps

Impact on total equity 2s at the end of the reporting period

{3.56) | 3.56

(2.90)] 2.90

{c.2) Foreign Currency Risk Management :

The Group undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies and cc "
during the year ended 31 March 2023 and there are no outstanding contracts as at 31 March 2022,
The carrying amounts of The Group's foreign currency denominated manetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of each reparting period are as fatlows :

BlaEh

rate fhuctuations arises. The Group has not entered inte any derivative contracts

As at 31st March 2023 As at 3ist March 2022
Particulars Currenicy Amountin {Amount in fs. Crores) Amaunt in {Amount in Rs. Crores)
Foreign Currency Foreign Cureency
Trade Receivables usp 473438 3.28 -
Other Curent Liabilities usD - - - -

Fareign Currency sensitivity analysis:

equity and balance below would be negative.
Impact on Profit and foss for the reporting period

The foflowing table detalls The Greup's sensitivity to 2 5% increase and decrease in INR against the relevant foreign currentles. 5% is the rate used in order to determine the sensitivity 2nalysis
considering the past trends and expectation of the management for changes in the foreign currency exchange rate. The sensit
monetary items and adjusts the'r transiation at the peried end for 3 5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive numtrer below indicates a intrease in profit { derrease in loss and increase in
equity where the INR strengthens 5% against the relevant currency. For 2 5% weakening of the INR against the relevant currancy, there wouid be a comparable impact on the profit or tess and

ty analysis includes the outstanding foreign currency denominated

{Amaunt In Rs, Crores)

Sarticulars

For the Year Ended 315t March 2023

For the Year Ended 315t March 2022

Increase by 5% | by 5%

Increase by 5% | Decreass by 5%

uso

0.19 | (0.18}

Impact an total equity as at the end of the reporting period

[Amaunt in fis. Crares}

For the Year Ended 31st March 2023

For the Year Ended 31st March 2022

4L3

Particulars

Increase by 5% ] by 5% Increase by 5% | Decrease by 5%

Usn .19 | {n.19] =

Nate:
This is mainly attributable ta the exposure of receivabie apd payable outstanding in the above mentioned currencies ta The Group at the end of the reporting period.

Fair value of fipancial assets and financial llabilities that are not measured at fair value (het fair value disclosures are required)
“The Management considers that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recognizad in the financial statements appraximate thelr fair values.
Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group has nat offset financial assets and financiat liabilities
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o
(i)

()

)

The Company and subsidiaries incorparated In India have not enlered Into any transactions with entities whose name has been struck olf undar Seclion 248 of the Act or section
550 of Companies Act, 2013,

|44.1.{3} The Group has maintained backup an dslly basts of lts accounting records maintained In electronic made. The Pareat's and ks {isted subsidiary company's daily hackug of it

accounting recards are maintained in servers physically located outside Indfa.

44.2  {ther disclosures

The Group has used the borrawings from bamks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken atthe balance sheet date.

The Group neithar has any immaovable pioperty nos any title deeds of Immovable Property not held in the name of the Company.

Ouring the financial year, the Group has nat revalued any of 1S Property, Plant and Equipment, Right of Use Asset and Imangible Assets.

The Group has not granted any laans or advance in the nature of loans to promoters, directars, Key Managerlal Persannel and the related parti undar C ies Act,
2013), either severally or juintly with any other garson, except for the below :

Dr Agarwal's Health Care Limited had granted lean of Rs. 3.05 crores during the current year and has an outstanding loan receivable(inclusive of interast accured) of Rs. 31.42
crores as on 31 March 2023. The schedule of repayment of principal is stipulated as to be repaid over 2 period of 5 years, though specific instaiments for each perfod has not been

specified. However, the payment of interest has not heen stipulatad.

The Group does not have any intangibie assets unter devehopment as at 31 March 2023, and hence disclosure under Schedule Ul is not applicable.

Netas farming part of the C i Financial for the Year Ended 31st March 2023
42  Additinnat inffarmatian reguired as per Schedule |l of the campanies Act, 2013:
As 2t March 2023 {Amgunt in Rs. Crores}
hensi 13 heash
Net Assets (Total Assels-Total Liablities] Share in Prafit or Lass SherainDtherCompratisnive]] SharSlTotE Soparehenshe
Income Iacome
Nae of the entity Consolidated Asa %ot
Asa%of Other Cansaiidated Total
Asa%of Consolidated Praflt Comprehernsive Comprehensive
Consolidated Assets | Amaunt ar Lass Amount income Amount Income Amount
As at March 2823
Ralding Campany 7% 561.56 431% 3140 7% (@.63) 6% 30.71,
Subsidarles
Or Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limiled 15% 113.34 % 3653 A% 036} 55%) 36.57
Aditya Jyot Eye Hospital 19! 4.35 2% 176 05| 003 8% 1.29
Effsar Life Sciences Pvt Lud -4% {28.50) -10% {7.99) % - -12% {7.99)
Orbit Healthear: { ) Lid. 11%; 80.84 20%: 15.47 % {9.07} 10% 6.40
Sub-Total 100%. 732.28 108%. 1.8 100% [10.09) 100 B6.98
Intercampany elimination and Gther
I (73.22) 26.16 5.26 3142
Totat 659.07 103.23 {4.83) 5H.40
As at March 2022 {Amount in 5. Crases)
in 1l in Total L hensive
Net Assets {fatal Assets Total UabTies) Share In Prodit or Loss Shem orherComershensivelll Shae il e PEhs
Incame incame
Asa ol
Naz of the entity Consnolidated As a% of
Asa%af Other Cansolldated Toral
Asa ¥ of ‘Consolldatad Profit LCamprehensive Camprehensiva
Ce Assets | Amount of Loss Amount Incoma Amaunt Income Amount
AsatMarch 2073
Hoiding Company 5% 198,91 A% {1.48) 17%, 10.80) 3 {3.28)
Or Agarwal's Eya Rasaital Limited 24% 7B.17 BO% 24,10 128 0.59) 67% 23.51
Adltya lyot Eye Hospital i% 3.66 3% 112 0% - 3% 1.1
Elisar Life Sciences Pyt Lid -B% {20.50) -20% (8.07) 0% - -23%. {8.07)
Qebit Healthtare i itius) [4d. Z1%| 68,82 B1%)| 2421 1% {342} 59% 2079
Sup-Total 1005 330.06 100% 39.83 100% (#.81) 100% 3547
Intercampany elimination and Other
Ji ks (96.27) 318 {4.52) 11.64)
Tatal 233.79 43.16 {9.73)| e E]
43 Raues
The following are the anatytical ratios for the year ended 31st March 2023 and 31st March 2G22
As at Asat
Particulars MNumerator Danominator 315t March 31st March wariance
2023 2022
Current ratio Current assets Currant lizhilities 1.03 111 -TH
Dank Equity Total Debt* Sharehalder's Egulty 130 271 5%
Debi coversge ratio Earnings available for debt service Debt Service 217 253 -14%
Return an equity % et Profits after taxes Average Shateholder’s Equity 24% 19% 30%
Trade receivahles turnover ratio Revenue Average Trade Hecevabile 1530 1348 13%
Trade payables turnover ratio Purchases Ayerage Trade Payables 263 194 35%
Net Capital Turnover ratla Revenue Warking Capitab™* 113.84 3221 253%
Net profit ratin Net Profit Revenue % 8% 1%
Return on capisa| employed Earning before interest and tares Capital Emplayed .30 031 3%
Return oh investment Incom= generated from investment Time weighted avarags investment - -
Inventary Turnover ratio Cost of Goods sold Average Inventory 6.78 5.14 3245
*Total debt fncludes long term and short term borrowings and fease Habil tes
The ratics for the perfod ended 31 March 2023 is not comparahble with the peried endee! 31 March 2022 due to the impact of COMID'1S in previeus year. Hence, explanstions are
not provided for change In the ratio which |s move than 25% as compared 1o the preceding year.Alsn the during the year d due ta the isition of itals and
1otalincrease Ty the performance of hospital industry.
44 Undisclosed Income
The Company and subsidaries incorporated in India does nat have any transaction which are notrecorded in the bocks of accounts that fias been sutrenderad or disclosed as
income during the yearin the tax assessments under the Incama Tax Act. 1961,
411 T with whose name is k-off




[Ch]

[wiii)

lix)

{u}

i)

£xii)

{xii)

{ulv)

There are na proceadings which have bean imliated or pending against the campany fer halding any benar propeny under the Benami Transachiens (Prohibition) Act, 1928 (45 of
1988] and the rules made thereunder.

The company has been sanctioned warking capitat limits in excass of INR 5 Crores, inaggregate, st any paia? of fime during the year, for a period of 50 days, from banks on the
basis of security of currenr assels but were not required to subsmit Ihe guarterly returns or statements. Hence, reporting on the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
company with such banks is not applicahle.

The Company and subsidiaries meorparatets in Indfa have nat been declarad as a wilful defzulter By any bank or financial Institution or other |ender.
The Company and its subsidiaries incorparated in India does not have any charges of satisfaction yet 1o be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period, as at the year 2nded
31 March 2023,

As at 31 March 2073, the Company has subsidiartes and complies with ¢lause {87 of Sectian 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies [Restriction an number of
iayers} Rules, 2017,

The Group has not advanced or |eaned or invested funds (erther burrowed funds or share pramium ar any ather sources o1 kind of funds} to any other persoals) or sntity{ies},
including foraign entities (Intermediaries) with the undarstanding (whether recarded in wriing or otherwise] that the Intermediary shall -

{i) dirertly or indirectly lend or Invest n other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or an bahaif of the company [U/timate Beneficiaries) or

{ii} provide any puarantes, security o the like 1o or on bahalf of the Ultimare Beneficiaries

The Group has not receved any fund from any person{s) or entitylies), including foreign antities (Funding Party} with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwlse] that the company shall-

{1 directly or ingirectly lend or fivest in other persons ar entities identifed in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of tie Funding Party (Ultimate Beneflciaries) or
(i) provide any guarantee, security ar the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficlaies.

The Group neither has traded nar invested in Crypto currency or Yirtual Currency during the Fitancial year.

The Group does nat have any investment properties as a¢ 31 March 2023 as defined in ind AS 40.
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243 Non-Contralling Interest
(a) The Company holds ownership interest of 71.75% in Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2022. The summarized financial Information

of the Subsidiary is provided below. This information is based on standalone financial staternent of the subsidiary:

Summarized Statement of Proflt and Loss

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars 31st March 2023 %1st March 2022
{Amount in Rs.Crs) (Amount in Rs.Crs)
lncome 269.65 202 47
P {220.25) {170.16}|
Profit Before Tax 49.40 32.31
Tax Expense {12.48) (8.21)
Profit / [Loss} for the Year 3692 2430
- attributable to the owners of the Cempany 25649 17.29
- attributable {o the nen-controlling interest 10.43 681
ther Comprehensive Income f {Loss} {©.35) {0.59)
- attributable to the owners of the Company .25} {0.42}
- attributable ta the non-tontrolling interest {e.10) 40.17}
Total Camgar Inceme 36.57 23.51
- anributable ro the owners of the Company 26.24 16.87
- attributable to the non-cantrolling interest 10.33 6.54
Summarired Balance Sheet
As at Asat
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
[Amount in Rs.Crs) {(Amount in Rs.Crs)
Nor-Current Asset 3431.20 264.01
Current Asset 46.54 50.00
Kon-Current Liabilities 22152 122.49
Current LiabHities 55.08 53.35
Total Equity 11334 78.17
- attributable to the owners of the Company 81.32 56.09
- attrlbutable to the non-conirolling interest 3202 2208
Summarized Cash Flow Statemant
Year ended Year endad
Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
[Amount in Rs.Crs] {Amguynt in Rs.Crs)
Net cash generated from operating activitles {A) 8962 56.68
Mer cash used in investing activities [B) {70.61) (46.28)
et cash d used in financing activities {C) 0.26 (3.31)
et increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+8+C} {0.73) 6.59
As at Asat
Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
{Amaunt in Rs.Crs) (Amount in Rs.Crs}
Non Conirolling Interest 32.02 22.08




[} The Company holds ownership interest of 76% ir "Elisar Life Sciences Private Limited” as at 31 March 2023. The summarized financial infarmation of the

Subsldlary is provided below. This information is based on standal financial st of the subsidiary:
Summarized Statement of Profit and Loss
For the Year Ender For the Year Ended
Particulars 31st March 2023 315t March 2022
(Amount in Rs.Crs) [Amount in Rs.Crs]
fncante 4.87 3.18
Expenses [13.39) {12.23)
profit Before Tax (8.52) {5.05)
Tax Expense 0.53 0.53
Profit for the Year (7.99) 806,
- attributable to the owners of the Company _ (607 16.13}
- attributable to the non-controlling interest {1.92] {1.93)
Other Camprehensive Incame [ {Loss) - -
- attributable to the owners of the Company - =
- attributable te the nop-controlling Tnterest = 5
Total Comprehensive Incame {7.99) (8.06}|
- attributable to the owners of the Company (6.07) (6.13)
- attributable to tha nan-contralling interest {1.92) {1.93)
Summarized Balance Sheet
As at Asat
Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
[Amaunt in Rs.Crs} Amount in Rs.Crs)
Non-Current Asset 3.69 515
Current Asset 3.80 3.28
Non-Current Liabilities 34.29 28.28
Current Liabilities 169 0.65
Total Equity (2849} {20.50;
- attributable to the owners of the Company (21,65} (15.58)
- attributable to the non-controlling Interest (6.84) (4.92)
Summarized Cash Flow Statement
Year ended Yaar ended
Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
{Amount i As.Ces) (Amount In Rs.Crs)
Net cash generated fram operating activities (A} 10.87} 0.7g
Met cash used in investing activities {B) 1.83} (0.24)
Net cash used in financing activities {C} 2.80 (0.37)
Met increase / [decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {A+8+C) 0.10 017
Asat As at
Partlculars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
[Amount in Rs.Crs) [Amount in Rs.Crs]
Nen Controling Interest (6.84) (4.92)




{c} The Company acquired 63.25% in “Aditya lyot Eye Hospital Private Limited" during the FY 2022.23. As the acquisition was affected only in the current year,
comparitive nformation has net been disclosed. The summarized financial informaticn of the Subsidiary post date of acquisition s provided belew. This
informatian is based an standalone financial statement of the subsidiary:

Summarized Statement of Profit and Loss

Far the Year Ended Far the Year Ended
Particulars 315t March 2023 31st March 2022
{Amount in Rs.Crs} {Amount [n Rs.Crs)
Income 12.16 1116
Expenses {10.31) (10.16}
Profit Befare Tax 185 1.00
Tax Expense 0.59 {0.12
Profit for the Year 126 1.12
- attributable to the owriers of the Company 0.80 0.57
- attributable to the non-controlling interest 0.46 0.55
Other Comprehensive Income 0.03 -
- attributable to the owners of the Company [0.02} -
- attributable ta the non-controlling interest 0.01 -
Total Comprehensive Income 129 11z
- attributable to the owners of the Company 0.78 0.57
- attributable to the non-controlling interast 047 0.55
Summarized Balanee Sheat
As at Asat
Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
(Amount in Rs.Crs) (Amount ir: Rs.Crs)
Non-Current Asset 11.88 1106
Current Asset 2.10 247
Mon-Current Liabllities 5.05 6.19
Current Lisbilities 3.89 3.68
Total Equity 495 3.66
- attributable to the awners of the Comgany 3.13 1.87
- attributabie to the non-tantrolling Interest 182 179
Summarized Cash Flow Statement
Year ended Year anded
Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
(Arnount in Bs.Crs} {Amount in Rs.Crs]
Net cash panerated from operating activities {A) 2.30 3.08
Net cash used in investing activities (B} {1.54) [0.34}
Net cash used in financing activities (C) {1.53) | (1.21)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) _fo.rn) 1.52
As at Asat
Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
(Amount in Rs.Crs] {Amount in Rs.Crs)
Non Cantrolling Interest 182 1.79

(d) The Company holds 100% in “Orbit Healthcare Services {Mauritius} Umited" which is the helding company for other African Subsidiaries inciuding less than
100% ownership Refer Note 2 for details. Corresponding NCI has been disclosed below for Non-conirelling interast in certain African Subsidiaries

Particulars

As at
31st March 2023
[Amount in Rs.Crs)

Asat
31st March 2022
[Amgunt in Rs.Cr3)

Nan Contraliing interest

164

139
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44,4 Interest in Associates

The Campany halds 14.71% intarest in Idearx Services private Limited as at 31 March 2023 (14.71% as at 31 March 2022). As per agreement with
Idearx Services private Limited and its sharehoiders, significant inflzence still remains with the Company and hence the entity is consolidated for
the purpase of Canzolidated Financial statements of the Company, The summarized financial information of the Associate is provided below.

Summarized Statement of Profit and Loss

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022

(Amount in Rs.Crs) {Amount in Rs.Crs}
|nceme 47.70 37.27
52.86 4251
Loss Before Tax [5.15) (5.24)

Tax Expense - =
Loss far the Year {5.15) (5.24)
Dther Comprehensiva Income / [Lass) - (0.00}
Total Comprehensive Loss (5.15) (5.24)
Prapartion of Group’s cwnership 14.71% 14.71%
Group's share in Totai Comprehensive Loss [Refer Note below) {0.76) 0.77)

|Fur the year ended 31 March 2022, the share of loss from associate amaunted to Rs.76.70 lakhs. However, since the carrying vatue of investment ]

Summarized Balance Sheet

As at Az at
Particufars 3ist March 2023 31st March 2022
{Amount in Rs.Crs) {Amount in Rs.Crs)
Nan-Current Asset 292 2.61
Current Asset 20.93 18.00
Non-Current Liabilities - 0.11
Current Llabilities 31,51 23.42
Total Equity (7.96) (292}
Proportion of Group's ownershig 14.71% 14.71%)
Group's share in Total Equity {1.17) {0.43)
Summarized Cash Flow Statement
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
[Amount in Rs.Crs) {Amount in Rs.Crs)
Net cash used in operating activities {A] {10.94) [11.16)
Met cash used in investing aciivities (B) [0.75) {075
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 15.04 15.04
Net increase in cash and cash eguivalents [A+B+C) 3.22 313

Recaontiliation of the above summarized financial information to the earrying amount of interest in the Assoclate recognized in the Consolidated

Financial $tatements

Particulars [Amount in Rs.Crs)

Amount invested in the Associate (A} 2.01]
Share of Net Assets as at the date of acquisition i.e. i2 January 2017 (8) (.05}
Goodwill (C=A - B} 2.065
Share of Post Acquisition Loss upto 31 March 2017 (D} [0.02)
Carrying amount as at 31, March 2017 [E=A + D) 1.99
Share of Lass for the year ended 31 March 20618 {F} (0.05)
Carryfng amount as at 31 March 2018 (G=E+ F) 1.90]
Share of Loss far the year ended 31 March 20139 [H) (0.32)
Larrying amount as at 31 March 2019 (1= G + H) 1.58
Share of Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020 {J) {D.88)
Carrying amount as at 31 March 2020 (K =1+ 1} 0.70
Shara of Loss for the year ended 31 March 2021 (L}

Carrying amount as at 31 March 2021 {M=K + L)

{0.70}

Share of Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022 (N}

Carrying amount as at 31 March 2023 {G= M + N}

Carrying amouat as at 31 March 2023 {P)




Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited
Notes ferming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

47 Approval of Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of the Company has reviewad the realizabie value of all the current assets and has confirmed that the value of such
assets in the ordinary course of business will not be less that the value at which these ara recognized in the financial statements. In
addition, the Board has also confirmed the carrving value of the non-current assets in the financial statements. The Board, duly taking into
accaunt all the relevant disclosures made, has approved these financial statemants in its meeting held on 10 August 2023,

X

For and on behalf of the Board of Birectors

br. Al Agkfwal Dr. Anosh Agarwal
Whaoletithe Director Wholetime Director
DIN: 01074272 DIN: 02636035
K
5 ((-)
B. Udhay Shartkar Thanikainathan Arumugam
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place ; Chennai
Date : 10 August 2023
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